
 

Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2022 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
The City is providing in-person and electronic options for this meeting.  The City encourages in-person attendees 
to follow the latest CDC guidelines to reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. 

The meeting will be accessible via video conference and the public may access/participate in the meeting in the 
following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of January 3, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing January 1 - December 31, 2022 as The Year of College Hill. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Special Order of Business 

3. Public hearing on the proposed FY2022-FY2027 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 5, 2022) 
 
b) Written communication filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the FY2022-FY2027 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 

1



 

Page 2 of 3 

4. Resolution declaring an official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 to issue debt to reimburse 
the City for certain original expenditures paid in connection with specified project. 

5. Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Main Street 
Reconstruction Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 13, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving a public improvement project for the Main Street Reconstruction Project, 
and authorizing acquisition of private property for said project. 

6. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract, and estimate of cost for the 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V Project. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 7, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V Project. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Receive and file the City Council Goal Setting Report of December 7 & 9, 2021. 

8. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of January 3, 2022 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Capital Improvements Program (CIP) – Joint Meeting with Planning & Zoning Commission. 
b) 2023 Pavement Management. 

9. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) AmericInn Lodge and Suites, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B beer - renewal. 
b) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
c) Golf Lab, 201 Washington Street, Class B beer - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

10. Resolution approving and adopting the FY2023 City Council Goals, Work Program and Short-Term 
Financial Plan. 

11. Resolution naming Official Depositories for the City of Cedar Falls. 

12. Resolution placing a temporary moratorium on the issuance of building permits for construction 
within the Urban General, Urban General 2 and Storefront designations in the Downtown Character 
District (CD-DT) zoning district until May 1, 2022. 

2



 

Page 3 of 3 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Appraisal Services with Rally 
Appraisal LLC relative to the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service Agreement with Kirk Gross Company 
relative to moving furniture for the City Hall Remodel Project. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Use of City Parks and Services 
with Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc. 

16. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting February 7, 2022 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2022 CDBG Sanitary 
Sewer Rehabilitation Project.  

Allow Bills and Claims 

17. Allow Bills and Claims for January 18, 2022. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Executive Session 

18. Executive session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably 
expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce 
the price the governmental body would receive for that property. 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JANUARY 3, 2022 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:03 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.  
 

53621 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of December 20, 2021 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
53622 - Mayor Green read the following proclamations: 
 

Proclamation recognizing January 17, 2022 as Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Day of 
Service. 
 
Proclamation recognizing January 2022 as National Mentoring Month.  The Job 
Foundation Executive Director Cyd McHone and Program Director Dorothy Roby 
commented about the foundation, its mission and mentoring program. 

   
53623 -     Robert Zey, 6728 Viking Road, expressed concerns with the West Viking Road 

Industrial Park Phase V project and requested information regarding buffering 
between residential and industrial areas. 

 Michael Hager, 6830 Viking Road, supports the Industrial Park project and 
commended staff for communication and efforts to buffer residential areas. 

 Kathryn Sogard, College Hill Partnership Executive Director, commended City 
Council for their service and expressed appreciation for CIP Investments in the 
College Hill area. She expressed concern with the lack of funding for the College 
Hill Visioning/Zoning Code update. 

53624 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3002, 
amending Chapter 2, Administration of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
reestablishing the Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement 
District (SSMID), be passed upon its third and final consideration.  Following 
supportive comments by Community Main Street Executive Director Kim Bear 
and Brent Johnson, 621 Clay Street, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3002 duly passed and adopted. 

    
53625 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Daryl Kruse, Board of Appeals, term expiring 12/31/2022. 
b) Susan deBuhr, Board of Electrical Appeals, term expiring 12/31/2022. 
c) Susan deBuhr, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term expiring 12/31/2022. 
d) Susan deBuhr, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term expiring 12/31/2022. 
e) Peter Berendzen, Art and Culture Board, term expiring 07/01/2024. 

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of November 2021. 

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Second State Brewing Company, 203 State Street, Class B beer & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
b) Wild Hare American Bar and Grill, 2512 Whitetail Drive, Class C liquor & 
outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

53626 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse to receive and file the report of 
the Mayor relative to the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem for 2022. Following 
questions by Councilmembers deBuhr and Kruse, and response by Mayor 
Green, the motion carried 5-2, with deBuhr and Kruse voting Nay. 

53627 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding to receive and file the report 
of the Mayor relative to the appointment of standing committees for 2022. 
Following questions by Councilmember deBuhr and responses by Mayor Green, 
the motion carried 5-2, with Kruse and Sires voting Nay. 

53628 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #22,643, approving and adopting Summary Plan Descriptions (SPD) 

for the City of Cedar Falls Health Benefit Plans. 

 Resolution #22,644, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow property at 130 North College Street. 

 Resolution #22,645, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow property at 234 Clark Drive. 

 Resolution #22,646, approving and authorizing execution of a 2021 American 
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Grant Agreement relative to funding of a Book Bike for 
the Cedar Falls Public Library. 

 Resolution #22,647, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
the Use of State or Local Overtime and Authorized Expense/Strategic Initiative 
Program for Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Forces (OCDETF) for 
FY2022. 

 Resolution #22,648, approving and authorizing execution of a Humanities Project 
Grant Agreement with the Iowa Arts Council relative to the "Our Town: 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Reclaiming the Narrative" exhibition for the Hearst Center for the Arts. 

 Resolution #22,649, approving and authorizing execution of two Leases relative 
to properties vacated by flood buyout programs. 

 Resolution #22,650, approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment 
to Agreement for Professional Services with Operation Threshold for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV3) Funding relative to the Cares Act. 

 Resolution #22,651, approving an amendment to a Downtown Character District 
(CD-DT) Zoning District site plan for outdoor amenities at River Place Plaza. 

 Resolution #22,652, setting January 18, 2022 as the date of public hearing on 
the proposed FY2022-FY2027 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 

 Resolution #22,653, receiving and filing, and setting January 18, 2022 as the 
date of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & 
estimate of cost for the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V Project. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,643 through #22,653 duly 
passed and adopted. 

53629 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #22,654, 
approving the preliminary plat of Cedar Falls West Viking Road Industrial Park 
Phase V & VI, be adopted. Public Works Director Schrage responded to a 
question asked during public forum. Following an additional question by 
Councilmember Harding and response by Schrage, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,654 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
53630 -    It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #22,655, 

approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of a 
mechanical street sweeper for the Public Works Department, be adopted. 
Following a question by Councilmember Sires and response by Public Works 
Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,655 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53631 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the bills and claims of 

January 3, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 
53632 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Schultz to refer to a Council Work 

Session discussion of the future of the Public Safety Director position and 
potential means to gather data to evaluate the current public safety model. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Harding, Dunn, 
and Schultz, and Mayor Green, and responses by City Administrator Gaines, the 
motion carried 6-1, with deBuhr voting Nay.  

 
  Following comments and questions by Councilmember Sires and Mayor Green, 

and responses by City Attorney Rogers, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Schultz to refer to Executive Session at the January 18, 2022 City Council 
meeting, discussion of property acquisition related to extending Arbors Drive. 
Motion carried 6-1, with Dunn voting Nay. 

 
  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to refer to a Council work 

session review of components of the CD-DT zoning code. Following questions 
and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Dunn, Kruse, and Harding, and 
response by City Attorney Rogers, the motion carried 6-1, with Dunn voting Nay. 

 
  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires to direct staff to develop a 

resolution for a moratorium on new building permits within the Urban General, 
Urban General 2 and Storefront designations of the CD-DT zoning district until 
May 1, 2022.  Following comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Harding and 
Dunn, and responses by City Administrator Gaines and Planning & Community 
Services Manager Howard, the motion carried 4-3, with Schultz, Harding and 
Dunn voting Nay. 

 
53633 - Councilmember deBuhr requested that City Council return to presenting referrals 

ahead of time for Councilmembers to review. 
 
53634 -     Public Works Director Schrage addressed safety concerns regarding the 

proposed crosswalk location at South Main Street and Greenhill Road. He also 
provided information on the snow emergency in effect in the Downtown and 
College Hill areas from 9 PM January 5 until 7 AM on January 6 to allow for snow 
removal in those areas. 

 
  Public Safety Director Olson announced the swearing in of five new public safety 

officers and the retirement celebration of Captain Hayes after 36 years of service. 
 
  Mayor Green announced the next City Council meeting will be held on Tuesday, 

January 18, 2022 due to Martin Luther King Day. 
    
53635 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:31 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
  

7

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

  

 

 

 
 

THE YEAR OF COLLEGE HILL 
January 1 – December 31, 2022 

 
 

WHEREAS, the College Hill neighborhood has grown up alongside the 

university campus to provide housing, services, entertainment, and other 

amenities to residents of College Hill and the surrounding community; and  

WHEREAS, the amenities, activities and quality of life provided within the 

College Hill neighborhood and business district are important for the long-

term success of our community; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is committed to enduring and productive 

relationships with the College Hill Partnership and all community 

stakeholders to ensure that College Hill is resourced and supported as a 

crucial component of our city’s overall success; 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

proclaim 2022 as The Year of College Hill to spotlight this neighborhood 

and business district, and I do hereby strongly encourage community focus 

and resources for the continued improvement and development of College 

Hill; and I do further commend civic efforts to attract and retain 

neighborhood residents and to support quality housing, employment, and 

excellent quality-of-life amenities in this distinct and important 

neighborhood district. 

Signed this 11th day of January, 2022.  

 

______________________________________                                                                                  

Mayor Robert M. Green 

8

Item 2.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: January 6, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  FY22-FY27 Capital Improvements Program 

 
The FY22-FY27 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is on the agenda for your formal 
approval. The CIP was presented at committee on January 3rd to the City Council and 
the Planning & Zoning Commission. The presentation included a summary of the CIP, 
overview of certain projects, summary of funding sources, and the financial impacts of 
the CIP. The CIP included in the packet this time incorporates the change that was 
discussed at that committee meeting to item number 61, Sample Plans for Residential 
Building Types.  The funding for this item was moved from FY23 to FY24. 
 
Upon approval of the CIP, the next steps of the budget process will continue, which 
includes incorporating the projects listed in the FY23 column into the budget.   
  
If you have questions regarding the CIP or its impact, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 
 

9

Item 3.



10

Item 3.



11

Item 3.



12

Item 3.



13

Item 3.



14

Item 3.



15

Item 3.



16

Item 3.



17

Item 3.



18

Item 3.



19

Item 3.



20

Item 3.



21

Item 3.



22

Item 3.



23

Item 3.



24

Item 3.



25

Item 3.



26

Item 3.



27

Item 3.



28

Item 3.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



31

Item 3.



32

Item 3.



33

Item 3.



34

Item 3.



35

Item 3.



36

Item 3.



37

Item 3.



38

Item 3.



39

Item 3.



40

Item 3.



41

Item 3.



42

Item 3.



43

Item 3.



44

Item 3.



45

Item 3.



46

Item 3.



47

Item 3.



48

Item 3.



49

Item 3.



50

Item 3.



51

Item 3.



52

Item 3.



53

Item 3.



54

Item 3.



55

Item 3.



56

Item 3.



57

Item 3.



58

Item 3.



59

Item 3.



60

Item 3.



61

Item 3.



62

Item 3.



63

Item 3.



64

Item 3.



65

Item 3.



66

Item 3.



67

Item 3.



68

Item 3.



69

Item 3.



70

Item 3.



71

Item 3.



72

Item 3.



73

Item 3.



74

Item 3.



75

Item 3.



76

Item 3.



77

Item 3.



78

Item 3.



79

Item 3.



80

Item 3.



81

Item 3.



82

Item 3.



83

Item 3.



84

Item 3.



85

Item 3.



86

Item 3.



87

Item 3.



88

Item 3.



89

Item 3.



90

Item 3.



91

Item 3.



92

Item 3.



93

Item 3.



94

Item 3.



95

Item 3.



96

Item 3.



97

Item 3.



98

Item 3.



99

Item 3.



100

Item 3.



101

Item 3.



102

Item 3.



103

Item 3.



104

Item 3.



105

Item 3.



106

Item 3.



107

Item 3.



108

Item 3.



109

Item 3.



110

Item 3.



111

Item 3.



112

Item 3.



113

Item 3.



114

Item 3.



115

Item 3.



116

Item 3.



117

Item 3.



118

Item 3.



119

Item 3.



120

Item 3.



121

Item 3.



122

Item 3.



123

Item 3.



124

Item 3.



125

Item 3.



126

Item 3.



127

Item 3.



128

Item 3.



129

Item 3.



130

Item 3.



131

Item 3.



132

Item 3.



133

Item 3.



134

Item 3.



135

Item 3.



136

Item 3.



137

Item 3.



138

Item 3.



139

Item 3.



140

Item 3.



141

Item 3.



142

Item 3.



143

Item 3.



144

Item 3.



145

Item 3.



146

Item 3.



147

Item 3.



148

Item 3.



149

Item 3.



150

Item 3.



151

Item 3.



152

Item 3.



153

Item 3.



154

Item 3.



155

Item 3.



156

Item 3.



157

Item 3.



158

Item 3.



159

Item 3.



160

Item 3.



161

Item 3.



162

Item 3.



163

Item 3.



164

Item 3.



165

Item 3.



166

Item 3.



167

Item 3.



168

Item 3.



169

Item 3.



170

Item 3.



171

Item 3.



172

Item 3.



173

Item 3.



174

Item 3.



175

Item 3.



176

Item 3.



177

Item 3.



178

Item 3.



179

Item 3.



180

Item 3.



181

Item 3.



182

Item 3.



183

Item 3.



184

Item 3.



185

Item 3.



186

Item 3.



187

Item 3.



188

Item 3.



189

Item 3.



190

Item 3.



191

Item 3.



192

Item 3.



193

Item 3.



194

Item 3.



195

Item 3.



196

Item 3.



197

Item 3.



198

Item 3.



199

Item 3.



200

Item 3.



201

Item 3.



202

Item 3.



203

Item 3.



204

Item 3.



205

Item 3.



206

Item 3.



207

Item 3.



208

Item 3.



209

Item 3.



210

Item 3.



211

Item 3.



212

Item 3.



213

Item 3.



214

Item 3.



215

Item 3.



216

Item 3.



217

Item 3.



218

Item 3.



219

Item 3.



220

Item 3.



221

Item 3.



222

Item 3.



223

Item 3.



224

Item 3.



225

Item 3.



226

Item 3.



227

Item 3.



228

Item 3.



229

Item 3.



230

Item 3.



231

Item 3.



232

Item 3.



233

Item 3.



234

Item 3.



235

Item 3.



236

Item 3.



237

Item 3.



238

Item 3.



239

Item 3.



240

Item 3.



241

Item 3.



242

Item 3.



243

Item 3.



244

Item 3.



245

Item 3.



246

Item 3.



247

Item 3.



248

Item 3.



249

Item 3.



250

Item 3.



251

Item 3.



252

Item 3.



253

Item 3.



254

Item 3.



255

Item 3.



256

Item 3.



257

Item 3.



258

Item 3.



259

Item 3.



260

Item 3.



261

Item 3.



262

Item 3.



263

Item 3.



264

Item 3.



265

Item 3.



266

Item 3.



267

Item 3.



268

Item 3.



269

Item 3.



270

Item 3.



271

Item 3.



272

Item 3.



273

Item 3.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: January 6, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Annual Reimbursement Resolution 

 
Please find attached a copy of the IRS mandated reimbursement resolution.  Each year 
the City submits a list of projects prior to the sale of General Obligation bonds and 
Revenue bonds that allows the City to be eligible to reimburse ourselves from the bond 
funds for previously incurred expenses relating to the projects listed. 
 
The attachment referred to in the resolution will be the FY22-FY27 Capital 
Improvements Program (CIP) that is also being presented to Council for approval.  After 
formal adoption, a copy of the final CIP will be attached to the resolution and filed in the 
City’s official records.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

274

Item 4.



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARING AN OFFICIAL INTENT UNDER TREASURY 
REGULATION  1.150-2 TO ISSUE DEBT TO REIMBURSE THE CITY FOR 

CERTAIN ORIGINAL EXPENDITURES PAID IN CONNECTION WITH 
SPECIFIED PROJECTS 

 
WHEREAS, the City anticipates making cash expenditures for one or more 

capital improvements projects, generally described on Attachment A (each of which 

shall hereinafter be referred to as a "Project"), and 

 

WHEREAS, the City reasonably expects to issue debt to reimburse the costs of a 

Project, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council believes it is consistent with the City's budgetary and 

financial circumstances to issue this declaration of official intent. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa: 

Section 1.  That this Resolution be and does hereby serve as a declaration of 

official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2. 

Section 2.  That it is reasonably expected that capital expenditures will be made 

in respect of the foregoing Projects, from time to time and in such amounts as this 

Council determines to be necessary or desirable under the circumstances then and 

there existing. 

Section 3.  That the City reasonably expects to reimburse all or a portion of the 

foregoing expenditures with the proceeds of bonds, notes or other indebtedness to be 

issued or incurred by the City in the future. 

Section 4.  That the total estimated costs of the projects, the maximum principal 

amount of bonds, notes or other indebtedness to be issued for the foregoing Projects and 

the estimated dates of completion of the Projects are reasonably expected to be as follows: 

 

 

275

Item 4.



See Attachment A: 

 All Projects with the identifications code of G.O. 2020, 2022, 

2024, and 2026; SRF, STW, SRB-2018, SRB-2024,and SRB-

2026. 

 All Projects with the identifications code of TIF-UN, TIF-DT, TIF-

CH, TIF-PP, and TIF-STH. 

 All Projects with CP, LST, SCF, ER, and GFS. 

If such grants are not received, it is intended that the costs to be financed will be 

increased accordingly. 

Section 5.  That the City reasonably expects to reimburse the above-mentioned 

Project costs no later than the later of eighteen months after the capital expenditures are 

paid or eighteen months after the property is placed in service. 

Section 6.  That this Resolution be maintained by the City Clerk in an Official Intent 

File maintained in the office of the City Clerk and available at all times for public inspection, 

subject to such revisions as may be necessary. 

 

ADOPTED this 18h day of January 2022.       

                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                     ________________________ 
                                                                                Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                            
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

276

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

 DATE: January 10, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction Project (6th Street to University Avenue) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Public Hearing for the Right-of-Way Acquisition 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning the reconstruction of Main Street from 6th Street to 
University Avenue from a 4 lane roadway to a 3 lane roadway. Included in the project 
will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th 
Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic 
safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to 
the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous 
roadway items. Right-of-way acquired for the project will be used for roadway alignment 
and utility relocations.  
 
Plans for the project show the need for fee title and/or easement acquisitions from 
approximately nine (9) properties and include potentially up to three (3) total takes. One 
at the northwest corner of the Main/12th intersection, one at the northeast corner of the 
Main/12th intersection, and one at the southwest corner of the Main/12th intersection. In 
addition, approximately 145 temporary construction easements will be necessary for 
properties along both sides of Main Street from 6th Street to University Avenue.  
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right-of-way. The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement 
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

277

Item 5.



278

Item 5.



MAIN STREETMAIN STREET

W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
E

 1
3
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
A

T
E

R
L

O
O

 R
O

A
D

W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
E

 1
1
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

0 6015

SCALE: 1"= 30'

30 30

Permanent Acquisition

Temporary Easement

Legend

Sidewalk

PCC Pavement

Colored PCC Pavement

City Property

Landscaping

1
2

/6
/2

0
2

1
p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n
tl

e
y
.c

o
m

:f
o
th

-p
w

-0
1
/D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

/C
li

e
n
ts

/C
e
d
a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
/C

A
D

/D
is

p
la

y
s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/1

2
th

S
tr

e
e
t_

1
2
0
6
2
1
_
P

U
B

.d
g
n

2
:0

1
:5

8
 P

M

       CHECKED:  DRAWN: 

12th Street - Concept Moving Roundabout (12/06/21)
Main Street Reconstruction

279

Item 5.



 

1 280

Item 5.



 

2 281

Item 5.



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 
 DATE: January 6, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction Project  
  Project No. RC-000-3283 
   
This memo is intended to outline the current stage of this project. Below I will summarize how we have 
reached the stage we are at today: 

 
Main Street Corridor Traffic Study:  

 April 2016, the City entered into a contract with a professional engineering consultant to perform 
a detailed traffic study of Main Street from 6

th
 Street south to University Avenue 

o The purpose of the traffic study is to provide an analysis of the existing traffic operations, 
expected traffic growth based on planned and potential developments in the area, and 
develop alternatives to optimize the lane configuration on this section of Main Street. In 
addition to alternatives for lane configurations, the report will analyze traffic safety, 
access management, and alternative intersection configurations 

o Cost: $43,000 
o 2 Public Meetings(2016 & 2017)  

 2017 Final report outlined three alternatives for corridor improvements  
o Consultant recommendation was 3 lane corridor with on-street bike accommodations 

(Council voted at August 2017 COW meeting) 
o 2020 Goal Session – Asked staff to have consultant present the final report presentation from 2017 to 

the new council members  
 February 2021 
 March 2021 (answered questions from the February meeting) 

o Council voted again at the March 2021 COW meeting to pursue the consultant recommendation (5-2) 
 

Contract for Design: 

 The City entered into a contract for design with a professional engineering consultant in July 2021  
o The scope services outlined the design of a 3 lane corridor with intersection improvements  

of roundabouts at 12
th
, 18

th
, Seerley 

o Cost of design contract: $1.96M (spent approximately $250k to-date) 

 Traffic Safety Improvement Grant Application(August 2021) 
o In recent years the City has received three grants from the Iowa Department of 

Transportation with regard to the significant increase of safety (total grants received 
$1,500,000) 

o Iowa DOT Transportation Commission Meeting in December 2021, Approved Cedar Falls 
grant application of $500k for the proposed improvements to Main Street Corridor (3 lane 
with roundabouts at 12

th
, 18

th
, Seerley and on-street bike accommodations) 

 December 20, 2021 - Set public hearing to undertake a public improvement project and to 
authorize acquisition of private property 

 January 18, 2022 - Hold public hearing on acquisition on private property 

282

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: January 10, 2022 

 SUBJECT: West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V 
  City Project Number: SU-364-3189 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V. 
 
This project consists of mass grading of 200-acre industrial park expansion site and 
constructing infrastructure associated with the first phase of the industrial park 
expansion site. The respective infrastructure includes 20,075 SY PCC, 7,338 LF storm 
sewer, 4,385 LF sanitary sewer, 5,125 LF water main, and other associated items. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $8,714,000.00. The project 
will be initially be paid by Economic Development Funds then will be certified as TIF 
debt within the Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

283

Item 6.



OPINION OF PROBABLE PROJECT COSTS 12/22/2021

ITEM 
NO.

ITEM CODE ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

1 2010-C Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS 5,000.00$       5,000.00$              
2 2010-D-1 Topsoil, On-site 224000 CY 4.00$              896,000.00$          
3 2010-E Excavation, Class 10 962200 CY 2.50$              2,405,500.00$       
4 2010-E Excavation, Class 10, Unsuitable or Unstable 400 CY 12.50$            5,000.00$              
5 2010-G Subgrade Preparation, 24" 23715 SY 4.00$              94,860.00$            
6 2010-I Subbase, Modified, 12" 23715 SY 11.00$            260,865.00$          
7 2010-999-A Temporary Granular Access Road 4622 SY 30.00$            138,660.00$          
8 2010-L Compaction Testing 1 LS 17,500.00$     17,500.00$            
9 3010-C Trench Foundation 186 TON 35.00$            6,510.00$              

10 3010-D Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Material 325 CY 25.00$            8,125.00$              
11 3010-F Trench Compaction Testing 1 LS 40,000.00$     40,000.00$            
12 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC SDR 26, 12" 3604 LF 75.00$            270,300.00$          
13 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC SDR 26, 15" 251 LF 90.00$            22,590.00$            
14 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC SDR 26, 21" 530 LF 110.00$          58,300.00$            
15 4010-C-1 Sanitary Sewer Force Main, Trenched, PVC, 1.5" 905 LF 40.00$            36,200.00$            
16 4010-E Sanitary Sewer Service Stub, PVC SDR 23.5, 6" 771 LF 55.00$            42,405.00$            
17 4010-H Removal of Sanitary Sewer, All Types and Sizes 150 LF 35.00$            5,250.00$              
18 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 15" 1433 LF 62.00$            88,846.00$            
19 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 18" 611 LF 67.00$            40,937.00$            
20 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 24" 2016 LF 85.00$            171,360.00$          
21 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 30" 855 LF 120.00$          102,600.00$          
22 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 36" 1495 LF 145.00$          216,775.00$          
23 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 42" 733 LF 180.00$          131,940.00$          
24 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 48" 195 LF 200.00$          39,000.00$            
25 4020-D Removal of Storm Sewer, All Types and Sizes 200 LF 25.00$            5,000.00$              
26 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 15" 3 EA 1,500.00$       4,500.00$              
27 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 18" 4 EA 1,750.00$       7,000.00$              
28 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 24" 9 EA 2,500.00$       22,500.00$            
29 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 30" 1 EA 3,000.00$       3,000.00$              
30 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 36" 1 EA 4,000.00$       4,000.00$              
31 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 42" 1 EA 5,000.00$       5,000.00$              
32 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 48" 2 EA 6,000.00$       12,000.00$            
33 4040-A Subdrain, Type 1, 6" 10085 LF 7.00$              70,595.00$            
34 4040-C Subdrain Cleanout, Type A-1, 6" 24 EA 500.00$          12,000.00$            
35 4040-D Subdrain Outlets and Connections, CMP, 6" 84 EA 300.00$          25,200.00$            
36 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched, 1" 920 LF 35.00$            32,200.00$            
37 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched,  DIP, 12" (w/ Nitrile Gaskets) 5125 LF 80.00$            410,000.00$          
38 5010-D Water Service Stub, DIP, 8" 6 EA 2,000.00$       12,000.00$            
39 5020-A Valve, Gate, 12" 10 EA 2,500.00$       25,000.00$            
40 5020-C Fire Hydrant Assembly 21 EA 5,000.00$       105,000.00$          
41 6010-A Manhole, SW-301, 48" 8 EA 4,000.00$       32,000.00$            
42 6010-A Manhole, SW-301, 60" 5 EA 6,500.00$       32,500.00$            
43 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 48" 4 EA 4,000.00$       16,000.00$            
44 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 60" 1 EA 5,500.00$       5,500.00$              
45 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 72" 5 EA 7,000.00$       35,000.00$            
46 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 84" 1 EA 8,500.00$       8,500.00$              
47 6010-B Intake, SW-501 6 EA 4,000.00$       24,000.00$            
48 6010-B Intake, SW-502, 48" 1 EA 5,000.00$       5,000.00$              
49 6010-B Intake, SW-502, 60" 2 EA 6,500.00$       13,000.00$            
50 6010-B Intake, SW-502, 84" 1 EA 9,500.00$       9,500.00$              
51 6010-B Intake, SW-502, 96" 4 EA 11,000.00$     44,000.00$            
52 6010-B Intake, SW-505 16 EA 7,000.00$       112,000.00$          
53 6010-B Intake, SW-506 6 EA 8,000.00$       48,000.00$            
54 6010-B Intake, SW-507 1 EA 6,000.00$       6,000.00$              
55 6010-B Intake, SW-508 1 EA 6,500.00$       6,500.00$              
56 6010-B Intake, SW-509 2 EA 7,500.00$       15,000.00$            
57 6010-B Intake, SW-510 2 EA 9,500.00$       19,000.00$            
58 6010-B Intake, SW-512, 24" DIA 1 EA 3,000.00$       3,000.00$              
59 6010-B Intake, SW-513, 3' x 3' 2 EA 3,000.00$       6,000.00$              
60 6010-B Intake, SW-513, 4' x 4' 1 EA 5,000.00$       5,000.00$              
61 6010-B Intake, SW-513, 5' x 5' 1 EA 7,000.00$       7,000.00$              
62 6010-B Intake, SW-513, 6' x 6' 4 EA 8,500.00$       34,000.00$            
63 6010-G Connection to Existing Intake 1 EA 500.00$          500.00$                 

CEDAR FALLS WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V
118.1174.08B

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

284

Item 6.



ITEM 
NO.

ITEM CODE ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

64 6010-C-2 External Drop Connection 1 EA 4,000.00$       4,000.00$              
65 SP-6010-I Grinder Pump Station 1 LS 60,000.00$     60,000.00$            
66 7010-A Pavement, PCC, 9", W/ CD Baskets 20075 SY 50.00$            1,003,750.00$       
67 7020-B Pavement, HMA, 6" 110 SY 65.00$            7,150.00$              
68 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 4" 841 SY 55.00$            46,255.00$            
69 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 5" 225 SY 60.00$            13,500.00$            
70 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 6" 110 SY 70.00$            7,700.00$              
71 7030-G Detectable Warnings 180 SF 50.00$            9,000.00$              
72 7030-H-1 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 7" 68 SY 68.00$            4,624.00$              
73 7030-H-2 Driveway, Granular 1074 SY 15.00$            16,110.00$            
74 7040-H Pavement Removal, PCC 184 SY 25.00$            4,600.00$              
75 7040-H Pavement Removal, Sealcoat 107 SY 15.00$            1,605.00$              
76 8020-B Painted Pavement Markings, Solvent/Waterborne 52 STA 100.00$          5,200.00$              
77 8030-A Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS 10,000.00$     10,000.00$            
78 SP-8940-A Sign Panels 127 SF 20.00$            2,540.00$              
79 SP-8940-B Sign Posts 198 LF 35.00$            6,930.00$              
80 9010-B Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Turf Seed 6 ACRE 3,000.00$       18,300.00$            
81 9010-B Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Native Seed 22 ACRE 2,500.00$       53,750.00$            
82 9010-B Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Erosion Control Mix 164 ACRE 2,000.00$       327,600.00$          
83 9030-C Landscaping 1 LS 175,000.00$   175,000.00$          
84 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management 1 LS 10,000.00$     10,000.00$            
85 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, 8" 10000 LF 3.00$              30,000.00$            
86 9040-D-2 Filter Sock, Removal 10000 LF 1.00$              10,000.00$            
87 9040-E-0 Temporary RECP, Type 2.C 36000 SY 2.00$              72,000.00$            
88 9040-J-0 Rip Rap, Class E 245 TON 70.00$            17,150.00$            
89 9040-N-1 Silt Fence or Silt Fence Ditch Check 40000 LF 1.00$              40,000.00$            
90 9040-N-3 Silt Fence or Silt Fence Ditch Check, Removal of Device 40000 LF 1.00$              40,000.00$            
91 9040-Q-2 Erosion Control Mulching 6 ACRE 2,250.00$       13,725.00$            
92 9040-T-1 Inlet Protection Device 45 EA 150.00$          6,750.00$              
93 11,020-A Mobilization 1 LS 350,000.00$   350,000.00$          

BASE BID TOTAL (ROUNDED): 8,714,000.00$       

285

Item 6.



 1  

CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

GOAL SETTING  
 

DECEMBER 7 & 9, 2021 

 

 

Goal Setting Work Sessions 
 

City Council members held goal setting work sessions on December 7 and 9, 2021.  

 

In attendance and participating at these meetings were council members Frank Darrah, Susan DeBuhr, 

Kelly Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, Gil Schultz and Mayor Rob 

Green. 

 

Also attending were Ron Gaines, city administrator, Jennifer Rodenbeck, director of finance and 

business operations, Stephanie Houk Sheetz, director of community development, Craig Berte, assistant 

public safety director/police chief, Chase Schrage, director of public works, and Jeff Olson, director of 

public safety. 

 
Policy Agreements  
The City Council discussed and reached consensus on the following items that will beaded, edited or 

deleted in the FY2023 City Council Goals, Work Program and Short-Term Financial Plan as noted 

below.  

 
 

GOAL #1: Deliver Responsive Local Government  

1.B.4. Encourage the professional development of City Council members, city commissioners and 

board members through staff-facilitated work sessions, training sessions, the Iowa League of Cities 

annual conference, the Municipal Leadership Academy, and innovative project presentations from other 

cities. 

1.B.6. Continue working with MET and other transportation options to explore public transportation 

options which meet the needs of Cedar Falls’ public transit-dependent residents at an affordable cost to 

the city.  

1.B.10. Maintain an online index of major city plans, policies, and documents for easy public reference. 

1.B.11. Continue to expand the City’s online services and website to take advantage of the prevalence of 

smartphones & other mobile devices in our community, while also ensuring that the less digitally 

advantaged can fully access city services.   

1.B.12 Continue to implement Nutrient Reduction Strategy as submitted to the Iowa Department of 

Natural Resources (IDNR) to update the existing Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

286

Item 7.



 2  

1.C.1.a. DELETE   

1.C.1.b. Maintain mutual aid agreements with Waterloo for faster emergency response times and lower 

callback expenses for both cities.  

1.C.1.d. DELETE 

1.C.2.e. Continue to provide paid internships to UNI students as a means to promote civic engagement.  

1.C.3.a. DELETE 

1.C.3.d. Continue to engage directly with High School student groups to introduce students to civic 

engagement. (e.g. CAPS program) 

1.C.3.e. Build collaboration between CFCSD and the City to highlight and celebrate the many cultures 

in the community and how they add value to our city.  

1.C. 3. F. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI. 

1.C.5.a. Continue to implement the Island Park Revitalization Plan.  

1.C.5.b. Continue to evaluate cost-effective measures to reduce damages resulting from Cedar River 

flooding.  

1.C.5.f. Continue to support the development of a city Resilience Plan to identify opportunities for 

increased city resiliency & sustainability. 

1.C.6.a Invest in organizational capacity and infrastructure by hiring a staff member to assist the city in 

achieving human rights and equity goals.   

1.C.6.b Continue to actively partner with the Black Hawk County Health Department, CFCSD, UNI, 

and Grow Cedar Valley to develop coordinated and supporting equity plans and initiatives. 

1.C.6.c. Build collaboration between the CFCSD and City to highlight and celebrate different cultures in 

the community and how they add value to the city. 

1.C.6.d. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI.  

1.c.6.e. Work with Human Rights Commission about forming a Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion (DEI) 

subcommittee or determine best approach to establishing a Cedar Falls Equity Committee.  

1.c.6.f. Work towards actively building capacity to create public engagement opportunities that are 

welcoming and inclusive.  

1.C.7.e. Develop a long-term participation protocol for public meetings including videoconferencing 

options. 

287

Item 7.



 3  

 

 

GOAL #2: Ensure Government Efficiency and Effectiveness  

 

2.B.13. DELETE  

 

2.C.2.f. DELETE 

 

2.C.2.k  Pursue the establishment of a new fire station along West First Street / Highway 57.  

 

2.C.2.m. Expand the reach of the City’s marketing and promotional campaigns regarding policing and 

racial equity efforts, beyond traditional media sources. 

2.C.2.n. Public Safety staff to review and implement viable Racial Equity Taskforce recommendations 

for policing.  

2.C.8.a. Add:  There will be redistricting impacts on Cedar Falls.  

2.C.8.b.1. Tax Cut/Tax Reform. Expect a wide-ranging discussion of ways to significantly lower income 

taxes in Iowa. One of those discussion items will be a review of the local option sales tax the cities 

currently collect. Local governments will need to forcefully advocate protecting the continuance of this 

funding.  

2.C.8.b.2. Restrictions on the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) and Tax Credits. House File 849 

was passed in the 2021 session that put 20-year sunsets on all TIF districts and may bring more 

discussion in 2022. Cedar Falls supports the continuation of TIF as the primary tool for communities to 

promote economic development.  

2.C.8.b.4. Cedar Falls will continue to oppose any unfunded mandates, reserve restraints ($8.10 levy, 

rollback, 411 pensions, recouping of legal costs associated with public record requests, etc.) erosions of 

Home Rule Amendment1 authority, and elimination of state tax credits used for economic development. 

2.C.8.c.2. Water and Wastewater Infrastructure. Cedar Falls supports state efforts to provide additional 

funding sources and flexible policies related to water, wastewater, and storm water infrastructure; these 

changes are necessary to meet the demands of increasing environmental regulation of cities. Funding for 

local government water and wastewater infrastructure may come through the State’s ARPA, 

Infrastructure, and COVID relief funds.    

2.C.8.c.3. University of Northern Iowa. During the 2021 legislative session, the City of Cedar Falls 

provided support for UNI’s legislative priorities and would expect to do so again in 2022.   

2.C.9.a. Continue to request federal transportation funding support for major street projects, including 

the Greenhill and Highway 58 interchange, including a city funding match. 

                                                 

 

288

Item 7.



 4  

2.C.9.b. Request federal funding for EPA mandated treatment plant improvements. 

2.C.9.c. Support CFU in securing federal grants for utility or telecommunication infrastructure projects 

which will benefit citizens through improved reliability, security, efficiency, accessibility, or 

environmental impacts.  

 

GOAL #3: Promote Economic Development 

3.C.1.j. Explore options for city support of expanded day-care options in Cedar Falls. 

3.C.1.k. Pursue expanded benefits and incentives to recently separated military members willing to 

relocate to Cedar Falls, as part of the state’s Home Base Iowa initiative. 

3.C.2.b. Change the city’s funding model for Grow Cedar Valley from an annual competitive grant to an 

annual contract to provide greater assurance of financial support to GCV. 

3.C.2.d. Continue to support the efforts of the Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation in 

advancing Cedar Falls’ economic interests. 

3.C.4.c. Revise the Major Thoroughfare Plan 

3.C.6.a. Continue to seek ways in to provide affordable housing options to residents by: 

1) Maximizing Section 8 funds available to provide as many vouchers as possible, given 

HUD guidance. 

2) Incentivizing improvements in Section 8 housing (with tools such as Community 

Development Block Grant rental rehabilitation program). 

3) Revising zoning codes to encourage a variety of housing types in every neighborhood, 

e.g., allow for Habitat for Humanity builds. 

4) Request to Housing Commission to explore and evaluate initiatives to balance 

investments in market rate and low-income housing (e.g., tax abatements, forgivable 

loans, gap payments on rent or mortgage, housing trust fund). 

 

2.  3.C.6.f. Complete a Housing Needs Assessment, focusing on how to provide housing variety to promote 

affordable housing options for all. 

3.C.6.g. Create educational messaging and outreach for landlords and citizens to emphasize the 

importance of healthy housing for all, along with destigmatizing affordable housing options such as 

Section 8 and Habitat for Humanity builds. 

3.C.6.h. Create a resource database of all federal, state and local programs that can be used to foster 

more homeownership among low- and moderate- income families and individuals. 

289

Item 7.



 5  

3.C.6.i. Create an ongoing educational program for low- and moderate-income families to access 

available homeownership assistance programs. 

3.C.6. j. Implement diversity, inclusion and affordability considerations and evaluation in all new 

housing development plans. 

3.C.6.k. Expand the forgivable loan program for conversion of rental properties to owner-occupied, 

expanded service area, and more qualifying expenses. 

3.C.10.b. Explore all options to building a downtown parking structure, in conjunction with a feasibility 

study and continual re-evaluation of paid parking options. 

3.C.11.b. Reserve TIF increment capacity to pay off debt incurred by the City/IDOT cooperative 

construction of US 58 interchanges. 

3.C.13.b. Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Program: Carry out separation of sanitary sewer and stormwater 

sewer lines from the footing drains when reconstructing streets. 

3.C.13.c. Extend sanitary sewer to areas that are unserved and remain on septic systems (i.e. South Main 

Street). 

3.C.14.a. Develop cooperative agreements with State Agencies to improve the following streets using RUT, 

LOST, and GO bonds, if necessary: 

Main Street Reconstruction – Use LOST, RUT, Stormwater, ARPA, and GO bonds to complete this 

project for construction 2023-2025. 

West 23rd Street Improvements – Use LOST, Assessment, and GO bonds to complete this project in 

FY2024. 

Ridgeway & 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa Department of Transportation’s project in 

FY2023-FY2024.  

West 27th Street Improvements – Use LOST, RUT, and GO bonds to complete this project in FY2021-

2023. 

3.C.14.c. Continue to develop the plans for the reconstruction of Union Road from 27th Street to 

University Avenue - Use LOST and RUT funds to complete this project.  Timing of project dependent 

on receipt of grant funding sources. 

3.C.15.a. Slope Repairs- Continue to develop plans to address significant slope failure issues. Use storm 

water funds to complete these projects. 

 

GOAL #4: Enhance Community Quality of Life  

290

Item 7.



 6  

4.C.14. Encourage private development for an official Independence Day fireworks display.  

4.C.15. Continue working with private property owners to remove trees impacted by emerald ash borer 

infestation. 

4.C.16. Design and develop facility improvements to Seerley Park. 

4.C.17. Have a work session to develop an ordinance to address political campaigning (federal, state and 

local) within the city’s parks. 

4.C. 18 DELETE 

4.C. 19. Continue pursuit of sister city partnerships and engagement, including in-person visits as part of 

major Iowa delegations. 

4.C.20. Update the Bike Plan. 

4.C.21. Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

 

GOAL #5: Foster Organizational Excellence 

5.A.2. Maintain clear lines and methods of communication between elected officials and city staff. 

5.A.6. DELETE 

5.A.7. DELETE  

5.C.1. Conduct a workforce climate assessment/employee satisfaction survey in FY23 to identify areas 

for improvement in human resources management and employee relations. 

 

ANNEX A: FY2023 Short-Term Financial Plan  

A.19. Coordinate and centralize all requests for grants, including the Black Hawk County Gaming 

Association.  

G.17. The city will seek minimum private donation match of 25% of/for recreation & quality of life 

projects.  Funds shall be escrowed or an agreement with the City Council needs to be executed prior to 

the project bid letting.  

 

G.18.a. General Obligation (GO) Bonds - $12.43 Million Total 

 Cameras ($.37 million) 

291

Item 7.



 7  

 Financial System ($.70 million) 

 Bridge & Culvert Replacements ($.10 million) 

 Sidewalks/Trails ($1.60 million) 

 Slope Repair ($.28 million) 

 Aldrich Elementary School Connections ($1.34) 

 Greenhill Road & South Main intersection improvements ($.55) 

 Fire bunker gear, thermal imaging cameras, and SCBA ($0.30 million) 

G.18.b. Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 

 Annual TIF Rebates 

 Main Street 

 Olive Street Box Culverts 

G.18.c. Road Use Taxes (Street Construction Fund) 

 Intersection improvements 

 Aldrich School Connections 

 West 22nd  

 West 27th  

G.18.d. Refuse Fund 

 Refuse trucks & equipment 

 Security cameras 

G.18.f. Sewer Fund 

 Sanitary sewer extensions 

 

Additional Notes from Presentation: 

Financial Policies to Develop Capital Improvements Program (CIP)  

292

Item 7.



 8  

 Only issue Replacement Debt – approximately $3.5 – 4 Million every other year 

 Maintain a Debt Strategy that protects at least 25-30% of capacity 

Financial Policies to Develop Budget 

 Increase on Residential Properties no more than CPI 

 Use Backfill for Capital Project 

 Continue to transfer TIF release to Ec Dev Fund 

 General Fund Cash Reserves – Maintain at 20%  

 

Budget/CIP Financial Policies 

 Savings – use general savings to fund certain projects like Public Safety Building, City 

Hall Remodel, and High School Pool 

 User Funds – Build in capital projects when establishing fees 

 Private Donations – 25% of cash project 

 Emergency Reserve Fund  

 

 

Final Comments 
 

It was a pleasure to assist the City of Cedar Falls with this goal setting process. We continue to be 

impressed with the progress that the City Council and city staff make each year toward your priority  

goals.  

 

 

Aimee Viniard-Weideman 

Iowa State University Extension and Outreach 

 

December 16, 2021 

 

 

293

Item 7.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

January 3, 2022 

 
The Committee of the Whole met at City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on January 3, 2022, with the following 
Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert Green and Councilmembers Sudan deBuhr, 
Kelly Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz and Dave Sires.  Planning 
& Zoning Commission members, staff members from all City Departments, and members of the 
community attended in person and teleconferenced in.   

Mayor Green called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, Capital 
Improvements Program (CIP) – Joint Meeting with Planning & Zoning Commission and 
introduced Jennifer Rodenbeck, Finance & Business Operations Director. 

Ms. Rodenbeck stated the CIP is a planning document and does not authorize or fund projects.  
Funding of projects will be coordinated with the annual budget process.  There are a total of 202 
projects for a total of $357,804,490 on the CIP.  City Council goals are incorporated into the 
CIP, which includes infrastructure (streets, sewer, stormwater), projects to be funded by 
emergency reserve, private donation goal, funding requests from gaming, Capital Projects 
funded by user fees, base general obligation (GO) funding on replacement debt and protect 25-
30% of debt capacity.  Ms. Rodenbeck gave an overview of featured projects that included: 
technology upgrades - financial system and web and mobile app redesign; quality of life projects 
- Cedar River Recreational Improvements-Phase 1 and new high school pool; Street projects - 
21 projects on the CIP that use road use tax or local option sales tax, Main Street 
reconstruction, and West 27th Street; Storm Water Project - 11 projects, a proposed rate 
increase will be coming to Council, Olive Street Box Culvert, Slope repair at Greenwood 
Cemetery, Slope repair at West Ridgeway Drive; Sewer Projects - 20 projects, will have a 5 
year rate increase of 7% each year and Nutrient Reduction Improvements (Bond funding:  107.8 
million & ARPA funding: 4.6 million).  Ms. Rodenbeck gave a summary of GO debt that we are 
selling; as of 2022 we have approximately $3.8 million, $3.9 million for 2024 and $3.6 million for 
2026.  Ms. Rodenbeck explained the effect of the GO debt on the CIP is very low use of debt 
limit and 2.33% increase in taxes over the 5 year period (1/2 percent each year).  Ms. 
Rodenbeck stated the formal public hearing and consideration by Council will be January 18th.                  

Mayor Green opened it for council discussion.  Councilmembers expressed concern with 
removing the funding for College Hill zoning, while other Councilmembers were in support of 
removing the funding for College Hill zoning in FY23.  Councilmember Harding motioned to 
include funding for item #54 (Comprehensive Plan & Zoning Code Updates) for FY23 for 
$150,000 and Councilmember Dunn seconded.  Mayor called for a vote on the motion.  Aye:  
Dunn, Harding and Schultz.  Nay:  Sires, Ganfield, Kruse and deBuhr.  Motion failed.  
Councilmember deBuhr asked if #56 (Housing Needs Assessment) and item #61 (Sample Plans 
for Residential Building Types) should be paid by the developer, instead of the City.  Ms. 
Rodenbeck explained that item #56 is driven from the Racial Equity Task Force 
recommendations.  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development explained that 
item #61 was established to help development move forward and have established building 
plans that are approved by architects that include images, current codes, and setbacks for the 
Downtown Character District Zoning code.  Councilmember Kruse discussed different options 
with staff on more cost effective ways to provide housing plans.  Councilmembers discussed the 
pros and cons to these housing plans.  Councilmember Kruse motioned to delay item #61 
(Sample Plans for Residential Building Types) until FY24 for $40,000 and Councilmember 
deBuhr seconded.  Mr. Bob Manning, 2908 W 3rd Street, stated these plans encourage 
developers and help narrow down size and options of houses.  Planning & Zoning 

294

Item 8.



Commissioner Mr. Leeper stated this is less about the stamped set of drawings but more about 
a catalog of possible ideas.  Mayor called for a vote on the motion.  Aye: Sires, Ganfield, 
Harding, Kruse, deBuhr and Schultz.  Nay:  Dunn.  Motion passed.  Councilmember deBuhr 
asked if the developer’s share is listed as the private funding of $40,000 on the line item (Item 
#124-Streets: Various Intersection Improvements); Ms. Rodenbeck stated yes.  Councilmember 
Kruse has concerns about item #36 (Parking Lot:  Downtown Parking Ramp Study) and item 
#35 (Parking Lot: Downtown Lot Improvements) since a parking study was recently completed.  
Ms. Rodenbeck stated at this time staff is trying to determine next steps in the parking process; 
whether that’s forming a committee, discussion of creating a fee structure.  It was determined to 
leave a placeholder for possible studies related to a ramp, but not necessarily a parking study.  
Ms. Rodenbeck stated a study or contract would come before Council for approval.           

Mayor Green moved to the second item on the agenda, Pavement & Alley Management 
Programs.  David Wicke, City Engineer gave an overview of the pavement management 
program.  Mr. Wicke gave an overview of streets that will be reconstructed which included: W. 
18th Street, Madison St., E. Ridgeway Dr., Woodland Dr.; and street restoration will include: 
Linden Ave., Laurel Circle, Lone Tree Rd., Grand Blvd., Greenhill Rd., and Nordic Dr.  Mr. 
Wicke explained the North Cedar Heights Area is a 5 year plan and it will begin in 2022 and end 
in 2026.  Mr. Wicke stated the bicycle network has recommended adding sharrows for both 
directions of traffic for W. 18th Street.  Mr. Wicke introduced Mr. Claypool, City of Cedar Falls 
Civil Engineer II.  Mr. Claypool gave an overview of 2023-2026 reconstruction and restoration 
street projects.  Mr. Claypool stated Cedar Falls has a total of 166 alleys; in 2021 the goal is 2-3 
permeable alleys yearly and 1-2 commercial/priority alleys yearly.  Mr. Claypool stated if alleys 
are located in the watershed areas (Jennings & College Square - 13 alleys within these areas) 
that funding allocations are available through Iowa DNR & IDALS grants.  In 2023 five alleys are 
slated to be replaced by either concrete or permeable; Mr. Claypool gave an overview for alleys 
slated to be replaced from 2024-2026.  Mr. Wicke recommended a motion to approve 2023 
pavement and alley management plans to have staff proceed with final design.  Mayor opened it 
for Council discussion.  Councilmember Kruse asked about the North Cedar drainage issue; 
Director Schrage stated that North Cedar is included in the 2026 CIP.  Councilmember Schultz 
asked about the overlay from Ford to Hiawatha  and how it’s determined to overlay instead of 
reconstruction; Mr. Wicke stated the general criteria is age of pavement, has there been a 
previous overlay and rate of deterioration.  Councilmember Schultz asked if utilities would be 
replaced; Mr. Wicke stated only if it’s required.  Councilmember Sires asked about cost of 
alleys; Mr. Claypool estimated the cost would be approximately $310,000 for 2023 and the 
target rate is $300,000 per year and this completes two concrete and three permeable alleys.  
Councilmember deBuhr motioned to approve the 2023 pavement and alley management plans.  
Councilmember Kruse seconded.  Motion passed.            

There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:53 p.m.  

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

 

295

Item 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Police Chief 

Date:  January 10, 2022 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) AmericInn Lodge and Suites, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B beer - renewal. 

b) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

c) Golf Lab, 201 Washington Street, Class B beer - new. 

 

296

Item 9.



  

 

 

 

FY2023 City Council Goals,  
Work Program and  

Short-Term Financial Plan 
 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

Mission: Maintain and improve the safety and desirability of Cedar Falls 
through the efficient delivery of public services, and the ongoing practice of 

open communication among Council, Staff, Mayor, and Citizens. 

Contents 
References Cited in this Document...................................................................................................... 2  

Abbreviations Used in this Document ................................................................................................. 3  

1. GOAL #1: DELIVER RESPONSIVE LOCAL GOVERNMENT. ............................................. 4 

2. GOAL #2: ENSURE GOVERNMENT EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS. ..................... 9 

3. GOAL #3: PROMOTE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. ......................................................... 17 

4. GOAL #4: ENHANCE COMMUNITY QUALITY OF LIFE .................................................. 24 

5. GOAL #5: FOSTER ORGANIZATIONAL EXCELLENCE. ................................................... 26 

ANNEX A:  FY2023 SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN ............................................................... 1 

 

297

Item 10.



 
 

 
2 of 27 

 

References Cited in this Document 
 

a. Future Forward 2025 Community-Wide Strategic Plan (2020).  Link 
b. INRCOG/MPO Safe Routes to Schools Study (2011). Link  
c. Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (2020).  Link 
d. Performance-Based Pay (Merit Pay) Policy. Link 
e. Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, 11-II (Minimum Rental Housing Code). Link 
f. City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan (2012).  Link 
g. City of Cedar Falls Economic Development Website. Link 
h. Cedar Falls Zoning Ordinance. Link 
i. College Hill Parking Study Final Report (2019). Link 
j. College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan (2012). Link 
k. Northern Cedar Falls Visioning Committee Report (2008).  Link 
l. Downtown Parking Study Final Report (2019). Link 
m. Recreation & Fitness Center, Operations & Facilities Needs (2018). Link 
n. Northern Cedar Falls Development Master Plan. Link 
o. Cedar Falls Parks Master Plan.  
p. Cedar Falls Environmentally Sensitive Lands Survey (2007).  Link 
q. Trail and Bus Bench Snow Removal Map. Link 
r. Comprehensive Pay Plan (2018). Link 
s. Tuition Assistance Program Policy Link 
t. Employee Wellness Program Policy Link 

 

 

 

 

298

Item 10.



 
 

 
3 of 27 

 

Abbreviations Used in this Document  
 
 28E – A multiagency agreement filed under Iowa Code 28E.    

 CD – Community Development 

 CHP – College Hill Partnership 

 CDBG – Community Development Block Grant 

 CFCSD – Cedar Falls Community School District 

 CIP – Capital Improvements Program 

 CJIS – Criminal Justice Information System 

 CMS – Community Main Street 

 CSO – Community Service Officer 

 CFU – Cedar Falls Utilities 

 DNR – Iowa Department of Natural Resources 

 EPA – U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

 FBO – Finance and Business Operations 

 FY – Fiscal Year 

 GCV – Grow Cedar Valley 

 GO – General Obligation 

 IDOT – Iowa Department of Transportation 

 INRCOG -- Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments 

 LOST – Local Option Sales Tax 

 MET – Metropolitan Transit Authority 

 MPO – Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 POC – Paid On Call 

 PSS – Public Safety Services 

 PSO – Public Safety Officer 

 PT – Part-Time 

 PW – Public Works 

 ROW – Right of Way 

 RUT – Road Use Taxes 

 SSMID – Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District 

 TIF – Tax Increment Financing 

 UNI – University of Northern Iowa 

 WWTP – Waste Water Treatment Plant 

 

  

299

Item 10.



 
 

 
4 of 27 

 

1.  GOAL #1: DELIVER RESPONSIVE LOCAL GOVERNMENT.  
Continue to provide a representative system, which identifies and anticipates 
concerns, problems, and opportunities which are effectively addressed with 
thoughtful and decisive governmental actions for the benefit of the citizens. 

1.A. SUPPORTING COUNCIL POLICIES 

1.A.1. Set policies and guidelines, and provide broad direction to the City Administrator, 
who in turn formulates management decisions to provide efficient service offerings 
and operations. 

1.A.2. As a policy-making body, interpret community needs and values and convey them to 
City staff through consistent legislative and policy actions. 

1.A.3. Continue to provide a forum for public input related to City actions through open 
public meetings, hearings, committees, commissions, task forces, local access cable 
television, and web-based media. 

1.A.4. Encourage active public input into the City’s various boards, commissions, task 
forces, and other advisory bodies.  

1.A.5. Continually explore and evaluate improved methods of communication with citizens 
to informing them of City activities and accomplishments. 

1.B. LONG-TERM AND ONGOING OBJECTIVES 

1.B.1. Continue to hold annual meetings with CFU to discuss the impacts and strategies to 
deal with the on-going transfer of Utility funds in lieu of property taxes, franchise 
taxes, use of right-of-way, TIF reimbursement, and support of entrepreneurship.  

1.B.2. Hold joint meetings with policy-making City boards such as the Library Board and 
the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

1.B.3. Consider holding when timely, joint meetings with the Waterloo City Council, Black 
Hawk County Supervisors, CFCSD and UNI on matters of mutual interest. 

1.B.4. Encourage the professional development of City Council members, city 
commissioners and board members through staff-facilitated work sessions, training 
sessions, the Iowa League of Cities annual conference, the Municipal Leadership 
Academy, and innovative project presentations from other cities. 

1.B.5. Expand on existing collaborations with the City of Waterloo, CFU, UNI, Black 
Hawk County, and other governmental bodies to provide high-quality public 
services at lower cost; examples include art & culture services, airport operations, 

300

Item 10.



 
 

 
5 of 27 

 

public safety services, transit systems, economic development coordination, 
emergency response, sewer infrastructure, and shared facilities / equipment. 

1.B.6. Continue working with MET and exploring other transportation options which meet 
the needs of Cedar Falls’ public transit-dependent residents at an affordable cost to 
the city.  

1.B.7. Continue to support the development of the five-year Community-Wide Strategic 
Plan [reference (a)] to help coordinate the long-term efforts of the City’s many 
stakeholders. 

1.B.8. Continue using the city’s quarterly Currents newsletter, websites, cable television, 
social media and other technologies to provide relevant information about City 
services, activities, and schedules to residents. 

1.B.9. Continue expanding the Communication Specialist role to facilitate increased 
communications with the public about all aspects of city government 

1.B.10.  Maintain an online index of major city plans, policies, and documents for easy 
public reference. 

1.B.11. Continue to expand the City’s online services to take advantage of the prevalence of 
smartphones & other mobile devices in our community, while also ensuring that the 
less digitally advantaged can fully access city services.   

1.B.12. Continue to implement Nutrient Reduction Strategy as submitted to the Iowa 
Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) to update the existing Wastewater 
Treatment Facility. 

1.C. FY23 DETAILED OBJECTIVES 

1.C.1. City of Waterloo Objectives. 

1.C.1.a. Maintain mutual aid agreements with Waterloo for faster emergency 
response times and lower callback expenses for both cities.  

1.C.1.b. Support coordination with Waterloo directly and through INRCOG/MPO on 
common legislative goals.  

1.C.1.c. Support cooperative efforts to upgrade the County Consolidated 
Communications Center (911 dispatch) while exploring options to minimize costs 
assessed to Cedar Falls. 
 

1.C.2. University of Northern Iowa (UNI) Objectives. 

301

Item 10.



 
 

 
6 of 27 

 

1.C.2.a. Continue to collaborate with UNI to address public safety, parking, College 
Hill neighborhood, equitable payment for City services, sharing of facilities and 
elimination of duplicated governmental services. 

1.C.2.b. Continue to explore the viability of shared service contracts with UNI for 
policing, fire protection, dispatch, street maintenance, utilities, and recreational 
facility development and usage. 

1.C.2.c. Continue to coordinate the development of new City open field recreational 
uses with UNI to minimize the purchase of additional land; this approach will allow 
City funds to be used for site development. 

1.C.2.d. Engage with Iowa Workforce Development and UNI to explore 
opportunities to retain recent UNI graduates in Cedar Falls. 

1.C.2.e.  Continue to provide paid internships to UNI students as a means to promote 
civic engagement. 

 

1.C.3. Cedar Falls Community School District (CFCSD) Objectives. 

1.C.3.a. Assist CFCSD with infrastructure improvements that create parking 
areas, joint City/Schools playgrounds, and building expansion areas. 

1.C.3.b. Support improvements to parking and pedestrian traffic near public 
schools in accordance with the Safe Routes to Schools Study [reference (b)]; 
examples of such design are Orchard Hill Elementary, Southdale Elementary, 
and Lincoln Elementary.  

1.C.3.c. Coordinate with CFCSD on the completion of the new Cedar Falls 
High School; identify local, county and state facilities, programs and property 
which can minimize duplication of services. 

1.C.3.d. Continue to engage directly with High School student groups to 
introduce students to civic engagement (e.g.CAPS program). 

1.C.3.e. Build collaboration between CFCSD and the City to highlight and 
celebrate the many cultures in the community and how they add value to our 
city.  

1.C.3.f. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between 
businesses and UNI. 

1.C.3.g. Participate in a community-wide equity committee. 

302

Item 10.



 
 

 
7 of 27 

 

1.C.4. Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) Objectives. 

1.C.4.a. Annually consider repaying eligible CFU expenses (if excess TIF 
revenues exist) for CFU projects completed in City TIF districts.1 

1.C.4.b. Support CFU in the implementation of water service programs, as 
CFU is the sole governmental entity authorized by code to provide these 
services. 

(1) Implement public water special assessment programs (if requested by 
CFU) to install a public water system in un-serviced areas2, if 
requested and financially supported by a majority of benefited 
property owners. 

(2) Use CDBG funding (if eligible) to pay for water service line 
connection for all residents who are income-eligible and property 
taxes to pay for fire hydrant installation; CFU will pay for all water 
line over-sizing and property owners will pay all other expenses, less 
any other funding sources. 

1.C.4.c. Continue to explore sustainability and resiliency initiatives jointly with 
CFU. 

1.C.5. Resiliency and Sustainability Objectives. 

1.C.5.a. Continue to implement the Island Park Revitalization Plan.  

1.C.5.b. Continue to evaluate cost effective measures to reduce damages 
resulting from Cedar River flooding.  

1.C.5.c. Continue to support conversion of city buildings to LED lighting, 
when cost-effective, to reduce the City’s electricity demand. 

1.C.5.d. Continue to support the conversion of unused City property to native 
tallgrass prairie (when practical) to reduce storm water runoff, minimize lawn 
maintenance requirements, and provide habitat for wildlife and pollinators. 

1.C.5.e. Continue to support the conversion of select gravel alleys to 
permeable alleys (when funds permit) to reduce gravel erosion and pollution 
from storm runoff. 

                                                 
1 Reimbursement would be subject to CFU maintaining a fair and updated annual transfer that equitably compensates 
the City for return on investment from City ownership, property taxes, franchise fees and use of ROW. 
2 Examples include parts of northern Cedar Falls, Viking Place, Horseshoe Drive and some rural properties. 

303

Item 10.



 
 

 
8 of 27 

 

1.C.5.f. Continue to support the development of a city Resilience Plan to 
identify opportunities for increased city resiliency & sustainability. 

1.C.6. Racial Equity and Human Rights Objectives.  

1.C.6.a. Invest in organizational capacity and infrastructure through hiring 
under Human Resources personnel to achieve human rights and equity goals.   

1.C.6.b. Continue to actively partner with the Black Hawk County Health 
Department, CFCSD, UNI, and Grow Cedar Valley to develop coordinated 
and supporting equity plans and initiatives. 

1.C.6.c. Build collaboration between the CFCSD and City to highlight and 
celebrate different cultures in the community and how they add value to the 
city. 

1.C.6.d. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between 
businesses and UNI.  

1.C.6.e. Work with Human Rights Commission about forming a Diversity, 
Equity, & Inclusion (DEI) subcommittee or determine best approach to 
establishing a Cedar Falls Equity Committee. 

1.C.6.f. Work towards actively building capacity to create public engagement 
opportunities that are welcoming and inclusive.  

1.C.7. General Governance Objectives. 

1.C.7.a. Continue support for ‘Mayor’s Updates’ to inform the City Council, 
Cedar Falls residents and stakeholders of the status of Council priorities, City 
projects, upcoming activities and key information.  

1.C.7.b. Continue to specify in council agenda memos and presentations how 
a project or topic fits into the City Council’s stated goals and priorities. 

1.C.7.c. Maintain a directory of governmental units, neighborhood groups, 
and other stakeholders the City Council would periodically like to meet with 
to discuss common interests.  

1.C.7.d. Maintain an online calendar of civic events of relevance to city 
elected officials, published with as much advance notice as possible to 
facilitate attendance.  

1.C.7.e. Develop a long-term participation protocol for public meetings, 
including videoconferencing options. 

304

Item 10.



 
 

 
9 of 27 

 

1.C.7.f. Hold city council work sessions on council meeting Mondays to 
discuss complex or potentially contentious matters, including: 

(a) Political Campaigning (federal / state / local) within City Parks 

(b) Resilience Plan – Final Report 

 

2.  GOAL #2: ENSURE GOVERNMENT EFFICIENCY AND 
EFFECTIVENESS.   
Equitably deliver services in a cost effective, efficient, professional, and 
timely manner. 

2.A. SUPPORTING COUNCIL POLICIES 

2.A.1. Carry out the Short-Term Financial Plan (Annex A).  

2.A.2. Ensure that the community’s health, safety, and welfare are protected through the 
provision of essential cost-effective, efficient, professional, and timely public 
services.  

2.A.3. Adopt a balanced budget reflecting the community's economic climate and needs. 

2.A.4. Continue to monitor the impacts of the State of Iowa’s roll back of 
commercial/industrial taxable values without long-term guaranteed backfill funding. 

2.A.5. Maintain a budget philosophy of self-sufficiency in all major funds. 

2.A.6. Adopt a Capital Improvements Program annually which coordinates major capital 
expenditures and is responsive to property tax levies and the City's debt restrictions. 

2.A.7. Maintain a stable property tax rate relative to the consumer price index. 

2.A.8. Deposit funds in excess of annual operations expenses (including released TIF 
funds) in a capital reserve account for projects such as the repurposing of city hall, 
economic development, public land acquisition, redevelopment or other one-time 
expenses approved by the City Council. 

2.A.9. Evaluate each newly proposed service to determine the cost, relative importance and 
value of each service, and to identify unnecessary duplication within City-sponsored 
programs. 

2.A.10. Identify and implement cost-effective methods to save energy within City 

305

Item 10.



 
 

 
10 of 27 

 

operations. 

2.B. LONG-TERM AND ONGOING OBJECTIVES 

2.B.1. Continue to monitor the City's capacity to provide adequate maintenance of its 
growing infrastructure. Maintain a long-term maintenance plan, including a 
contingency plan to respond to reductions in maintenance funds if encountered in the 
long term. 

2.B.2. Continue to dedicate future accumulating cash generated by mid-year budget 
reductions for one-time future expenses such as capital projects. 

2.B.3. Continue to dedicate TIF release dollars generated by expired TIF areas to future 
economic development projects.  

2.B.4. Continue to explore appropriate opportunities for privatization of city services 

2.B.5. Continue the annual street repair program using RUT and LOST revenues.  

2.B.6. Ensure that essential services (public safety, parks, sewers, roads, refuse collection) 
are offered, while constantly exploring ways to increase efficiency in delivery. 

2.B.7. Encourage civic involvement and volunteerism by citizens to reduce costs, including 
recycling, picking up leaves, moving cars to assist with efficient snowplowing, 
cleaning sidewalks, Friends of the Library, Friends of the Hearst Center, and Police 
Reservists.  

2.B.8. Maintain the appropriate number of alternative staff in police and fire while 
improving services and reducing overtime costs by annually recruiting, if necessary 
new Police Reservists, volunteers, PSOs and POC staff. 

2.B.9. Periodically conduct an evaluation of the costs and benefits of participation in the 
County Consolidated Communications Center and CJIS. Determine the fair share of 
costs that should be assigned to Cedar Falls while exploring a "county funded" 
system. 

2.B.10. Maintain the Police Community Service Officer (CSO) program to help supervisory 
personnel with office duties, allowing supervisors to work closer with the public and 
provide direction in the field supervision of down-line employees. 

2.B.11. Maintain staffing levels in all departments that reduce overtime by matching staffing 
levels to specific service demands as opposed to predetermined rigid standards. 

2.B.12. Return City property to the tax base (when possible) to support revenue generation 
and economic development. 

306

Item 10.



 
 

 
11 of 27 

 

 

2.C. FY23 DETAILED OBJECTIVES 

2.C.1. General Cost Savings Objectives. 

2.C.1.a. Evaluate cost-effective alternatives to keep City departments staffed 
and functional. 

2.C.1.b. Continue the review of open positions as they occur. 

2.C.1.c. Continue the practice of succession planning to identify talented 
internal candidates when a vacancy is expected to occur. 

2.C.1.d. Continue to promote cross-training programs and alternative 
employment practices for most effective use of city staff. 

2.C.1.e. Continue to explore the sharing of services with other jurisdictions. 

2.C.2. Public Safety Objectives. 

2.C.2.a. Continue to support and provide feedback on the Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan for Black Hawk County [reference (c)] and other 
intergovernmental emergency response plans. 

2.C.2.b. Continue the City’s PSO model, which hires Public Safety Officers 
for cross-training in law enforcement, firefighting, and rescue operations. 

2.C.2.c. Continue to review the staffing levels of the POC and Reserve 
programs to ensure the most efficient use of Public Safety funds and 
personnel. 

2.C.2.d. Actively solicit Public Safety Services Department employees to 
participate in the POC and PSO programs to increase their availability for 
service. 

2.C.2.e. Expand the use of PSOs, part time staff, and POCs to adequately staff 
fire stations without adding full-time staff or overtime expenses. 

2.C.2.f. Continue using supervisor performance measurement tools to hold 
first line supervisors accountable for daily staffing decisions.  

2.C.2.g. Ensure that weekends and holidays are fully-scheduled productive 
workdays for shift personnel. 

2.C.2.h. Minimize fire shift overtime, using volunteers, PSOs, POCs, part-

307

Item 10.



 
 

 
12 of 27 

 

time staffing or other cross trained positions to reduce callbacks and staff 
scheduling expenses. 

2.C.2.i. Use the Performance Based (Merit Based) Pay Policy [reference (d)] 
to reward supervisors who successfully respond to workload demands with 
decisions that adequately protect the safety of employees and the public while 
minimizing overtime and callback expenses. 

2.C.2.j. Exercise management rights to schedule full staffing to avoid 
overtime expenses on days where known special public events will tax 
personnel resources.  

2.C.2.k. Pursue the establishment of a new fire station along West First Street 
/ Highway 57.  

2.C.2.l. Maintain a fire station staffing plan that directs personnel to stations 
where the highest number of calls for service occurs. 

2.C.2.m. Expand the reach of the City’s marketing and promotional 
campaigns regarding policing and racial equity efforts, beyond traditional 
media sources. 

2.C.2.n.  Support Public Safety staff review and implementation of viable 
Racial Equity Taskforce recommendations for policing.  

2.C.3. Code Enforcement Objectives. 

2.C.3.a. Continue to identify and implement methods designed to better 
coordinate inspections while enforcing land use, property maintenance codes, 
rental housing, and zoning and nuisance ordinance violations citywide with 
cooperative and coordinated actions by the City’s departments. 

2.C.3.b. Continue the full-time Code Enforcement Officer position to enforce 
parking, property maintenance, snow removal, zoning, housing, building, and 
nuisance codes. 

2.C.3.c. Enforce 48-hour parking laws in response to snow events, citizen 
complaints, habitual violations, and when public safety is compromised. 

2.C.3.d. Prioritize code enforcement on issues related to health & safety, 
property maintenance and over-crowding or over-occupancy. 

2.C.3.e. Continue rental inspections on a 3-year cycle. 

2.C.3.f. Expand building maintenance code inspections and enforcement city-

308

Item 10.



 
 

 
13 of 27 

 

wide, including in the College Hill area. 

2.C.3.g. Continue to coordinate and consolidate federally subsidized rental 
and minimum rental housing inspection duties.  

2.C.3.h. Continue to evaluate the efficacy of the Landlord Accountability 
Ordinance [reference (e)] annually. 

2.C.3.i. Implement traffic and parking controls based on public input 
meetings, test cases, sound engineering / best practices, and specific structural 
or safety limitations (street width, density, traffic flow and safety). 

2.C.3.j. Enforce laws prohibiting illegal parking on private property (front 
yards and non-conforming lots). 

2.C.3.k. Enforce over-occupancy regulations. 

2.C.3.l. Enforce parking restrictions on all streets less than 31’ in width, based 
on the need for public safety vehicle accessibility. 

2.C.3.m. Employ traffic calming devices, when appropriate, to address 
neighborhood traffic concerns. 

2.C.3.n. Consider ordinance changes recommended by the Single Family 
Conversion task force to limit the number of converted single family homes in 
neighborhoods. 

2.C.4. Fire Prevention and Suppression Programs Objectives. 

2.C.4.a. Continue to assign Minimum Rental Housing, Section 8 Rental and 
Commercial Inspection duties to Fire shift personnel whenever possible. 

2.C.4.b. Continue annual smoke detector inspections in businesses and 
residences, recognizing that smoke detectors identify fire hazards at the 
earliest possible time. 

2.C.4.c. Staff fire stations whenever possible with a combination of career, 
PSO, POC, PT, ambulance and volunteer staff to maintain readiness while 
reducing staffing costs. 

2.C.4.d. Continue placing firefighting ensembles in police vehicles for faster 
response times. 

2.C.4.e. Continue deploying CAFS equipment in select police vehicles to 
provide faster fire suppression response times. 

309

Item 10.



 
 

 
14 of 27 

 

2.C.4.f. Encourage the Fire Chief to exercise management authority in 
implementing fire station staffing plans, and encourage the Battalion Chiefs to 
use management discretion in determining daily staffing levels using 
alternative staff. 

2.C.5. Yard Waste & Refuse Objectives. 

2.C.5.a. Determine if yard waste collection programs should be altered or 
expanded based on the efficiency of material collection, customer satisfaction 
and general cost efficiency. 

2.C.5.b. Evaluate City-operated leaf vacuum collection rates to determine if 
they are set at levels that encourage property owners with small volumes of 
leaves to compost, mulch or utilize ‘City’ container disposal methods; ensure 
that the rate offers a cost-effective option for property owners who must 
dispose of large volumes of leaves. 

2.C.5.c. Evaluate how the expansion of the hours of operation for the yard 
waste drop off site has impacted revenues and expenditures.  

2.C.5.d. Continue the City’s public relations program to encourage the 
environmentally safe disposal of yard waste. 

2.C.5.e. Continue to review refuse fees, when timely, to ensure that sufficient 
revenues exist to cover all collection costs. 

2.C.6. Stormwater and Wastewater Objectives. 

2.C.6.a. Review sewer rental fees to ensure that sufficient revenue exists in 
the next several years to pay for EPA mandated treatment plant improvements 
and other sewer projects. 

2.C.6.b. Continue to review stormwater fees, when timely, to determine if 
sufficient fees exist to pay for projected storm water costs outlined in the CIP.  

2.C.7. General Legislative Objectives. 

2.C.7.a. Continue using lobbyists to influence legislative action related to 
municipal issues. 

(1) Continue to contract with a professional lobbyist to represent City 
interests to the State legislature. 

(2) Continue membership in the Iowa League of Cities to lobby for all 
Iowa cities.  

310

Item 10.



 
 

 
15 of 27 

 

2.C.7.b. Continue to oppose changes to TIF laws that would impair the use of 
TIF as an economic development tool. 

2.C.7.c. Continue to support property tax reform initiatives that eliminate the 
rollback formula that shifts burdens among classes of property. 

2.C.7.d. Continue to meet with legislators to increase rapport, gain insight into 
current legislative directions, and to apprise them of the City's revenue 
generation challenges, as well as the negative impact of legislation (including 
unfunded mandates, tax exempt and rollbacks).  

2.C.7.e. Continue pre- and post-legislative session meetings with area 
representatives to discuss topics of mutual interest. 

2.C.8. State Legislative Objectives. 

2.C.8.a. Introduction. The November 2020 elections resulted in no changes in 
the political party that will control the Iowa House and Iowa Senate, along 
with the Governor’s office; Republicans will maintain “trifecta” control of 
these three institutions for both the 2022 legislative session.  There will be 
redistricting impacts on Cedar Falls.  

2.C.8.b. State Legislative Concerns.  

(1) Tax Cut/Tax Reform. Expect a wide-ranging discussion of ways to 
significantly lower income taxes in Iowa.  One of those discussion 
items will be a review of the local option sales tax the cities currently 
collect.  Local governments will need to forcefully advocate 
protecting the continuance of this funding.  

(2) Restrictions on the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) and Tax 
Credits. House File 849 was passed in the 2021 session that put 20-
year sunsets on all TIF districts and may bring more discussion in 
2022.  Cedar Falls supports the continuation of TIF as the primary 
tool for communities to promote economic development.  

(3) Restrictions on Local Control of Decision-making.  Such legislation 
runs contrary to the intent of the Iowa Constitution’s Home Rule 
Amendment.   

(4) Other Concerns.   Cedar Falls will continue to oppose any unfunded 
mandates, reserve restraints ($8.10 levy, rollback, 411 pensions, 
recouping of legal costs associated with public record requests, etc.) 

311

Item 10.



 
 

 
16 of 27 

 

erosions of Home Rule Amendment3 authority, and elimination of 
state tax credits used for economic development. 

2.C.8.c. State Legislative Opportunities. 

(1) Housing.  Cedar Falls supports state efforts to provide additional 
resources to communities for housing construction, including more 
state support of local housing trust funds and expansion of the 
Workforce Housing Tax Credits. An Economic Recovery Advisory 
Board was created in 2020 to make recommendations for helping 
Iowa recover from COVID-19.  Part of their recommendations will 
include several to increase funding for workforce housing tax credits 
and the State Housing Trust Fund.  Passage of these 
recommendations might provide an opportunity for the City of Cedar 
Falls to secure financial assistance for housing initiatives in the city. 

(2) Water and Wastewater Infrastructure. Cedar Falls supports state 
efforts to provide additional funding sources and flexible policies 
related to water, wastewater, and storm water infrastructure; these 
changes are necessary to meet the demands of increasing 
environmental regulation of cities. Funding for local government 
water and wastewater infrastructure may come through the State’s 
ARPA, Infrastructure, and COVID relief funds.    

(3) University of Northern Iowa. During the 2021 legislative session, the 
City of Cedar Falls provided support for UNI’s legislative priorities, 
and would expect to do so again in 2022.   

2.C.9. Federal Legislative Objectives. 

2.C.9.a. Continue to request federal transportation funding support for major 
street projects, including the Greenhill and Highway 58 interchange, including 
a city funding match. 

2.C.9.b. Request federal funding for EPA mandated treatment plant 
improvements. 

2.C.9.c. Support CFU in securing federal grants for utility or 
telecommunication infrastructure projects which will benefit citizens through 

                                                 
3 The home rule amendments of the Iowa Constitution give cities and counties authority to determine their own local 
affairs and government in a manner which is not inconsistent with state statute, except that home rule power and 
authority does not extend to the authority to levy a tax without the express authorization of the General Assembly.  See 
https://www.legis.iowa.gov/DOCS/LSA/Legis_Guide/2009/LGLSL054.PDF. 

312

Item 10.



 
 

 
17 of 27 

 

improved reliability, security, efficiency, accessibility, or environmental 
impacts.  

3.  GOAL #3: PROMOTE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT.  
Create an environment conducive to economic development. 

3.A. SUPPORTING COUNCIL POLICIES 

3.A.1. Function as a catalyst to encourage business development and expansion in Cedar 
Falls. 

3.A.2. Continue to support public and private economic development efforts in Cedar Falls 
and the metropolitan area. 

3.B. LONG-TERM AND ONGOING OBJECTIVES 

3.B.1. Develop initiatives, when financially feasible, to support the economic development 
goals contained in the city’s Comprehensive Plan [reference (f)] 

3.B.2. Implement a long-term plan for the development of future TIF districts. This plan 
should include ways to acquire land and provide adequate infrastructure utilizing 
cooperative efforts with other groups and agencies. 

3.B.3. Continue the systematic and strategic buyout of flood-prone properties to retain 
viable areas based on quality of infrastructure, elevation and contiguousness. 

3.B.4. Prepare on a project–by-project basis an in-depth analysis of the long-term economic 
benefits vs. public investment/risk for each private/public cooperative economic 
development venture; the analysis must conclude that the long-term financial benefit 
derived by Cedar Falls taxpayers clearly out-weighs the risk of public financial 
assets. 

3.C. FY23 DETAILED OBJECTIVES 

3.C.1. General Economic Development Objectives. 

3.C.1.a. Offer economic development incentives on par with other Iowa cities 
to remain competitive in the site selection process. 

3.C.1.b. Continue to support and develop the city’s economic development 
website [reference (g)].  

3.C.1.c. Use TIF funds to acquire land for development into marketable 
industrial lots. 

313

Item 10.



 
 

 
18 of 27 

 

3.C.1.d. Use TIF funds to provide cash incentives to developers and business 
owners when consistent with City economic development policies. 

3.C.1.e. Explore the establishment of a University Avenue Corridor TIF 
district.  

3.C.1.f. Review downtown incentives (following adoption of new zoning) to 
consider the increase in assessed value and to incentivize enhanced 
architectural design or public benefits.  

3.C.1.g. Provide property tax abatement (based on current schedules) for 
projects meeting adopted job creation and tax base growth criteria.  

3.C.1.h. Continue to allocate TIF funds for redevelopment projects on College 
Hill, in Downtown, and in northern Cedar Falls.  

3.C.1.i. Continue to dedicate funds for expanding economic development 
marketing efforts.  

3.C.1.j. Explore options for city support of expanded day-care options in 
Cedar Falls. 

3.C.1.k. Pursue expanded benefits and incentives to recently-separated 
military members willing to relocate to Cedar Falls, as part of the state’s 
Home Base Iowa initiative. 

3.C.2. Regional Economic Development Organization Objectives. 

3.C.2.a. Continue regional economic development partnership with Grow 
Cedar Valley. 

3.C.2.b. Change the city’s funding model for Grow Cedar Valley from an 
annual competitive grant to an annual contract to provide greater assurance of 
financial support to GCV. 

3.C.2.c. Monitor economic development agencies (CMS, CHP and GCV) to 
determine if the City’s cash subsidies result in services of value to Cedar Falls 
citizens and businesses.  

3.C.2.d. Continue to support the efforts of the Cedar Falls Economic 
Development Corporation in advancing Cedar Falls’ economic interests. 

3.C.3. Regional Tourism Objectives 

3.C.3.a. Continue to maintain a dedicated Cedar Falls Visitors & Tourism 

314

Item 10.



 
 

 
19 of 27 

 

Bureau. 

3.C.3.b. Continue to coordinate marketing and programming efforts between 
the UNI, Cedar Falls and Waterloo Visitors and Tourism Bureaus for all 
Metro tourist events. 

3.C.4. Comprehensive Planning, Engineering and Building Objectives. 

3.C.4.a. Develop a grading ordinance for all new and existing developments. 

3.C.4.b. Implement the City’s Comprehensive Plan [reference (f)] with 
emphasis on: 

(1) Design standards which protect urban watersheds by encouraging 
developers to utilize natural methods of storm water control rather 
than traditional underground storm water collection and disposal 
systems. 

(2) Clear standards for growth, streets, street connectivity and 
walkability. 

(3) Low-maintenance landscaping in the city right-of-way, when cost-
effective. 

(4) Trails and on-road accommodation of bicyclists, when possible. 

(5) Traffic calming devices and design approaches to address 
neighborhood traffic concerns, when practical. 

3.C.4.c. Revise the Major Thoroughfare Plan. 

3.C.5. Zoning Ordinance Economic Development Objectives. 

3.C.5.a. Support the development of a comprehensive new Zoning Ordinance 
[reference (h)] to replace the Zoning Ordinance first adopted in 1970.  

3.C.5.b. Consider new zoning and traffic control regulations to better control 
density and parking problems by reducing the number of multiple family and 
duplex conversions.  

3.C.5.c. Consider changes to zoning regulations which would limit the 
conversion of single-family properties to rental uses, to protect neighborhood 
stability and character. 

3.C.5.d. Consider changes to zoning regulations, policies and land use plans to 

315

Item 10.



 
 

 
20 of 27 

 

restrict development of non-profit uses on prime commercial sites along 
arterial streets. 

3.C.5.e. Consider developing a Zoning Ordinance (and Subdivision 
Ordinance) to accommodate features that encourage mixed uses, variable 
building setbacks, walkability, sustainability and complete street concepts. 

3.C.5.f. Consider developing, as a part of the new Zoning Ordinance, a new 
zoning map which includes pre-zoned areas. 

3.C.5.g. Support the pre-zoning of select properties for residential 
development and shorten the development timeline by identifying 
neighborhood concerns and responding with developmental limitations. 

3.C.5.h. Annex additional lands into the city (if requested by property owners) 
to support community growth and development consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan [reference (f)]. 

3.C.6. Affordable Housing Development Objectives. 

3.C.6.a. Continue to seek ways in to provide affordable housing options to 
residents by: 

(1) Maximizing Section 8 funds available to provide as many vouchers as 
possible, given HUD guidance. 

(2) Incentivizing improvements in Section 8 housing (with tools such as 
Community Development Block Grant rental rehabilitation program). 

(3)  Revising zoning codes to encourage a variety of housing types in 
every neighborhood, e.g., allow for Habitat for Humanity builds. 

(4) Encouraging the Housing Commission to explore and evaluate 
initiatives to balance investments in market rate and low-income 
housing (e.g., tax abatements, forgivable loans, gap payments on rent 
or mortgage, housing trust fund). 

3.C.6.b. Review City construction standards to identify possible changes 
which can promote the construction of affordable housing. 

3.C.6.c. Identify existing older homes which can provide a market to meet 
affordable housing demand.  

3.C.6.d. Target potential developers with Requests for Proposals for 
affordable housing development, if federal or state grants can be secured.  

316

Item 10.



 
 

 
21 of 27 

 

3.C.6.e. Partner with Habitat for Humanity to build/rehabilitate homes on city-
owned lots.  

3.C.6.f. Complete a Housing Needs Assessment, focusing on how to provide 
housing variety to promote affordable housing options for all. 

3.C.6.g. Create educational messaging and outreach for landlords and citizens 
to emphasize the importance of healthy housing for all, along with 
destigmatizing affordable housing options such as Section 8 and Habitat for 
Humanity builds. 

3.C.6.h. Create a resource database of all federal, state and local programs that 
can be used to foster more homeownership among low- and moderate- income 
families and individuals. 

3.C.6.i. Create an ongoing educational program for low- and moderate-income 
families to access available homeownership assistance programs. 

3.C.6.j.  Implement diversity, inclusion and affordability considerations and 
evaluation in all new housing development plans. 

3.C.6.k. Expand the forgivable loan program for conversion of rental 
properties to owner-occupied, expanded service area, and more qualifying 
expenses. 

3.C.7. Commercial and Office Economic Development Objectives. 

3.C.7.a. Support the private development of commercial (retail & wholesale), 
professional office and industrial expansions to improve the City’s residential 
to commercial/industrial land use mix from an 80/20 assessed value split to a 
50/50 assessed value split. 

3.C.7.b. Consider diagonal on-street parking within neighborhoods where 
structurally feasible and where parking deficiencies can be solved with this 
approach. 

3.C.7.c. Continue development of the city-owned properties along the 
relocated Highway 20 corridor and establish a new urban renewal area if 
appropriate. 

3.C.7.d. Study the future use, ownership and corporate jurisdiction of land 
along the Highway 20 corridor, including cooperative arrangements with the 
City of Hudson if petitioned by property owners for annexation. 

3.C.8. College Hill Economic Development Objectives. 

317

Item 10.



 
 

 
22 of 27 

 

3.C.8.a. Carry out the recommendations of the College Hill Parking Study 
[reference (i)]. 

3.C.8.b. Continue to enact the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan 
[reference (j)]. 

3.C.9. Northern Cedar Falls Economic Development Objectives. 

3.C.9.a. Continue to enact the recommendations of the Northern Cedar Falls 
Visioning Committee Report [reference (k)]. 

3.C.9.b. Continue to support the development of commercial uses in the 
northeast corner of Lone Tree Road/Center Street and at the Lone Tree Road 
interchange. 

3.C.9.c. Continue to promote the development of commercial growth along 
Center Street through streetscaping and beautification efforts in the ROW. 

3.C.10. Downtown Economic Development Objectives. 

3.C.10.a. Consider adopting an Urban Revitalization District in the Downtown 
area, following the adoption of new zoning ordinance.  

3.C.10.b.  Explore all options to building a downtown parking structure, in 
conjunction with a feasibility study and continual re-evaluation of paid 
parking options. 

3.C.11. Industrial Economic Development Objectives. 

3.C.11.a. Create a new urban renewal area by acquiring additional land in 
areas that are attractive to the private sector for industrial development yet can 
be efficiently developed at a low public cost. 

3.C.11.b. Reserve TIF increment capacity to pay off debt incurred by the 
City/IDOT cooperative construction of US 58 interchanges. 

3.C.11.c. Continuing to aggressively repay Industrial Park TIF debt owed to 
the City debt service, economic development and capital project funds. 

3.C.12. MercyOne – Cedar Falls Hospital Economic Development Objectives. 

3.C.12.a. Plan for site development using current Health Trust Fund monies.  

3.C.12.b. Organize a staff/council committee to determine options and best 
uses for the original Sartori Hospital site once a new hospital is constructed 

318

Item 10.



 
 

 
23 of 27 

 

elsewhere. 

3.C.13. Flood Control, Storm Water, Sanitary Sewer and Water Improvement Objectives. 

3.C.13.a. Complete priority wastewater treatment system improvements: 

3.C.13.b. Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Program: Carry out separation of 
sanitary sewer and stormwater sewer lines from the footing drains when 
reconstructing streets. 

3.C.13.c. Extend sanitary sewer to areas that are unserved and remain on septic 
systems (i.e. South Main Street). 

3.C.14. Street Improvement Objectives. 

3.C.14.a. Develop cooperative agreements with State Agencies to improve the 
following streets using RUT, LOST, and GO bonds, if necessary: 

(1) Main Street Reconstruction – Use LOST, RUT, Stormwater, ARPA, 
and GO bonds to complete this project for construction 2023-2025. 

(2) Cedar Heights Drive – Use MPO and State safety grants to help fund 
this project. The City’s match will come from LOST, RUT, and GO 
bonds for construction in 2020-2023. 

(3) West 23rd Street Improvements – Use LOST, Assessment, and GO 
bonds to complete this project in FY2024. 

(4) Ridgeway & 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa Department 
of Transportation’s project in FY2023-FY2024.  

3.C.14.b. Explore and establish agreements with developers to complete the 
connection of the following streets: 

(1) Arbors Drive -- Aldrich Elementary to Greenhill Road 

(2) Ashworth Drive – Prairie Winds to Hudson Road 

(3) Ashworth Drive – Connection to Arbor Drive 

(4) Ironwood Drive – Connection to Greenhill Road 

(5)  West 27th Street Improvements – Use LOST, RUT, and GO bonds to 
complete this project in FY2021-2023. 

3.C.14.c. Continue to develop the plans for the reconstruction of Union Road 

319

Item 10.



 
 

 
24 of 27 

 

from 27th Street to University Avenue - Use LOST and RUT funds to 
complete this project.  Timing of project dependent on receipt of grant 
funding sources. 

3.C.15. Miscellaneous Infrastructure Repairs. 

3.C.15.a. Slope Repairs- Continue to develop plans to address significant 
slope failure issues. Use storm water funds to complete these projects. 

4.  GOAL #4: ENHANCE COMMUNITY QUALITY OF LIFE  
Preserve the community’s physical, human, and aesthetic assets by assuring that 
Quality of Life services are available for leisure, educational, cultural and 
personal enrichment of residents. 

4.A. SUPPORTING COUNCIL POLICIES 

4.A.1. Actively support the development of cultural, educational, recreational, and natural 
features, which make Cedar Falls distinctive. 

4.A.2. Endorse planned community growth, which protects the unique, natural, and historic 
features of Cedar Falls. 

4.B. LONG-TERM AND ONGOING OBJECTIVES 

4.B.1. Continue to review and evaluate the ways in which the City can enhance racial and 
cultural diversity and inclusion in Cedar Falls 

4.C. CY22 DETAILED OBJECTIVES 

4.C.1. Continue planning for Hearst Center expansion/relocation. 

4.C.2. Continue to use the Recreation & Fitness Center, Operations & Facilities Needs 
Assessment [reference (m)] to determine the viability of expansion. 

4.C.3. Implement, when financially feasible, an enhanced riverfront as a visitor attraction 
consistent with the Northern Cedar Falls Development Master Plan [reference (n)]. 

4.C.4. Coordinate with CFCSD to purchase land for future parks in developing areas when 
possible. 

4.C.5. Assist in the solicitation of grants and development of the Cedar River including 
dam safety improvements, riverbank improvements, and recreational features. 

4.C.6. Update the Park Master Plan [reference (o)] to account for city growth, changing 

320

Item 10.



 
 

 
25 of 27 

 

needs and desires of the public, and updating of equipment and facilities. 

4.C.7. Continue to implement portions of the Park Master Plan [reference (o)] for the Big 
Woods Lake, Gateway Park and Cedar City sites. 

4.C.7.a. Improve the Big Woods Campground (cabins, playground, and 
landscaping) as funding becomes available and as floodplain development 
ordinances allow. 

4.C.8. Develop an annual street right-of-way beautification, wayfinding signage, bike 
network signage, and city entrance signage & monument program using hotel/motel 
tax revenues. 

4.C.9. Consider recommendations from City staff when alternative roadway designs are 
appropriate based on safety, roadway efficiency and financially feasible; typically, 
these opportunities arise when a street is scheduled for resurfacing or reconstruction 
allowing the City to address issues involving landscaping, pedestrian movements, 
transit, bike and vehicular traffic. 

4.C.10. Protect areas identified in the Cedar Falls Environmentally Sensitive Lands Survey 
[reference (p)] as city finances allow. 

4.C.11. Identify trails most appropriate for winter snow removal and inform the public via an 
annually-published Trail and Bus Bench Snow Removal Map [reference (q)].  

4.C.12. Develop a Great American Rail Trail Connection Plan to identify possible 
improvements, wayfinding, and other amenities along the Cedar Falls portion of this 
cross-country route 

4.C.13. Continue collaboration with CFCSD on the development of plans for a new indoor 
community pool, co-located with the new Cedar Falls High School. 

4.C.14. Encourage private development for an official Independence Day fireworks display.  

4.C.15. Continue working with private property owners to remove trees impacted by 
emerald ash borer infestation. 

4.C.16. Design and develop facility improvements to Seerley Park. 

4.C.17. Have a worksession to develop an ordinance to address political campaigning 
(federal, state and local) within the city’s parks. 

4.C.18. Continue pursuit of sister city partnerships and engagement, including in-person 
visits as part of major Iowa delegations. 

321

Item 10.



 
 

 
26 of 27 

 

4.C.19. Update the Bike Plan. 

4.C.20. Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

5.  GOAL #5: FOSTER ORGANIZATIONAL EXCELLENCE.  
Select, train, motivate and retain highly-qualified employees who represent the 
city in a professional manner. 

5.A. SUPPORTING POLICIES 

5.A.1. Provide an employee wage and benefit schedule that is competitive with other 
municipalities in the state of Iowa and private enterprise in the metro area. 

5.A.2. Maintain clear lines and methods of communication between elected officials and 
city staff. 

5.A.3. Treat employees with respect and expect that they, in turn, will treat citizens with 
respect. 

5.A.4. Encourage and management and supervisory employees to be creative and 
innovative in the delivery of city services. 

5.A.5. Promote continuous quality improvement in all city government operations. 

5.B. LONG-TERM AND ONGOING OBJECTIVES 

5.B.1. Continue to monitor the ability to attract and retain quality staff.  

5.B.2. Continue to support the Performance Based Pay (Merit Pay) Policy [reference (d)] to 
reward superior staff performance and encourage the retention of high performers.  

5.B.3. Expand cross-training programs for employees to improve service without 
increasing staffing. 

5.B.4. Seek methods to reduce employee health insurance costs by altering benefits, 
seeking greater financial contribution from employees and modify methods of 
employee health service delivery. 

5.C. FY23 DETAILED OBJECTIVES 

5.C.1. Conduct a workforce climate assessment / employee satisfaction survey in FY23 to 
identify areas for improvement in human resources management and employee 
relations. 

5.C.2. Continue to evaluate whether to fill an opening or proposed newly created position.  

322

Item 10.



 
 

 
27 of 27 

 

5.C.3. Explore restructuring, merging, or eliminating unnecessary positions as they become 
vacant. 

5.C.4. Develop and maintain maintaining multi-year staffing and succession plans. 

5.C.5. Implement and maintain updates to the city’s Comprehensive Pay Plan [reference (r)]. 

5.C.6. Continue to fund the City’s tuition assistance program [reference (s)] for employees.  

5.C.7. Encourage employees to use the City’s wellness program [reference (t)] and 
continue to offer incentives for participation.  

5.C.8. Update the staffing plan to address employment attrition, retirements and the use of 
PT, PSOs, POCs, Police Reservists, volunteers or other cross-training programs to 
respond to long-term staffing needs. 

323

Item 10.



 
 

A-1 

ANNEX A:  
FY2023 SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 

A. FY23 BUDGET POLICIES 

1. Limit tax increases to no more than the rate of inflation on residential properties for 
controllable costs. 

2. City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount of legally incurred TIF 
debt annually by December 1st for all completed City and CFU construction work within 
the TIF Districts to better position the City and CFU financially. Continue to transfer TIF 
release funds to economic development fund to cash-flow economic development 
projects.   

3. Use State aid (including backfill if provided) only to fund one-time capital expenditures 
or non-reoccurring expenses, rather than for operating expenses. 

4. Requests for aid from any group will only be considered once annually during the annual 
budget process. Mid-year requests will be deferred to the next fiscal year unless they are 
emergency in nature. Financial aid will only be provided if there is not financial hardship 
on City offered essential services and the services proposed are not duplicated. 

5. Applications for City funding support from UNI will only be accepted from the Vice 
President of Administration and Finance once annually. This process ensures that all UNI 
projects or programs seeking City financial aid have been approved by UNI management 
and prioritized. 

6. All outside agencies seeking City financial support shall submit formal applications for 
review by a committee of staff members with recommendations forwarded to the Mayor 
and City Council; considerations for approval shall include timely reporting, 
performance, public benefit, funding options and service priority. 

7. Escrow Fund Policies. 

a. The City will escrow funds annually to pay accrued liabilities.  

b. The City will address annually these commitments by budgeting and depositing in a 
restricted account funds to pay these liabilities when they occur.  

c. The City will not un-fund liabilities in escrow accounts; these include severance, 
payroll, liability insurance, vehicle replacement, data processing, workmen's 
compensation, long-term disability and all pensions. 

8. Continue to assess user fees for specific City services at rates approved by the Council. 

324

Item 10.



 
 

A-2 

9. Explore the use of State authorized tax levies for statutory services, if the General Fund 
experiences financial limitations. 

10. The Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund shall only budget expenditure of interest income 
generated by the fund minus an interest income contribution into the fund’s principal 
equal to the rate of inflation in health care. Principal should only be used in negotiating a 
development agreement for a new hospital or a health care provider.  

11. Interest income generated from the 411 Pension reserve fund shall be used to pay the 
required City contribution to annual 411 expenses. No portion of the principal shall be 
used for operating purposes. 

12. Road Use taxes shall only be deposited in the Street Construction fund with their use 
limited to street operations and maintenance purposes. 

13. Consider adding General Fund financial support for annual maintenance expenses to 
better landscape public roadways. 

14. Maintain capital and maintenance reserve accounts generated from user fees set aside to 
pay for future capital repairs or facility replacement of benefit to the users contributing 
(examples include the Recreation Center, Aquatic Center, Hearst Center, Beach House, 
Big Woods Campground and golf courses). 

15. The CFU transfer made to the City in lieu of property taxes shall be deposited in the 
General Fund to off-set the cost of supplying City services. Transfer funds shall also be 
set aside in a capital account to finance various one-time capital projects. 

16. Maintain liability, work compensation and health insurance reserves as required by law 
or policy to support the City’s self-insurance programs. 

17. Evaluate annually the ability of the Library Board to utilize Community Foundation Trust 
accounts to support select programs, operations and capital needs. 

18. TIF-qualified SSMID funds collected from Downtown and College Hill SSMID District 
will be allocated to Community Main Street and College Hill Partnership rather than for 
City TIF debt payments. 

19. Coordinate and centralize all requests for grants, including the Black Hawk County 
Gaming Association.  

 

 

325

Item 10.



 
 

A-3 

B. FY23 BUDGET CONTINGENCY POLICIES 

1. Prioritize all city services if budget reductions are required; this will allow for the most 
cost effective use of Federal Aid to pay eligible ‘essential’ service operating expenses as, 
if the operating expenses are not reoccurring or if more efficient staffing can be achieved.  

2. Reduce City financial aid to outside agencies if funding shortfalls risk damaging the 
provision of essential services; annually notify agencies if funding reductions are 
anticipated for the next fiscal year. 

C. FY23 CASH RESERVES POLICIES 

1. The City will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined by 
Council to meet cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating criteria.  

Fund Type Percent Minimum Absolute Minimum 

General Fund 15-25%4 Not specified 

Refuse Fund 20-30% $500,000 

Sewer Fund 65-75% $1,500,000 

Street Fund 20-30% $1,000,000 

Storm Water Fund 10-20% $200,000 

Emergency Fund5 N/A $1,500,000 

D. FY23 REVENUES POLICIES 

1. Description. The revenue projection process starts with estimates submitted by the 
departments for their specific areas. Finance reviews those estimates and makes informed 
judgments on all revenues City-wide. Prior year’s actual and current year-to-date 
amounts are used to project both the current year and next year's revenues. Information 
received from the State, County, and Iowa League of Cities is utilized to project revenue 
trends and anticipated amounts.  

                                                 
4 The City Council established Resolution 9054 that the General Fund balance be maintained between 15 and 25% 
and preferably at the 20-25% level, allowing for the seasonal cash flows. Work towards closer to 25%. 
5 This fund will be used to help cash flow repairs and staff costs should a catastrophic event occur.  Council 
expressed a desire to bring this fund closer to $2M in the next five years. 

326

Item 10.



 
 

A-4 

2. Approval. Finance will use conservative interest rate projections, current balances and 
interest accrual information, projects interest earnings. The Mayor and City 
Administrator will review revenues, expenditures and ending fund balances to determine 
if any revenue adjustments need to be made. 

3. Revenue Source Policies.  

a. Property Taxes. The budget of the City of Cedar Falls shall be drawn so that the 
general tax levy does not exceed limits established by State law. 

b. Debt Service Levy. Taxes shall be levied each year under the Debt Service Levy in the 
amount equal to the general obligation principal and interest due in that same year, 
minus the portion paid by the enterprise funds and Cedar Falls Utilities. 

c. Tort Liability Levy. The City may levy for the expected costs of property and liability 
insurance policies and estimated claims losses held by the City. 

d. Employee Benefits Levy. The City's share of contributions to police and fire pension 
and retirement systems, at rates determined by the State of Iowa, for currently 
employed sworn officers. The City’s share of contributions for employee benefits 
budgeted under the General Fund only if the general tax levy is at the $8.10 
maximum. Tax revenues under the employee benefits levy will be receipted into the 
Trust and Agency Fund and then transferred into the General Fund. 

e. Emergency Management Levy. Levy for all dispatch, 911 and emergency operation 
costs assigned to the City of Cedar Falls. 

f. Transit Levy. Taxes levied under the transit levy shall not exceed the 95-cent limit 
established by State law. Transit levy tax revenues will be receipted into the General Fund. 

g. Band Levy. Taxes levied under the Band Levy shall not exceed the 13.5-cent limit 
established by State law. Tax revenues from the band levy will be receipted into the 
General Fund. 

h. Library Levy. Taxes levied under the library levy shall not exceed the 27-cent limit 
established by state law. Tax revenues from the library levy will be used to support the 
library. Approximately 50% of the levy will be used for new materials and services and 
approximately 50% will be used to lower general fund support to the library. 

i. Sales Tax. The City of Cedar Falls collects an additional 1% in local option sales tax. 
The revenues and expenditures under this program are recorded in a separate fund 

j. Hotel/Motel Tax. The City currently has a 7% hotel/motel tax with 50% of the income 
generated by the imposition of the tax being devoted to the Visitors and Tourism 

327

Item 10.



 
 

A-5 

Division. The other 50% is devoted to programs related to parks, lakes, trails, and 
recreational/cultural facilities. 

k. Fees and Charges. The City will establish fees and charges, in accordance with 
revenue bond requirements or for covering all or part of the related costs of providing 
the services. The City will review fees and charges, at a minimum, on a biannual 
basis. 

l. Investments. The City will invest 100% of idle funds and will obtain the best possible 
return on all cash investments within the limits of the State law. 

m. Intergovernmental Revenue. Revenues from local, State and Federal governments 
will be used according to the restrictions or intent placed on each. 

n. Additional Revenue Sources. The City will continue searching for additional revenues 
to maintain a balanced budget. 

E. FY23 EXPENDITURES POLICIES 

1. Current Service Level: Funding will be prioritized to maintain current levels of service. 

2. Cost Effective Programs: Technology and capital investment programs will be leveraged 
to reduce operating expenses whenever cost-effective. 

3. Infrastructures and Equipment: The City will maintain the scheduled level of mainte-
nance and replacement for City infrastructure and equipment. 

4. Local Option Sales Tax: 100% of LOST proceeds will be spent on street repair in 
accordance with the stipulations set by the voters and City Council resolution.6 

5. Reductions: The City will attempt to avoid service reductions when balancing the budget. 
Consideration will be given first to alternatives which avoid employee layoffs, resist cuts 
in service, and establish user fees. Parameters for downsizing shall ensure that (1) no 
essential service be eliminated; (2) service with high public visibility and exposure 
remain intact, and (3) reductions will first be made in internal functions. 

F. FY23 LONG-TERM DEBT POLICIES. 

                                                 
6 City Council Resolution 15,596 provides that, “Zero percent (0%) of said local sales and services tax is to be used 

for property tax relief. One hundred percent (100%) of the revenue generated in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
during each fiscal year from said local sales and services tax is to be allocated for reconstruction, repair or 
replacement of existing streets, curbs, structures, storm sewers and sanitary sewers as they relate to streets within 
the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and not as replacement funds for the present funding levels, as 
authorized by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

328

Item 10.



 
 

A-6 

1. Purpose of Debt: Debt will be used to fund the design, inspection and construction of 
capital improvement projects, rather than for annual operating expenses. 

2. Debt Limit: The total GO debt will not exceed 5% of total assessed real property value.  

3. Debt Issuance: New debt issuance shall not exceed a replacement debt level. Existing 
debt should be refinanced to secure the lowest possible interest costs, whenever possible. 

4. Self-Financing: Self-financing or cash (where allowed) will be used to fund one-time 
projects if excess cash reserves exist. 
 

G. FY23 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM POLICIES. 

1. Description. The Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is a planning document and does 
not authorize or fund projects. The projects listed in the CIP are summarized in the 
capital projects program.  

2. Approvals. The CIP is prepared by the Finance & Business Operations Department for 
review by the Department Directors, City Administrator, Mayor, and Planning and 
Zoning Commission; the CIP is then submitted to the City Council for approval.  

3. The City will make all capital improvements in accordance with the adopted CIP. The 
City will develop and annually update a multi-year plan for capital improvements.  

4. The City will enact an annual capital budget based on the multi-year capital improvement 
plan. Future capital expenditures necessitated by changes in population, changes in real 
estate development, or changes in economic base will be calculated and included in 
capital budget projections. 

5. The City will coordinate development of the capital improvement budget with 
development of the operating budget. Future operating costs associated with new capital 
improvement will be projected and included in operating budget forecasts.  

6. The City will use intergovernmental assistance to finance only those capital 
improvements consistent with the CIP and City priorities and where operating and 
maintenance costs have been included in operating budget forecasts. 

7. The City will maintain all assets at a level adequate to protect the City's capital 
investment and to minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. 

8. The City will project its equipment replacement and maintenance needs for the next 
several years and will update this projection each year in order to implement a 
maintenance and replacement schedule. 

329

Item 10.



 
 

A-7 

9. The City will not finance equipment or projects with a projected life span less than a 
bond’s maturity through the sale of GO bonds. 

10. The City will not finance ongoing operating expenses with GO or revenue bonds. 

11. The CIP will incorporate the least costly financing method for all new projects.  

12. The City will maintain a long-term financial plan to address inadequacies in “City 
managed” infrastructure in unserved areas of the City and progressively add them to the 
CIP when cost effective (if consistent with long-range growth plans). 

13. The CIP will incorporate a debt management strategy emphasizing the protection of at 
least 25-30% of the City's debt capacity.  

14. The City will develop a plan that addresses competing projects, priorities and timing to 
meet this objective jointly by soliciting input from the Planning and Zoning Commission 
to ensure that projects are timely, unduplicated and supportive of long-range plans. 

15. The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt level, which typically 
ranges from $3.0 - $4.0 million dollars every other year; CFU uses the City’s bank 
qualified financing capacity in off bond sale years. 

a. In FY23, the City will budget for a $3.0 - $4 million dollar GO bond sale. 

b. The City will use emergency reserve funds for projects identified in the CIP. 

(1). The city will retain a balance of $1.5-2 million for emergencies  

16. The City will incorporate when timely, properly planned, safely engineered and 
financially feasible and design appropriate street and growth concepts in the planning and 
design of all capital projects. 

17. The city will seek minimum private donation match of 25% of/for recreation & quality of 
life projects.  Funds shall be escrowed or an agreement with the City Council needs to be 
executed prior to the project bid letting.  

18. FY23 Capital Improvements Program Approved Projects: 

a. General Obligation (GO) Bonds - $12.43 Million Total 

 Cameras ($.37 million) 

 Financial System ($.70 million) 

 Gateway Parking Lot ($.20 million) 

330

Item 10.



 
 

A-8 

 Hearst Center Expansion ($.70 million) 

 Cedar River Recreation Improvements ($.50 million) 

 High School Pool (.70 million) 

 Entrance Signs (.04 million) 

 Bridge & Culvert Replacements ($.10 million) 

 Infrastructure oversizing ($.30 million) 

 Sidewalks/Trails ($1.60 million) 

 Slope Repair ($.28 million) 

 Storm Sewer Extension ($.48 million) 

 Annual Street Repair Program ($.36 million) 

 Aldrich Elementary School Connections ($1.34) 

 Cedar Heights Drive reconstruction ($1.22 million) 

 Greenhill Road & South Main intersection improvements ($.55) 

 Main Street Reconstruction ($1.65 million) 

 West 1st Street ($.15 million) 

 West 22nd Street ($.06 million) 

 West 23rd Street ($.05 million) 

 West 27th Street ($.10 million) 

 Pedestrian Bridge Replacement ($.08 million) 

 Fire bunker gear, thermal imaging cameras, and SCBA ($0.30 million) 

 Issuance expenses ($0.60 million) 
 

b. Tax-Increment Financing (TIF) 

 Annual TIF Rebates 

331

Item 10.



 
 

A-9 

 Downtown Streetscape 

 Hwy 58 and Greenhill Road Intersection 

 Main Street 

 Viking Road Reconstruction 

 Industrial Park Expansion 

 Gibson Property Development 

 Ridgeway Avenue bridge replacement 

 Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction 

 Comprehensive Plan & Zoning ordinance updates 

 Land Acquisition 

 Street and sewer infrastructure improvements 

 Olive Street Box Culverts 

 Landscaping, alleys, brick replacement, wayfinding signage, parking, lot 
improvements, & utility improvements associated with streetscape 
improvements in Downtown and College Hill. 
 

c. Road Use Taxes (Street Construction Fund) 

 Street equipment 

 Parking improvements 

 Permeable Alley program 

 Signalized intersection upgrades 

 Intersection improvements 

 Traffic planning studies 

 Bridges 

 Annual Street Repair program 

332

Item 10.



 
 

A-10 

 Aldrich School Connections 

 Cedar Heights Drive 

 Greenhill Road intersection improvements 

 Main Street 

 Union Road 

 West 12th  

 West 22nd  

 West 27th  

 

d. Refuse Fund 

 Refuse trucks & equipment 

 Security cameras 

 Compaction equipment 

 

e. Emergency Fund  

 Cedar River recreational improvements ( $1.0 million) 

 Center Street improvements ($.8 million) 

 School Administration site ($.7 million) 
 

f. Sewer Fund 

 Waste Water Treatment Plant 

 Nutrient Removal/Facility Plan 

 Slipline sewers 

 I&I reduction 

333

Item 10.



 
 

A-11 

 Oak Park sewer replacement 

 West 1st Street 

 West 27th Street 

 Sewer equipment 

 Infrastructure oversizing 

 Sewer collection study 

 Lift station pump repairs 

 Annual Street Repair program 

 Sanitary sewer extensions 

334

Item 10.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: January 7, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Depository Resolution 

 

We have received notification changing the name of NXT Bank to Heartland Bank & 
Trust.  Attached please find an updated Depository Resolution with this change.   All 
other financial institutions will remain unchanged. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please telephone Finance & Business 
Operations Director Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108 or myself 268-5105.  Thank you. 
 
 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Finance & Business Operations Director 
 

335

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION NAMING OFFICIAL DEPOSITORIES  
FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered 

approving the following list of financial institutions to be depositories of the City of Cedar 

Falls, in conformance with all applicable provisions of the Code of Iowa Chapter 12C 

(2019), and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said list of financial institutions, 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

that the following list of financial institutions to be depositories of the City of Cedar Falls, is 

hereby approved and designated officials of the City of Cedar Falls are hereby authorized to 

deposit funds in amounts not to exceed the maximum approved for each respective financial 

institution as set forth below. 

  MAXIMUM MAXIMUM 
 LOCATION OF UNDER THIS UNDER PRIOR 
DEPOSITORY NAME HOME OFFICE RESOLUTION RESOLUTION 

 
BankIowa Waterloo $30,000,000 $30,000,000 
Collins Community Credit Union Cedar Rapids 40,000,000 40,000,000 
Community Bank & Trust Waterloo 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Denver Savings Bank Denver 4,000,000 4,000,000  
Farmers State Bank Waterloo 40,000,000 40,000,000 
First Bank Cedar Falls 30,000,000 30,000,000 
First Security State Bank Evansdale 3,000,000 3,000,000 
Dupaco Community Credit Union Dubuque 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Great Western Bank Sioux Falls, SD 40,000,000 40,000,000  
GreenState Credit Union North Liberty 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Heartland Bank & Trust Bloomington, IL  15,000,000 15,000,000 
Lincoln Savings Bank Reinbeck 30,000,000 30,000,000 
MidWestOne Bank Iowa City 40,000,000 40,000,000 
Regions Bank Birmingham, AL 30,000,000 30,000,000 
U.S. Bank N.A. Des Moines 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Veridian Credit Union Waterloo 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Wells Fargo Bank Des Moines 50,000,000 50,000,000 
 

ADOPTED this 18th day of January, 2022. 
                                                                                                         
______________________________ 

                                                                                        Robert M. Green, Mayor 
           ATTEST: 
 
 

 ____________________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

336

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

 

RESOLUTION PLACING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON THE ISSUANCE OF BUILDING 

PERMITS FOR CONSTRUCTION IN THE URBAN GENERAL, URBAN GENERAL 2 AND 

STOREFRONT DESIGNATIONS IN THE DOWNTOWN CHARACTER DISTRICT (CD-DT) OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

       WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, adopted Ordinance No. 2994 on 

November 1, 2021; and 

       WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2994 in relevant part amended Chapter 26 of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by establishing a new zoning district known as the Downtown Character 

District, and adopting regulations and procedures with respect to said zoning district; and 

       WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to study and 

review for possible revision the regulations and procedures governing said Downtown Character District 

as well as the Downtown Character District itself; and 

       WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate that during the period of study and review, and 

prior to adoption of any revisions of Chapter 26 of the Code of Ordinances, that a moratorium on issuance 

of any building permits be declared in certain areas of the Downtown Character District for a reasonable 

period of time in order to protect the status quo as an integral part of such study and review. 

       NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA: 

       1.  A moratorium is hereby placed on the issuance of any building permit otherwise required in the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, for any construction in the following designations 

within the Downtown Character District zoning district in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa: 

Urban General 

Urban General 2 

Storefront 

All as the same are depicted in the Downtown Character District Regulating Plan attached hereto and 

incorporated by this reference.  The moratorium shall take effect immediately and shall expire at 12:01 

a.m. on May 1, 2022, or upon enactment of an ordinance revising the Downtown Character District, 

whichever occurs first.    

       ADOPTED this _____ day of ________________________, 2022. 

 

                                                                                                 ATTEST:                                                                                                        

_________________________________                              ________________________________           

Robert M. Green, Mayor                                                          Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

337

Item 12.



G
2.

 n
oR

et
ai

l, 
10

' R
BL

St
or

ef
ro

nt
 3G

2.
 n

oR
et

ai
l, 

10
' R

BL

W 4th St

W 2nd St

W 1st St

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

St

Fr
an

kl
in

 S
t

Tr
em

on
t S

t

Io
w

a 
St

Cl
ay

 S
t

G2-4st

W
al

nu
t S

t
Parkway Lane 

N
 C

ol
le

ge
 S

t

Tr
em

on
t S

t

Io
w

a 
St

24.7

Railway

Public
Open Space

Civic Structure

Parking Setback

*1. see the Urban General BFS, 193.2.F.4.b, for more information. 

Storefront

Req'd Building

UNDERSTANDING THE REGULATING PLAN

Color and Symbol Key

Neighborhood
Study Area Bounds
Downtown Character

Line (RBL)

A Comfortable 5 Minute Walk

1
3

0
0

 F
e
e
t

1300 FT1200800600 1000200 400100300

Downtown Character District

N
 M

ed
iu

m
: 4

st

G2- 5st, 120 lf

Streets
New 

*3 Required street connection
between Walnut Street and either
College Street or Ida Street. The
exact route is to be determined
through platting.
Consult the Zoning Administrator.

Neighborhood

Medium

Small

G
2-

no
 re

ta
il

N
 M

ed
iu

m
: 4

st

N
 M

ed
iu

m
: 4

st

Urban
General

Urban
General 2

*1

*2. see the Neighborhood Medium BFS, 193.4.F.3.b or the Neighborhood Small BFS, 193.4.E.3.b, for more information. 

*1

*1

*2

*2

*1

September 2021 Ferrell Madden

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

*1
*2

*2 *1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1 *1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2 *2

*2 *2

*2

*2

*2

*2
*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*1

*1 *1

*2

*1

*1*1
*1

*2

*2

*2

*1

*2

*2 *2

*2 *2
*1

*2

*1

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*1

*2

*2

*2

*1

*2

*2

*2

*2*2

*1

*1

*2

*2*2

*2 *2 *2

*2*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*2

*1

*2
*1

*2

*1 *1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*1

*2

*1

*1

*3. Consult with the Zoning Administrator for more information. 

*2

G
2.

 n
oR

et
ai

l, 
10

' R
BL

G
2.

 1
5'

 R
BL

G
2.

 n
oR

et
ai

l

Regulating Plan

Exhibit A

W 8th St

W 9th St

W 10th St

W 7th St

W 6th St

W 5th St

W 3rd St

Cl
ay

 S
t

M
ai

n 
St

St
at

e 
St

W
al

nu
t S

t

Bl
uf

f S
t

Gr
ov

e 
St

O
liv

e 
St

W 18th St

W 19th St

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

St

M
ai

n 
St

St
at

e 
St

W 11th St

W 12th St

W 13th St

W 14th St

W 15th St

W 16th St

Cl
ay

 S
t

Fr
an

kl
in

 S
t

Tr
em

on
t S

t

W
al

nu
t S

t

O
liv

e 
St

Io
w

a 
St

W 17th St

St
at

e 
St

M
ai

n 
St

St
at

e 
St

Bl
uf

f S
t

W 2nd St

W 3rd St

W 18th St

Higby Drive

Tr
em

on
t S

t

Ida St

O
liv

e 
St

W 1st St

Gr
ov

e 
St

338

Item 12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
otherwise noted on the Regulating Plan. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Refer to the City for details. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Urban Public Space per the Code

AutoCAD SHX Text
Civic Green or Square

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(see below)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED BUILDING LINE (RBL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING FRONTAGE DESIGNATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Vehicle Parking (above ground)

AutoCAD SHX Text
is not allowed forward of this line unless

AutoCAD SHX Text
shall be BUILT-TO the RBL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
This indicates the relevant

AutoCAD SHX Text
Building Form Standard (BFS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
for your site.  The Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
This line indicates the RBL

AutoCAD SHX Text
rules governing your site. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIAL CONDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Specific limitation or allowance 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consult the City for Site Specific Regulations

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawing for Coding Purposes Only, Dimensions are subject to change

AutoCAD SHX Text
*3



310 East 4th Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Phone: 319-277-0213
www.communitymainstreet.org

2021-2022
Board of Directors:

Lexie Heath- President
Darin Beck
Natalie Brown
Ann Eastman
Crystal Ford
Wynette Froehner
Audrey Kittrell
Jenny Leeper
Helen Pearce
Clark Rickard
Stephanie Sheetz
Mark Showalter
Brad Strouse

January 12, 2022

Dear Mayor, City Council, Administrator and Staff:

Community Main Street is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the 
historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 
life in Cedar Falls.

On behalf of Cedar Falls Community Main Street and our board of directors, 
we would like to express our opposition to the proposed resolution of a 
moratorium on all building permits in the Cedar Falls Downtown Character 
District through May 1st. A moratorium on building permits would result in a 
detrimental impact to the economic vitality of not only our downtown but all 
of Cedar Falls. This would hurt the great momentum of our Downtown District 
and the negative impact could have long term effects in regard to recruitment 
of new businesses and a short-term impact/disruption in the improvement 
of existing properties and tenants and in the ability of owners to sell their 
properties.

The Board of Directors recognizes there are stakeholder concerns with parts 
of the current code. Rather than implementing a moratorium on new and re-
development, the Board encourages council to discuss possible amendments 
to the code that would be in line with Downtown’s current parking concerns. 
 
Regards,

Kim Bear
On behalf of Cedar Falls Community Main Street Board of Directors
Executive Director

339

Item 12.



From: Erik Skovgard [mailto:ErikS@mylsb.com]  

Sent: Tuesday, January 11, 2022 12:38 PM 
To: CF-CityCouncil-DL; Rob Green 

Subject: Building moratorium in Cedar Falls 

 
 
Dear Mayor and Council Members, 
 
I am very concerned about the discussion of a building permit moratorium. I have had numerous 
customers, partners, community leaders, and employees reach out to me to voice Lincoln Savings Bank’s 
disapproval. Our opinion goes without saying that we are not in favor of a building permit moratorium in 
any of our Lincoln Savings Bank locations, especially in the Cedar Valley. We chose to invest millions of 
dollars in our Main Street Cedar Falls and Waterloo TechWorks locations because we thought the Cedar 
Valley was committed to growth and building communities that could attract top talent. Even the 
discussion of a moratorium sends shockwaves through the community and tarnishes Cedar Falls 
reputation as a business-friendly community. If you take this action, you will be directly harming our 
ability to sell our Washington Street location for a fair price and harming a number of our customers. 
 
I understand and respect the Council's concerns with Form-Based Zoning and respect your desire to 
remedy those concerns. Please address those issues without threatening the development community, 
investors and employers who provide the lifeblood of the community. 
 
Respectfully, thank you for your service and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Erik Skovgard | Lincoln Savings Bank  
CEO & President | MyLSB.com 
508 Main Street | Reinbeck, IA 50669  
Ph (319) 788-6441| Member FDIC  

   
Core Purpose:  To be an engaged, life-long partner, helping our clients achieve their financial goals! 
 

340

Item 12.

mailto:ErikS@mylsb.com
http://www.mylsb.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/skovgard/
https://twitter.com/eskovgard


From: Brian Wingert [mailto:brianjwingert@gmail.com]  

Sent: Tuesday, January 4, 2022 4:49 PM 
To: Simon Harding; Dave Sires; Daryl Kruse; Susan deBuhr; Kelly Dunn; Ron Gaines; Planning; Gil 

Schultz; Dustin Ganfield; Kevin Rogers 
Subject: Potential Moratorium on Building Permits in the Downtown Area 

 

To whom it may concern, 

 

I am extremely agitated, disappointed and frustrated to hear of the discussion last night at city 

council.  I don't think this is the right move for the district in general, but I understand everyone 

has their own opinion and is surely entitled to their own thought process. I respect that. What I 

don't get is why renovations of current buildings are being included in this discussion?  

 

I just closed on a property in the area that I paid 400 thousand dollars for and which I am 

planning a 1 million dollar + renovation set to begin in the next couple months. I am working on 

finalizing plans and budgets in order to get a permit pulled in the next 30-60 days. The course of 

action taken by the council last night is not acceptable. This is going to cost me personally (and 

I'm sure others I'm not aware of) thousands of dollars and plenty of time with no definite timeline 

or direction of how I/we can proceed with materials, site design, etc.  I urge you NOT TO 

CONSIDER CURRENT BUILDINGS and their renovations within this directive.  You are 

underestimating the impact to the current building owners and the direct impact in the downtown 

overlay district.    

 

What if my building has an empty space in it and I am looking for a tenant? If I find a tenant who 

wants to lease the space and wants me (or any other building owner) to build-out a space for 

them, what do I tell them? Sorry, we can't pull a permit to finish your space? They are going to 

seek other places that they can move into with certainty.   

 

We just bought a building and moved our office into the district less than a week ago because of 

its vibrancy, its progressive nature, and because we love seeing what this area is becoming. We 

wanted to be a part of it. I hate to see a pause in momentum. Sometimes that momentum is hard 

to regain.  

 

This is going to inherently hurt the momentum that the downtown has built upon for the last 

decade. Not to mention cutting down 3 YEARS OF WORK, COUNTLESS HOURS spent in 

meetings, investigations, interviews, staff's time and energy, etc.  

 

I don't know what the motives are behind this move by council, but I urge that you 

DON'T INCLUDE a moratorium on permits for renovations to CURRENT BUILDINGS. It 

doesn't make any sense. 

 

Respectfully,  

 

Brian Wingert 

 

341

Item 12.

mailto:brianjwingert@gmail.com


DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Thomas Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 
 

 DATE: January 10, 2022 

SUBJECT: Property Appraisal Services – Contract Documents 
 Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program 
 
On November 1, 2021 the Council approved and adopted the administrative plan for 
acquiring nine (9) properties under a Hazard Mitigation Grant administered by the Iowa 
Department of Emergency Management. Since the current appraisals were done in May 
2019, the Council directed staff to have the properties re-appraised.  
 
Staff reached out to three (3) appraisal companies who submitted proposals in 2019 to 
provide new proposals on the nine (9) properties. Rally Appraisal, who did the 2019 
appraisals, was the only company to submit a new proposal.  Their bid submittal is in the 
amount of $3,975.00. The cost for the appraisals is an eligible expense through the grant 
whether the property is acquired or not. 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract and Certificate of Insurance from Rally 
Appraisal. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Rally Appraisal for the appraisal of the nine (9) properties. It is anticipated that 
the appraisals will be completed within approximately four (4) weeks after a notice to proceed 
is issued. Shortly after the appraisals are received, the staff will begin the process of 
preparing offers to the property owners for purchase.   
  
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

342

Item 13.



 

1 

 
CONTRACT FOR APPRAISAL SERVICES 

 
 
 
CITY PROJECT NO. FL-000-3198   PROGRAM LOCAL 

 
 
PROJECT North Cedar Floodplain Property Acquisitions 

Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa 
 
 

Contracting Appraiser or Firm Rally Appraisal 
  

 
Address 209 Franklin St, Suite A3 

 
City Cedar Falls State IA  Zip Code    50613 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this 18 day of January, 2022, 

by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter called the City) and  Rally 

Appraisal . (called the Appraiser). 

 
WHEREAS, the Director of Community Development hereafter will be referred to as the 
City's Agent; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City requires adequate and competent appraisal for the purpose of 
acquiring property and/or property rights in connection with the above identified public 
project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Appraiser certifies to be qualified and willing to prepare such appraisals 
in accordance with the standards and criteria hereinafter set forth, and pursuant to the 
terms, provisions and conditions hereof, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 
1. The appraiser shall prepare, sign and furnish to the City a separate, written appraisal 

report following accepted appraisal principles and techniques in accordance with 
current Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) and the 
specifications provided for each parcel listed on the following page(s). 

  
 
 

343

Item 13.



 

2 

   

 
And, the City, except as otherwise herein provided, shall pay the Appraiser $  3,975     
(as itemized above) for his professional services rendered under the terms of this 
agreement. Both parties agree that the amount of fee per parcel represents a fair 
payment for services rendered, based on the scope and complexity of the 
assignment, skills and qualifications of the Appraiser, number of parcels included, 
amount of information supplied by the City, time allowance for completion and other 
applicable criteria. The Appraiser agrees that the fee estimate thereof is not based 
on a percentage of the appraised value or assessed value of any property involved. 
Except as otherwise provided under the terms of this agreement, payment shall be 
made for complete and delivered reports. Payment shall be requested in writing by 
the Appraiser and approved by the City's Agent and shall be made on a properly 
executed claim, bill or statement.  
 

2. Each parcel or property enumerated in Paragraph 1 refers to and incorporates all 
contiguous real estate or real estate in reasonable proximity thereof that is under the 
same ownership, leasehold or operating unit, or shall incorporate the property 
specified by the City in their definition of the appraisal problem. It is understood that 
the Parcel List in Paragraph 1 is based on preliminary information and is subject to 
revision if the total property unit is subsequently determined to be different than that 
described in the accompanying Parcel files. Where the parcel list has been revised, 
the City's Agent may also revise either the schedule of fees or the delivery date, or 
both. Revisions in the amount of the schedule of fees under Paragraph 1 herein may 
be made for changes in the complexity of the appraisal problem. In making any fee 
revisions, the City's Agent shall consider, in addition to the criteria specified in 

PARCEL LIST 
Parcel  

No. 
Owner 

Address or County Parcel ID # 
Type of 
Taking 

Proposed 
Fee 

     
1 215 McKinley Street Total Acquisition  $ 425  

      
2 627 Clair Street Total Acquisition $ 425  

      
3 705 Clair Street Total Acquisition $ 425  

      
4 628 Longview Street Total Acquisition $ 425  

      
5 2027 Center Street Total Acquisition $ 425  

      
6 1027 Clair Street Total Acquisition $ 425  

      
7 824 Cottage Row Road Total Acquisition $ 475  

      
8 1020 Cottage Row Road Total Acquisition $ 475  

      
9 2126 W. Lone Tree Road Total Acquisition $ 475  

    Total $ 3,975 

344

Item 13.



 

3 

Paragraph 1 herein, any work performed on the parcel or parcels involved. 
 
3. The Appraiser shall not begin work on the appraisal assignment until after the 

contract has been approved by the City Council and a completely executed copy has 
been returned to the appraiser with “Notice to Proceed”. 

 
4. The delivery date for completed appraisal reports under the terms of this agreement 

shall be four weeks after issuance of Notice to Proceed. Reports shall be considered 
delivered when in the possession of the Department of Community Development in 
the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, or such other location as specified in writing by the 
City's Agent. In the event the delivery date is extended for a given parcel, the report 
shall be delivered on or before the date specified in the extension. Any extension of 
the Appraiser's performance time must be requested in writing by the appraiser prior 
to the delivery date specified in the Notice to Proceed. Approval or denial of the 
written request for an extension shall be sent in writing by the City's Agent and shall 
not entitle the Appraiser to any increase in the Schedule of Fees enumerated in 
Paragraph 1. No report shall be considered complete unless it is documented in a 
manner consistent with the appraisal assignment for a specifically assigned parcel 
and submitted in duplicate (original and one copy). If the City's Agent finds that the 
report is either deficient or incomplete, the Appraiser shall furnish all requested 
supplemental data necessary to correct any deficiency or to complete any report in a 
manner consistent with the documentation standard of the appraisal assignment. No 
additional payment shall be made for any supplemental data furnished by the 
appraiser to correct a deficiency or to complete a report. 

 
5. The fee will be reduced by $50 per day per report for each day that the reports 

remain uncompleted beyond the specified delivery date. Reports are considered 
completed when they have been prepared according to the specifications and 
delivered into the possession of the Department of Community Development in the 
City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 
6. The Appraiser will, as a condition of the fee stated in Paragraph 1 herein, attend 

required meetings and conferences with representatives of the City to provide 
information and to discuss the various aspects of the appraisal assignment 
necessary to facilitate the City's review and acceptance of the appraisal report. 

 
7. The Appraiser shall, if requested by the City, confer; shall, if required, appear; and 

shall, if called, testify either in court or before administrative bodies as an expert 
witness for the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa in support of any completed appraisal report 
contracted for herein. However, payment for such appearance shall not be included 
in the schedule of fees listed in Paragraph 1, but shall be made as provided in 
Paragraph 8 herein. 

 
8. Payment for conferences and appearances and testimony specified in Paragraph 7 

and necessary preparation time will be computed on the basis of $  200   per hour 
for the actual hours, including necessary travel time. Such payment will be made 
when the Appraiser delivers to the City's Agent a signed request for payment in 
duplicate. All such requests for payment shall be identified in the manner provided 

345

Item 13.



 

4 

for in Paragraph 1 herein, and in addition shall itemize the date, hours and travel 
time for which payment is requested. 

 
9. The Appraiser will prepare all appraisals made hereunder independent of any other 

Appraiser employed by the City in the same work and will not sublet, assign or 
otherwise transfer any of the work to other persons or firm except as otherwise 
provided herein. Where necessary the Appraiser may employ a specialist to furnish 
specific value or cost information. The Appraiser will not furnish to any other person, 
corporation, company or agency, except on proper order of court or authorized 
directive of the City, a copy of any appraisal of any of the information contained 
therein. 

 
10. The Appraiser will consider all Federal, State and local laws and ordinances that 

may be applicable to the preparation and delivery of all appraisals made hereunder. 
 

11. It is understood that the Appraiser assumes full and unqualified responsibility for all 
claims and liability due to his activities or those of his agents, representatives or 
employees. The Appraiser shall abide by the City of Cedar Falls Insurance 
Requirements as found in the attached EXHIBIT A and hereby releases and agrees 
to save and hold the City harmless from all loss and damage of whatsoever nature 
arising from or growing out of his activities under this agreement. 

 
12. It is understood and agreed that the City Council may at any time cancel or 

terminate this agreement for any good and reasonable cause. Such cause includes, 
but is not limited to, failures of the Appraiser to fulfill or discharge any of the duties of 
this agreement. The City's Agent shall cancel the agreement by sending notice of 
cancellation to the Appraiser by certified mail. In the event the agreement is 
canceled, the sole claim or title to any work product either partially or fully completed 
shall vest in and shall be delivered to the City. Upon the Appraiser's delivery of the 
work product and a request for payment itemized by date and hours, the City's Agent 
shall determine the amount of payment due. Payment will be made on the basis of 
the schedule of fees for completed appraisal reports and on the basis of prorated 
time for partially completed reports. In no case shall payment exceed the greater of 
either the schedule of fees specified in Paragraph 1 or any revisions to such fee 
schedule made under the terms of this agreement. 

 
13. It is understood that it may be necessary to update or rewrite an appraisal report for 

either negotiation or court purposes subsequent to the payment of an appraisal fee 
for services rendered under the terms of this contract. The City's Agent will notify the 
Appraiser of any such additional assignment in writing. Payment for services 
rendered under this contract shall be increased in an amount as determined by the 
City's Agent. In determining the amount of such increase, the City's Agent shall 
consider the criteria specified in Paragraph 1 herein, as well as the amount of work 
required to update or revise the Appraisal report. Requests for payment for such 
additional assignments shall be identified in the manner provided for in Paragraph 1 
herein. 

 
14. The Appraiser warrants not being employed or retained by any company or person, 

346

Item 13.



 

5 

other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Appraiser, to solicit or secure 
this agreement. The Appraiser warrants that no payment or agreement for payment 
has been made to any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for the Appraiser, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or 
any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of 
this agreement. The Appraiser warrants that there is no direct or indirect present or 
contemplated future personal interest in any of the properties covered by this 
contract. For breach or violation of this warranty, the City shall have the right to 
annul this agreement without liability or payment. 

 
15. During the performance of this contract, the Appraiser, for itself, its assignees and 

successors in interest agrees to comply with the anti-discrimination laws of the State 
of Iowa, as contained in Sections 19B, 551 and 729.4 of the Code of Iowa, which are 
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

 
16. Any dispute concerning a question of fact in connection with or relative to this 

Agreement or the performance of any contractual obligation by either the Appraiser 
or the City's Agent shall be referred to the Director of Community Development. The 
City's Community Development Director shall hear and consider all of the evidence 
and notify the Appraiser in writing of the decision. The decision of the City's 
Community Development Director shall be final and conclusive unless, within thirty 
(30) days from receipt of notification of such decision the Appraiser shall appeal in 
writing to the Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls who will review and consider both the 
evidence and the decision. The Mayor of Cedar Falls shall make a final, conclusive 
and binding determination and furnish the Appraiser a written copy thereof. 
Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this or any other paragraph of this 
agreement, the Appraiser shall receive a fee only for a correction, revision, 
adjustment, addition or other change in an appraisal report where such was not 
caused by the Appraiser's failure to comply with any of the provisions or 
requirements of this contract. 

 
17. In the event the Appraiser is a partnership or firm or corporation, this agreement 

shall not be binding, nor have any legal force, until and unless each and every 
individual who will actually prepare an appraisal or render valuation information as a 
part thereof has affixed their signature and address hereto. Satisfaction of this 
condition will not, however, remove, qualify, restrict or diminish the obligations of the 
partnership, firm or corporation, nor will it generate personal contractual liability on 
the part of any individual Appraiser entering their signature. If the officer executing 
this agreement on behalf of the partnership, firm or corporation is also an individual 
responsible for actual preparation or rendering of value information on appraisals for 
which the partnership, firm or corporation is obligated, that person must so indicate 
by signing both in the capacity as an officer and as an Appraiser. In the event a 
signing Appraiser is unable to fulfill this agreement, the appraisal(s) contracted for by 
the partnership, firm or corporation must be completed by an Appraiser who had 
received written approval from the City's Agent to complete the appraisal assignment 
covered by this contract. If a corporation is one of the parties to this agreement, then 
the date of incorporation and the State in which it is incorporated shall be indicated 
hereon. 

 

347

Item 13.



 

6 

Contracting Appraiser is an: (check appropriate space) 
 
 
Individual   Partnership   Firm   Corporation X 

If a Corporation, indicate State in which incorporated Iowa 

and date 08/21/2001 

 
Company Name Rally Appraisal 

 
By Clinton Cota 
  

 
Address 209 Franklin St, Suite A3 

 
City Cedar Falls  State IA Zip Code 50613 

 
Phone No. (319) 266-9373 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
Approval Recommended: 
 
By  

Title Mayor 
  
Date  
 

Approved: 
 

By  

Title City Clerk Date 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

348

Item 13.



 

7 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
Property Appraisal for Flood Hazard Mitigation Buyout 

City Project Number FL-000-3198 
 

 
 

SMALL CONTRACT INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Appraiser shall provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City of Cedar Falls for the 
coverage required hereunder.  Failure of the Appraiser to maintain the required 
insurance for the duration of the Agreement, shall constitute a default under this 
Agreement, and at City’s option, shall allow City to terminate this Agreement. 

 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
Commercial General Liability   
 General Aggregate $2,000,000 
 Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
 Personal and Advertising Limit                                                  $1,000,000  
 Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000 
 Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
 Medical Payments $       5,000 
 
If a $2M General Aggregate cannot be provided, a $1M general aggregate shall apply 
on a per project basis. 
 
Automobile:                                                         (Combined Single Limit)      $1,000,000 
 
Umbrella:  $1,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if the 
Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
Standard Worker Compensation 
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:    
  Each Accident   $500,000 
  Each Employee – Disease   $500,000 
  Policy Limit – Disease   $500,000 
 
 
Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions): $1,000,000 

 
Required Endorsements: 

 Waiver of Subrogation 

 30 Day Cancelation and Material Change 

349

Item 13.



 

8 
 350

Item 13.



 

9 

 

351

Item 13.



 

10 
352

Item 13.



 

11 

 

353

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspection Services Division 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green & City Council  
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official   
 
 DATE: January 10, 2022  
 
 SUBJECT: City Hall Remodel Furniture Relocation Contract 
 
 
Attached is a contract with Kirk Gross Company to disassemble and relocate the City 
Hall Office furniture.  This work is to be done in two phases in coordination with the 
phases of construction.  Kirk Gross Company is the supplier of our furnishings and has 
the knowledge and skill to properly disassemble the furniture and store it for future use 
after the City Hall Remodel is complete.  Our existing furniture is in great shape and we 
intend to reuse a majority of it.  This requires proper care and storage to ensure the 
furniture remains in good condition. 
 

354

Item 14.



355

Item 14.



356

Item 14.



357

Item 14.



358

Item 14.



359

Item 14.



360

Item 14.



361

Item 14.



362

Item 14.



363

Item 14.



364

Item 14.



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACT
PRODUCER NAME:

PHONE FAX
(A/C, No, Ext): (A/C, No):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITSLTR INSD WVD (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRO-
POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $JECT

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY $(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

PROPERTY DAMAGEHIRED NON-OWNED
(Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY

$

UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ $
PER OTH-WORKERS COMPENSATION
STATUTE ERAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

Y / N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

N / AOFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

KIRKG-1 OP ID: LAA

01/07/2022

319-233-8459 Scott L Poppens
Elliott Hartman Agency
PO Box 748
Waterloo, IA 50701
Scott L Poppens

319-233-8459 319-232-0645

scottp@elliotthartman.com

United Fire & Casualty Co. 13021

Kirk Gross Company
PO Box 2097
Waterloo, IA 50704

A X 1,000,000

X 100,000X X 60463458 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

X 2,000,000

A 1,000,000

X X X 60463458 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

A X X 5,000,000

X 60463458 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 5,000,000

A X

X 60463458 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

A Equipment 60463458 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 Leased/ 100,000

Rented

CEDAR-2

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613-2726

365

Item 14.



PAGEHOLDER CODE   

NOTEPAD: INSURED'S NAME Date

CEDAR-2 KIRKG-1 2
Kirk Gross Company OP ID: LAA 01/07/2022

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and its elected and appointed officials, all
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or          
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers are         
additional insureds for General Liability on a primary and non-           
contributory basis, including completed operations when required in       
written contract. Waiver of subrogation applies in favor of the additional
insureds for General Liability, Business Auto Liability and Workers       
Compensation when required in written contract. Governmental Immunity     
Endorsement applies to General Liability in favor of City of Cedar Falls. 
30 Day Notice of Cancellation provided to City of Cedar Falls.

366

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �� � � 	 
 � � 
 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � 	 
 � � � 
 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � 
 	  � � � � � � 	 
 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � �  ! " � # $ � � �  � � � % % � " �  & � ' (  $ # � � ) # � � & % (  $ # � � ) # �  % � ! � ( � " �  & � * �  $ � % # % + � " � � �# & %  � � # � # & " , �  (  $ # � � ) # � � * �  $ � % # % + � " � � � � � � � � � � ,- . / 0 1 2 3 1 3 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 9 : ; : < 1- . / 7 : 2 3 1 3 = > 5 1 ? 1 < : @ ? > : A > @ > 0 8 0 6 > 2 B @ C 3 1 . / 7 @ 6 D > 6 2 E ? > < F 0 2 > 2 < : 2 3 G 7 5 > 2 H @ 1 5 ? 1 : H : < 1- I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 K 6 5 2 6 2 L 6 M 2 1 3 M : 0 1 5 B 5 : K 0 > D 1 / 0 1 2 3 1 3 0 6 N O K 1 1 0 > 2 @ 1 2 < 0 F- 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 9 : ; : < 1 L P 6 5 5 6 M 1 3 . Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0- 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 9 : ; : < 1 ? > : A > @ > 0 8 L . @ 1 J : 0 6 5 D--- I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 = L . @ 1 B 0 5 6 2 > B 9 : 0 : ? > : A > @ > 0 8 I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 L R N S E S S S- I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 T L 4 5 6 3 C B 0 U 1 B : @ @ . / 7 1 2 D 1- I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 V L W : 0 1 5 9 : ; : < 1 ? 1 < : @ ? > : A > @ > 0 8 L R X N E S S S- Y 2 B 5 1 : D 1 > 2 G C 7 7 @ 1 ; 1 2 0 : 5 8 4 : 8 ; 1 2 0 D Z P : > @ P 6 2 3 D 0 6 R O E S S S- Y 2 B 5 1 : D 1 > 2 G C 7 7 @ 1 ; 1 2 0 : 5 8 4 : 8 ; 1 2 0 D Z ? 6 D D 6 K . : 5 2 > 2 < D 0 6 R N S S- = 6 5 2 1 M @ 8 K 6 5 ; 1 3 6 5 : B Q C > 5 1 3 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 D L 1 / 0 1 2 3 0 F 1 5 1 7 6 5 0 > 2 < 5 1 Q C > 5 1 ; 1 2 0 0 6 O \ S 3 : 8 D- P 5 6 : 3 1 2 1 3 ] : ; 1 3 Y 2 D C 5 1 3- ^ C 0 6 ; : 0 > B ^ 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ Y 2 D C 5 1 3 L _ 1 2 3 6 5 D- ^ C 0 6 ; : 0 > B ^ 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ Y 2 D C 5 1 3 L ? 1 D D 6 5 6 K ? 1 : D 1 3 . Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 ^ C 0 6 ; : 0 > B G 0 : 0 C D W F 1 2 U 1 Q C > 5 1 3 > 2 ? 1 : D 1 ^ < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 W > 0 F- ^ C 0 6 ; : 0 > B ^ 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ Y 2 D C 5 1 3 L ` : 2 : < 1 5 D 6 5 ? 1 D D 6 5 6 K 4 5 1 ; > D 1 D- ^ 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ Y 2 D C 5 1 3 L . 2 < > 2 1 1 5 D E ^ 5 B F > 0 1 B 0 D 6 5 G C 5 J 1 8 6 5 D ] 6 0 . 2 < : < 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 ] : ; 1 3 Y 2 D C 5 1 3- ^ 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ Y 2 D C 5 1 3 L . ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 Y 2 a C 5 8 0 6 ^ 2 6 0 F 1 5 . ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1- ^ C 0 6 ; : 0 > B : @ @ 8 > 2 B @ C 3 1 3 L ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 ? > ; > 0 D 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 b 7 1 5 @ 6 B : 0 > 6 2 c- ^ C 0 6 ; : 0 > B : @ @ 8 > 2 B @ C 3 1 3 L ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 ? > ; > 0 D 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 b 7 1 5 7 5 6 a 1 B 0 c- d 2 6 M @ 1 3 < 1 6 K 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 L d 2 6 M @ 1 3 < 1 6 K : 2 e 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 f E e B @ : > ; 6 5 D C > 0 f A 8 8 6 C 5 : < 1 2 0 E D 1 5 J : 2 0 6 5 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 D F : @ @ 2 6 0 > 2- P @ : 2 H 1 0 W : > J 1 5 6 K G C A 5 6 < : 0 > 6 2- ? > A 1 5 : @ > [ : 0 > 6 2 I 6 2 3 > 0 > 6 2- g 2 > 2 0 1 2 0 > 6 2 : @ K : > @ C 5 1 0 6 3 > D B @ 6 D 1 : @ @ F : [ : 5 3 D h Y K 8 6 C C 2 > 2 0 1 2 0 > 6 2 : @ @ 8 K : > @ 0 6 3 > D B @ 6 D 1 : 2 8 F : [ : 5 3 D 1 / > D 0 > 2 < : 0 0 F 1 > 2 B 1 7 0 > 6 2- ` 6 A > @ 1 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 0 6 > 2 B @ C 3 1 D 2 6 M 5 1 ; 6 J : @ E 5 6 : 3 ; : > 2 0 1 2 : 2 B 1 : 2 3 D 0 5 1 1 0 B @ 1 : 2 > 2 < 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 @ 1 D D 0 F : 2 O E S S S @ A D T _ W	 � � � 	 � � � i � 
 � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � j � � � � � � 
 � � � k � i 	 � � � i � k � � 	 � i 
 � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � 	 
 � � � � 	 � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # �  ! � k

R X N E S S S . : B F U 1 B : @ @ ? > ; > 0 M > 0 F : R N S E S S S ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 L R O E S S S 9 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1
^ C 0 6 ; : 0 > B ^ 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ Y 2 D C 5 1 3 L l M 2 1 5 D E ? 1 D D 1 1 D 6 5 I 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 D L ^ C 0 6 ; : 0 > B G 0 : 0 C D W F 1 2 U 1 Q C > 5 1 3 > 2 I 6 2 D 0 5 C B 0 > 6 2^ < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 W > 0 F m 6 C n Y 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < g 7 D 0 5 1 : ; 4 : 5 0 > 1 D-

I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 9 L _ 6 @ C 2 0 : 5 8 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 9 : ; : < 1 I 6 J 1 5 : < 1R N E S S S l B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 M > 0 F : R O S E S S S ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 . L I : 5 1 E I C D 0 6 3 8 : 2 3 I 6 2 0 5 6 @ 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 9 : ; : < 1 I 6 J 1 5 : < 1R X N E S S S l B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 M > 0 F : R O S S E S S S ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 L R N S S 9 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1

3 : 0 1 6 K 8 6 C 5 7 6 @ > B 8 E M 1 M > @ @ 2 6 0 3 1 2 8 B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 C 2 3 1 5 0 F > D I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 = 6 5 ; A 1 B : C D 1 6 K D C B F K : > @ C 5 1 h V 6 M 1 J 1 5 E 0 F > D7 5 6 J > D > 6 2 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : K K 1 B 0 6 C 5 5 > < F 0 0 6 B 6 @ @ 1 B 0 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ 7 5 1 ; > C ; 6 5 1 / 1 5 B > D 1 6 C 5 5 > < F 0 6 K B : 2 B 1 @ @ : 0 > 6 2 6 5 2 6 2 L 5 1 2 1 M : @ h
> 0 D 1 @ K B 6 2 D 0 > 0 C 0 1 H 2 6 M @ 1 3 < 1 6 K 0 F 1 2 : ; 1 3 > 2 D C 5 1 3 C 2 @ 1 D D : 2 6 K K > B 1 5 6 K 0 F 1 2 : ; 1 3 > 2 D C 5 1 3 F : D 5 1 B 1 > J 1 3 D C B F 2 6 0 > B 1 K 5 6 ;0 F 1 : < 1 2 0 E D 1 5 J : 2 0 6 5 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1

m 6 C

- P 6 3 > @ 8 Y 2 a C 5 8 U 1 3 1 K > 2 1 3

367

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �� i � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � i 
 � � � � � i � � � � � �  , � � � 
 � � 	 � 
 � � � � 
 	 � � � � �  ,o F > D 1 2 3 6 5 D 1 ; 1 2 0 ; 6 3 > K > 1 D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 7 5 6 J > 3 1 3 C 2 3 1 5 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Z� � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � 	 
 � � � 
 � � � � �  � � � � 	 
 � � � 
 	 �
 , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < B F : 2 < 1 D : 5 1 ; : 3 1 : 0 � � � � 	 
 � � 
 p � � � � �  � � q � 	  
 � � � 	 � � � 	 �  � 
 � 
 � � � � 
 � � � � � � , � r " # & % # % � �  * # � " � � � � � ) #^ 0 k , � r ( ' � � �  & � 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 � , � r * # ( " # %  � � & " # & % # % � & s � � � > D 5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 M > 0 F 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Ze P 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f 6 5 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f 1 / 7 1 B 0 1 3 6 5 > 2 0 1 2 3 1 3 K 5 6 ; 0 F 1 D 0 : 2 3 7 6 > 2 0 6 K 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 1 3 h o F > D 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 3 6 1 D2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 e A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f 6 5 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f 5 1 D C @ 0 > 2 < K 5 6 ; 0 F 1 C D 1 6 K 5 1 : D 6 2 : A @ 1 K 6 5 B 1 0 6 7 5 6 0 1 B 0 7 1 5 D 6 2 D 6 57 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 h� r * � & % # % � � � # � # ) � ' � � � + � ' � " �^ 0 k , � r ( ' � � �  & �h ^ D 1 7 : 5 : 0 1 @ > ; > 0 6 K > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 0 6 0 F > D B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 : D 3 1 D B 5 > A 1 3 > 2 � � � � � � � � � � p� � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � h� , �  & p � t & # % j � " # � ( � � ! "^ 0 k , � r ( ' � � �  & � 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 ) , 
 � � ( � � ! " u 
 � "  � � j � " # � ( � � ! " v k w v � w > D 3 1 @ 1 0 1 3 : 2 3 5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Zv � w ? 1 D D 0 F : 2 N O K 1 1 0 @ 6 2 < xy , � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # z �  � �  t # % � { � � * � # & "^ 0 k , � r ( ' � � �  & � 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < > D : 3 3 1 3 0 6 7 : 5 : < 5 : 7 F v y w 6 K 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 s , � � � � ) # �  � �  * # � " � Zo F > D 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f 0 6 A 6 5 5 6 M 1 3 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 M F > @ 1 : 0 : a 6 A D > 0 1 : 2 3 M F > @ 1 2 6 0 A 1 > 2 <C D 1 3 0 6 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D h o F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 K 6 5 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f 0 6 : 2 8 6 2 1 7 > 1 B 1 6 K A 6 5 5 6 M 1 3 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0C 2 3 1 5 0 F > D B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 > D R X N E S S S 7 1 5 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 h o F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 C 2 3 1 5 0 F > D 7 5 6 J > D > 6 2 > D 1 / B 1 D D 6 J 1 5 : 2 8J : @ > 3 : 2 3 B 6 @ @ 1 B 0 > A @ 1 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 b > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < 3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 c : J : > @ : A @ 1 0 6 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 1 3 E M F 1 0 F 1 5 7 5 > ; : 5 8 E 1 / B 1 D D EB 6 2 0 > 2 < 1 2 0 6 5 6 2 : 2 8 6 0 F 1 5 A : D > D h| , � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # � � � + � ' � " � z � ' # $ � "  � �^ 0 k , � r ( ' � � �  & � 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < > D : 3 3 1 3 0 6 7 : 5 : < 5 : 7 F D v � w u v y w : 2 3 v } w 6 K 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 s , � � � � ) # �  � �  * # � " � Z� , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 D : 5 1 : 3 3 1 3 Z� , � � � � 	 
 � � � p � � � � � � 
 	  � 	 � � � 	 �  � 
 � 
 � � � � � � 	 
 � �e 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f 0 6 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 6 K 6 0 F 1 5 D B : C D 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 1 3 Z� , W F > @ 1 > 2 8 6 C 5 7 6 D D 1 D D > 6 2 x 6 5+ , ^ 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K e 8 6 C 5 M 6 5 H f hI 6 J 1 5 : < 1 : 7 7 @ > 1 D : 0 0 F 1 5 1 Q C 1 D 0 6 K 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 1 3 E M F 1 0 F 1 5 6 5 2 6 0 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 1 3 > D @ 1 < : @ @ 8 6 A @ > < : 0 1 3 0 6 7 : 8 h= 6 5 0 F 1 7 C 5 7 6 D 1 D 6 K 0 F > D �  ' � & " � � � � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # 6 2 @ 8 Z. / B @ C D > 6 2 s , � � � � ) # "  � �  * # � " � > D 3 1 @ 1 0 1 3 : 2 3 5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Z� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # k  ! � k

k ,

o F > D 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f 5 1 D C @ 0 > 2 < K 5 6 ; 0 F 1 C D 1 6 K 1 @ 1 J : 0 6 5 D h V 6 M 1 J 1 5 E : 2 8 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 17 5 6 J > 3 1 3 K 6 5 D C B F e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f > D 1 / B 1 D D 6 J 1 5 : 2 8 J : @ > 3 : 2 3 B 6 @ @ 1 B 0 > A @ 1 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 b > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 <3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 c : J : > @ : A @ 1 0 6 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 1 3 E M F 1 0 F 1 5 7 5 > ; : 5 8 E 1 / B 1 D D E B 6 2 0 > 2 < 1 2 0 6 5 6 2 : 2 8 6 0 F 1 5 A : D > D h

368

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �s , � � � � ) # "  � �  * # � " �e 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f 0 6 Zv � w 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 F 1 @ 3 A 8 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 1 3 K 6 5 D 1 5 J > B > 2 < E 5 1 7 : > 5 E D 0 6 5 : < 1 6 5 D : @ 1 : 0 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D 8 6 C 6 M 2 E 5 1 2 0 E @ 1 : D 1 E6 7 1 5 : 0 1 6 5 C D 1 xv k w 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 0 5 : 2 D 7 6 5 0 1 3 A 8 6 5 3 : ; : < 1 B : C D 1 3 A 8 : 2 8 e : C 0 6 ; 6 A > @ 1 f E e M : 0 1 5 B 5 : K 0 f 6 5 e : > 5 B 5 : K 0 f 8 6 C 6 M 2 E F > 5 1 6 5@ 1 : D 1 xv � w 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 8 6 C 6 M 2 E 5 1 2 0 E @ 1 : D 1 E A 6 5 5 6 M 6 5 C D 1 ho F 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 > D @ > ; > 0 1 3 : D 3 1 D B 5 > A 1 3 A 1 @ 6 M > 2 � � � � � � � � � � p � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � ��  � " � # * � � *  � # �  ! " � � � �  ' � & " � � � � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # u  � � � � ) � " � & % % � " � "  % # ! # & % # & % � t � # &t # � � $ # * � � % " � # � � � � "  ! � � � + � ' � " �  � " � # 
 ) ) � # ) � " # � � � � " !  � # � ( � (  $ # � � ) # u � & % t # � � # ) � � & " # %% � � ( � # " �  & � & � � ~ � & ) * � � � # & " � � & % # � " � � � (  $ # � � ) # ,k , � � � � 	 
 � � � p � 
 	 � u � � � � � �  
 � � � � � � 	 � � � 	 � � � 	 �  � 
 � 
 � � � � � � 	 
 � �= 6 5 0 F 1 7 C 5 7 6 D 1 6 K 0 F > D � � � # u � � � "  % � � & % �  & " �  ' � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # 6 2 @ 8 Z� , Y 0 1 ; v y w 6 K 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 s , 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 ho F 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 > D @ > ; > 0 1 3 : D 3 1 D B 5 > A 1 3 A 1 @ 6 M > 2 � � � � � � � � � � p � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � ��  � " � # * � � *  � # �  ! " � � � � � � # u � � � "  % � � & % �  & " �  ' � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # u  � � � � ) � " � & % % � " � "  % # ! # & % # & % � t � # & t # � � $ # * � � % " � # � � � � "  ! � � � + � ' � " �  � " � # 
 ) ) � # ) � " # � � � � " !  � # � ( � (  $ # � � ) # u � & % t #� � # ) � � & " # % % � � ( � # " �  & � & � � ~ � & ) * � � � # & " � � & % # � " � � � (  $ # � � ) # ,� , � � � � 	 
 � � � p � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � 
 � � 
 � � � � �  � � � � 	 
 � �= 6 5 0 F 1 7 C 5 7 6 D 1 D 6 K 0 F > D � ' # ( " �  & � ( � � " � � � � + � ' � " � �  $ # � � ) # 6 2 @ 8 Z� , . / B @ C D > 6 2 * , 6 K �  $ # � � ) # 
 z �  % � ' � � & s � � � 
 & % � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # � � � + � ' � " � > 2 � # ( " �  & � z �  $ # � � ) # � > D5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Zk , � r ( ' � � �  & �o F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 Z* , � ' # ( " �  & � ( % � " �9 : ; : < 1 D : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K 0 F 1 @ 6 D D 6 K E @ 6 D D 6 K C D 1 6 K E 3 : ; : < 1 0 6 E B 6 5 5 C 7 0 > 6 2 6 K E > 2 : A > @ > 0 8 0 6 : B B 1 D D E 6 5> 2 : A > @ > 0 8 0 6 ; : 2 > 7 C @ : 0 1 e 1 @ 1 B 0 5 6 2 > B 3 : 0 : f 0 F : 0 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 5 1 D C @ 0 K 5 6 ; 7 F 8 D > B : @ > 2 a C 5 8 0 6 0 : 2 < > A @ 1 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 hV 6 M 1 J 1 5 E 0 F > D 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 @ > : A > @ > 0 8 K 6 5 3 : ; : < 1 D A 1 B : C D 1 6 K e A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f+ , e 4 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f ; 1 : 2 D Zv � w 4 F 8 D > B : @ > 2 a C 5 8 0 6 0 : 2 < > A @ 1 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < : @ @ 5 1 D C @ 0 > 2 < @ 6 D D 6 K C D 1 6 K 0 F : 0 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 h ^ @ @ D C B F @ 6 D D 6 K C D 1D F : @ @ A 1 3 1 1 ; 1 3 0 6 6 B B C 5 : 0 0 F 1 0 > ; 1 6 K 0 F 1 7 F 8 D > B : @ > 2 a C 5 8 0 F : 0 B : C D 1 3 > 0 x 6 5v k w ? 6 D D 6 K C D 1 6 K 0 : 2 < > A @ 1 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 0 F : 0 > D 2 6 0 7 F 8 D > B : @ @ 8 > 2 a C 5 1 3 h ^ @ @ D C B F @ 6 D D 6 K C D 1 D F : @ @ A 1 3 1 1 ; 1 3 0 66 B B C 5 : 0 0 F 1 0 > ; 1 6 K 0 F 1 e 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 f 0 F : 0 B : C D 1 3 > 0 x 6 5v � w ? 6 D D 6 K E @ 6 D D 6 K C D 1 6 K E 3 : ; : < 1 0 6 E B 6 5 5 C 7 0 > 6 2 6 K E > 2 : A > @ > 0 8 0 6 : B B 1 D D 6 5 > 2 : A > @ > 0 8 0 6 7 5 6 7 1 5 @ 8 ; : 2 > 7 C @ : 0 1e 1 @ 1 B 0 5 6 2 > B 3 : 0 : f E 5 1 D C @ 0 > 2 < K 5 6 ; 7 F 8 D > B : @ > 2 a C 5 8 0 6 0 : 2 < > A @ 1 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 h ^ @ @ D C B F @ 6 D D 6 K e 1 @ 1 B 0 5 6 2 > B 3 : 0 : f D F : @ @A 1 3 1 1 ; 1 3 0 6 6 B B C 5 : 0 0 F 1 0 > ; 1 6 K 0 F 1 e 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 f 0 F : 0 B : C D 1 3 > 0 h= 6 5 0 F 1 7 C 5 7 6 D 1 D 6 K 0 F > D � ' # ( " �  & � ( � � " � � � � + � ' � " � �  $ # � � ) # E e 1 @ 1 B 0 5 6 2 > B 3 : 0 : f > D 2 6 0 0 : 2 < > A @ 1 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 ho F 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 > D @ > ; > 0 1 3 : D 3 1 D B 5 > A 1 3 A 1 @ 6 M > 2 � � � � � � � � � � p � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � �y , � � � � 	 
 � � � p � 	 � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � � � � �� , Y 2 D C 5 > 2 < ^ < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0v � w W 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 � S � 6 K � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 � 8 6 C > 2 B C 5 : D : 5 1 D C @ 0 6 K : � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ � 8 6 C > 2 > 0 > : 0 1 3 C 5 > 2 <0 F 1 B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 7 1 5 > 6 3 hv k w W 1 M > @ @ 6 2 @ 8 7 : 8 K 6 5 � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 � : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K � 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D � M F > B F F : J 1 A 1 1 2 7 F 8 D > B : @ @ 85 1 @ > 2 Q C > D F 1 3 0 6 6 0 F 1 5 D ho F 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 > D @ > ; > 0 1 3 : D 3 1 D B 5 > A 1 3 A 1 @ 6 M > 2 � � � � � � � � � � p � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � �� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # �  ! � k
369

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �+ , � r ( ' � � �  & �o F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 � : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K Zv � w ^ 2 8 K : B 0 E B > 5 B C ; D 0 : 2 B 1 6 5 D > 0 C : 0 > 6 2 M F > B F 1 / > D 0 1 3 : 0 0 F 1 > 2 B 1 7 0 > 6 2 3 : 0 1 6 K 0 F 1 7 6 @ > B 8 : 2 3 M F > B F 8 6 C M 1 5 1: M : 5 1 6 K E 6 5 B 6 C @ 3 5 1 : D 6 2 : A @ 8 F : J 1 K 6 5 1 D 1 1 2 0 F : 0 M 6 C @ 3 F : J 1 5 1 D C @ 0 1 3 > 2 : � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ � hv k w 9 1 0 1 5 > 6 5 : 0 > 6 2 E 3 1 B 6 ; 7 6 D > 0 > 6 2 6 5 0 5 : 2 D K 6 5 ; : 0 > 6 2 6 K : B F 1 ; > B : @ 2 : 0 C 5 1 E 1 / B 1 7 0 > K B : C D 1 3 A 8 : 2 1 5 5 6 5 > 2 0 F 1; : 2 C K : B 0 C 5 1 E 3 1 D > < 2 E 7 5 6 B 1 D D > 2 < E D 0 6 5 : < 1 E 6 5 0 5 : 2 D 7 6 5 0 : 0 > 6 2 6 K � 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 � hv � w o F 1 M > 0 F 3 5 : M : @ 6 K D > ; > @ : 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D 6 5 A : 0 B F 1 D 0 F : 0 : 5 1 2 6 0 3 1 K 1 B 0 > J 1 E M F 1 2 : 3 1 K 1 B 0 > 2 : 2 6 0 F 1 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 6 5A : 0 B F F : D A 1 1 2 K 6 C 2 3 hv y w ^ B 0 D E 1 5 5 6 5 D 6 5 6 ; > D D > 6 2 D 6 K : 2 8 6 K 8 6 C 5 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 D E 3 6 2 1 M > 0 F 7 5 > 6 5 H 2 6 M @ 1 3 < 1 6 K : 2 8 6 K 8 6 C 5 6 K K > B 1 5 D 6 53 > 5 1 B 0 6 5 D hv | w Y 2 F 1 5 1 2 0 J > B 1 E ; 1 : 2 > 2 < : 2 : 0 C 5 : @ B 6 2 3 > 0 > 6 2 6 K 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 0 F : 0 B : C D 1 D > 0 0 6 3 1 0 1 5 > 6 5 : 0 1 6 5 A 1 B 6 ; 1 3 : ; : < 1 3 hv } w e P 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f 6 5 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f hv � w = : > @ C 5 1 6 K e 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 f 0 6 : B B 6 ; 7 @ > D F > 0 D > 2 0 1 2 3 1 3 7 C 5 7 6 D 1 E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < : 2 8 A 5 1 : B F 6 K M : 5 5 : 2 0 8 6 K K > 0 2 1 D D EQ C : @ > 0 8 E 1 K K > B : B 8 6 5 1 K K > B > 1 2 B 8 E M F 1 0 F 1 5 M 5 > 0 0 1 2 6 5 > ; 7 @ > 1 3 hv � w ? 6 D D 6 K 5 1 7 C 0 : 0 > 6 2 E B C D 0 6 ; 1 5 K : > 0 F 6 5 : 7 7 5 6 J : @ E 6 5 : 2 8 B 6 D 0 D > 2 B C 5 5 1 3 0 6 5 1 < : > 2 B C D 0 6 ; 1 5 ; : 5 H 1 0 E 6 5 : 2 86 0 F 1 5 B 6 2 D 1 Q C 1 2 0 > : @ 3 : ; : < 1 D hv � w ? 1 < : @ K 1 1 D 6 5 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 D hv � � w 9 : ; : < 1 D B @ : > ; 1 3 K 6 5 : 2 8 @ 6 D D E B 6 D 0 6 5 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 > 2 B C 5 5 1 3 A 8 8 6 C 6 5 6 0 F 1 5 D K 6 5 0 F 1 @ 6 D D 6 K C D 1 6 K e 8 6 C 57 5 6 3 C B 0 f hv � � w e 4 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 f : 5 > D > 2 < K 5 6 ; 0 F 1 e 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ f 6 K : 2 8 6 K e 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D f K 6 5 M F > B F B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 > D1 / B @ C 3 1 3 A 8 1 2 3 6 5 D 1 ; 1 2 0 hv � k w ^ 2 8 e 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ f > 2 > 0 > : 0 1 3 3 C 1 0 6 0 F 1 1 / 7 > 5 : 0 > 6 2 6 K 0 F 1 3 1 D > < 2 : 0 1 3 D F 1 @ K @ > K 1 6 K e 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 f h| , � � � � 	 
 � � i p j 
 � � 	 � 
 � 
 � � � � � 
 � � � 
 � � � � � o F 1 Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 7 5 6 J > 3 1 3 C 2 3 1 5 �  $ # � � ) # i b � # ( " �  & � c : 7 7 @ > 1 D 0 6 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K M : 0 1 5 3 : ; : < 10 6 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D 0 F : 0 : 5 1 A 6 0 F 5 1 2 0 1 3 0 6 : 2 3 6 B B C 7 > 1 3 A 8 8 6 C ho F 1 ? > ; > 0 C 2 3 1 5 0 F > D B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 D F : @ @ 2 6 0 A 1 > 2 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 0 6 0 F 1 9 : ; : < 1 o 6 4 5 1 ; > D 1 D U 1 2 0 1 3 o 6 m 6 C ? > ; > 0 ho F 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 > D @ > ; > 0 1 3 : D 3 1 D B 5 > A 1 3 A 1 @ 6 M > 2 � � � � � � � � � � p � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � �� , � � � � � � � � � � 
 	  � 
  � � � � � p � � � � 	 
 � � � 
 
 � � � > D : ; 1 2 3 1 3 Z� , o 6 5 1 : 3 � � � � � � � � � � 
 	  � 
  � � � � �k , � � � ' �  & % �Y 0 1 ; � , + , > D : ; 1 2 3 1 3 : D K 6 @ @ 6 M D Z+ , g 7 0 6 R O E S S S K 6 5 B 6 D 0 6 K A : > @ A 6 2 3 D 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 1 B : C D 1 6 K : B B > 3 1 2 0 D 6 5 0 5 : K K > B @ : M J > 6 @ : 0 > 6 2 D : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K 0 F 1C D 1 6 K : 2 8 J 1 F > B @ 1 0 6 M F > B F 0 F 1 P 6 3 > @ 8 Y 2 a C 5 8 ? > : A > @ > 0 8 I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 : 7 7 @ > 1 D h W 1 3 6 2 6 0 F : J 1 0 6 K C 5 2 > D F 0 F 1 D 1A 6 2 3 D h� , �  � �  ! � � � & � & ) �Y 0 1 ; � , % , > D : ; 1 2 3 1 3 : D K 6 @ @ 6 M D Z% , ^ @ @ 5 1 : D 6 2 : A @ 1 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 D > 2 B C 5 5 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 1 3 : 0 6 C 5 5 1 Q C 1 D 0 0 6 : D D > D 0 C D > 2 0 F 1 > 2 J 1 D 0 > < : 0 > 6 2 6 5 3 1 K 1 2 D 1 6 K0 F 1 B @ : > ; 6 5 e D C > 0 f E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < : B 0 C : @ @ 6 D D 6 K 1 : 5 2 > 2 < D C 7 0 6 R N S S : 3 : 8 A 1 B : C D 1 6 K 0 > ; 1 6 K K K 5 6 ; M 6 5 H hy , , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < @ : 2 < C : < 1 > D : 3 3 1 3 0 6 Y 0 1 ; � ,V 6 M 1 J 1 5 E M 1 D F : @ @ F : J 1 2 6 2 1 6 K 0 F 1 3 C 0 > 1 D D 1 0 K 6 5 0 F : A 6 J 1 M F 1 2 0 F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 6 2 @ 8 K 6 5 �  ' � & " � � �� �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # : 2 3 � 6 5 � � � # u � � � "  % �  � �  & " �  ' � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # : 2 3 M 1 F : J 1 7 : > 30 F 1 ? > ; > 0 6 K ? > : A > @ > 0 8 6 5 0 F 1 ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 ? > ; > 0 K 6 5 0 F 1 D 1 B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 D h
� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # y  ! � k

370

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �
 , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < B F : 2 < 1 > D ; : 3 1 Z� r " # & % # % 	 # *  � " � & ) 	 # { � � � # � # & " �Y 0 1 ; � , � , > D 3 1 @ 1 0 1 3 : 2 3 5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < �� , I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 C 2 3 1 5 0 F > D 7 5 6 J > D > 6 2 > D : K K 6 5 3 1 3 6 2 @ 8 C 2 0 > @ 0 F 1 O \ S 0 F 3 : 8 : K 0 1 5 8 6 C : B Q C > 5 1 6 5 K 6 5 ; 0 F 1 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 6 50 F 1 1 2 3 6 K 0 F 1 7 6 @ > B 8 7 1 5 > 6 3 E M F > B F 1 J 1 5 > D 1 : 5 @ > 1 5 h� , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < 7 5 6 J > D > 6 2 D : 5 1 : 3 3 1 3 Zy , Y 0 1 ; � , ! , > D : 3 3 1 3 : D K 6 @ @ 6 M D Z! , ^ 2 8 @ 1 < : @ @ 8 > 2 B 6 5 7 6 5 : 0 1 3 1 2 0 > 0 8 6 K M F > B F 8 6 C 6 M 2 ; 6 5 1 0 F : 2 N S 7 1 5 B 1 2 0 6 K 0 F 1 J 6 0 > 2 < D 0 6 B H 3 C 5 > 2 < 0 F 1 7 6 @ > B 87 1 5 > 6 3 6 2 @ 8 > K 0 F 1 5 1 > D 2 6 6 0 F 1 5 D > ; > @ : 5 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : J : > @ : A @ 1 0 6 0 F : 0 1 2 0 > 0 8 h V 6 M 1 J 1 5 Zv � w �  $ # � � ) # 
 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 e A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f 6 5 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f 0 F : 0 6 B B C 5 5 1 3 A 1 K 6 5 1 8 6 C : B Q C > 5 1 3; 6 5 1 0 F : 2 N S 7 1 5 B 1 2 0 6 K 0 F 1 J 6 0 > 2 < D 0 6 B H x : 2 3v k w �  $ # � � ) # � 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 e 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 < > 2 a C 5 8 f : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K : 2 6 K K 1 2 D 1 B 6 ; ; > 0 0 1 3A 1 K 6 5 1 8 6 C : B Q C > 5 1 3 ; 6 5 1 0 F : 2 N S 7 1 5 B 1 2 0 6 K 0 F 1 J 6 0 > 2 < D 0 6 B H h| , 
 % % � " �  & � ' � & � � � # % p � t & # � � u � # � � # # �  � �  & " � � ( "  � � p 
 � "  � � " � ( � " � " � � j � # & 	 # { � � � # % � & �  & � " � � ( " �  & � � # � $ � ( # 
 ) � # # � # & " j � " �   � z � & ( ' � % � & ) � * � " � # � � � � � " � # �� ,+ , ^ 2 8 6 0 F 1 5 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 8 6 C : 5 1 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 0 6 : 3 3 : D : 2 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 C 2 3 1 5 0 F 1 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5: < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 3 1 D B 5 > A 1 3 > 2 4 : 5 : < 5 : 7 F : h : A 6 J 1 hG C B F 7 1 5 D 6 2 b D c 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 b D c > D : 2 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 6 2 @ 8 M > 0 F 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6 @ > : A > @ > 0 8 K 6 5 � A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � E � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 83 : ; : < 1 � 6 5 � 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 < > 2 a C 5 8 � M F > B F ; : 8 A 1 > ; 7 C 0 1 3 0 6 0 F : 0 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 3 > 5 1 B 0 @ 8 : 5 > D > 2 <6 C 0 6 K Z� , m 6 C 5 : B 0 D 6 5 6 ; > D D > 6 2 D x 6 5k , o F 1 : B 0 D 6 5 6 ; > D D > 6 2 D 6 K 0 F 6 D 1 : B 0 > 2 < 6 2 8 6 C 5 A 1 F : @ K x> 2 0 F 1 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; : 2 B 1 6 K 8 6 C 5 6 2 < 6 > 2 < 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D K 6 5 0 F 1 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 hV 6 M 1 J 1 5 E 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 D C B F : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 Z� , l 2 @ 8 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 0 6 0 F 1 1 / 0 1 2 0 7 1 5 ; > 0 0 1 3 A 8 @ : M x : 2 3k , W > @ @ 2 6 0 A 1 A 5 6 : 3 1 5 0 F : 2 0 F : 0 M F > B F 8 6 C : 5 1 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 0 6 7 5 6 J > 3 1 K 6 5 D C B F: 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 h( , W > 0 F 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 0 F 1 D 1 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 D E 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 D : 7 7 @ 8 Zo F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 Z� , � P 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � E � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � 6 5 � 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 < > 2 a C 5 8 � : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K 0 F 1 5 1 2 3 1 5 > 2 < 6 K E 6 50 F 1 K : > @ C 5 1 0 6 5 1 2 3 1 5 E : 2 8 7 5 6 K 1 D D > 6 2 : @ : 5 B F > 0 1 B 0 C 5 : @ E 1 2 < > 2 1 1 5 > 2 < 6 5 D C 5 J 1 8 > 2 < D 1 5 J > B 1 D E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < Z� , o F 1 7 5 1 7 : 5 > 2 < E : 7 7 5 6 J > 2 < E 6 5 K : > @ > 2 < 0 6 7 5 1 7 : 5 1 6 5 : 7 7 5 6 J 1 E ; : 7 D E D F 6 7 3 5 : M > 2 < D E 6 7 > 2 > 6 2 D E 5 1 7 6 5 0 D ED C 5 J 1 8 D E K > 1 @ 3 6 5 3 1 5 D E B F : 2 < 1 6 5 3 1 5 D 6 5 3 5 : M > 2 < D : 2 3 D 7 1 B > K > B : 0 > 6 2 D x 6 5+ , G C 7 1 5 J > D 6 5 8 E > 2 D 7 1 B 0 > 6 2 E : 5 B F > 0 1 B 0 C 5 : @ 6 5 1 2 < > 2 1 1 5 > 2 < : B 0 > J > 0 > 1 D ho F > D 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 1 J 1 2 > K 0 F 1 B @ : > ; D : < : > 2 D 0 : 2 8 > 2 D C 5 1 3 : @ @ 1 < 1 2 1 < @ > < 1 2 B 1 6 5 6 0 F 1 5 M 5 6 2 < 3 6 > 2 < > 2 0 F 1D C 7 1 5 J > D > 6 2 E F > 5 > 2 < E 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 ; 1 2 0 E 0 5 : > 2 > 2 < 6 5 ; 6 2 > 0 6 5 > 2 < 6 K 6 0 F 1 5 D A 8 0 F : 0 > 2 D C 5 1 3 E > K 0 F 1 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � M F > B FB : C D 1 3 0 F 1 � A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � 6 5 � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � E 6 5 0 F 1 6 K K 1 2 D 1 M F > B F B : C D 1 3 0 F 1 � 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 <> 2 a C 5 8 � E > 2 J 6 @ J 1 3 0 F 1 5 1 2 3 1 5 > 2 < 6 K 6 5 0 F 1 K : > @ C 5 1 0 6 5 1 2 3 1 5 : 2 8 7 5 6 K 1 D D > 6 2 : @ : 5 B F > 0 1 B 0 C 5 : @ E 1 2 < > 2 1 1 5 > 2 < 6 5D C 5 J 1 8 > 2 < D 1 5 J > B 1 D h� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # |  ! � k

� 	 � 
 � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � � � 	 � �
^ 2 8 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 K 6 5 M F 6 ; 8 6 C : 5 1 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; > 2 < 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D M F 1 2 8 6 C : 2 3 D C B F 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 56 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 F : J 1 : < 5 1 1 3 > 2 M 5 > 0 > 2 < > 2 : B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 0 F : 0 D C B F 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 A 1 : 3 3 1 3 : D: 2 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 6 2 8 6 C 5 7 6 @ > B 8 x

371

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �k , � P 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � 6 5 � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � 6 B B C 5 5 > 2 < : K 0 1 5 Z� , ^ @ @ M 6 5 H E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < ; : 0 1 5 > : @ D E 7 : 5 0 D 6 5 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 K C 5 2 > D F 1 3 > 2 B 6 2 2 1 B 0 > 6 2 M > 0 F D C B F M 6 5 H E 6 2 0 F 17 5 6 a 1 B 0 b 6 0 F 1 5 0 F : 2 D 1 5 J > B 1 E ; : > 2 0 1 2 : 2 B 1 6 5 5 1 7 : > 5 D c 0 6 A 1 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; 1 3 A 8 6 5 6 2 A 1 F : @ K 6 K 0 F 1 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @> 2 D C 5 1 3 b D c : 0 0 F 1 @ 6 B : 0 > 6 2 6 K 0 F 1 B 6 J 1 5 1 3 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D F : D A 1 1 2 B 6 ; 7 @ 1 0 1 3 x 6 5+ , o F : 0 7 6 5 0 > 6 2 6 K � 8 6 C 5 M 6 5 H � 6 C 0 6 K M F > B F 0 F 1 > 2 a C 5 8 6 5 3 : ; : < 1 : 5 > D 1 D F : D A 1 1 2 7 C 0 0 6 > 0 D > 2 0 1 2 3 1 3 C D 1A 8 : 2 8 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 6 0 F 1 5 0 F : 2 : 2 6 0 F 1 5 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 6 5 D C A B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 1 2 < : < 1 3 > 2 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; > 2 <6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D K 6 5 : 7 5 > 2 B > 7 : @ : D : 7 : 5 0 6 K 0 F 1 D : ; 1 7 5 6 a 1 B 0 h} , � , ^ 2 8 7 1 5 D 6 2 b D c 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 b D c b 5 1 K 1 5 5 1 3 0 6 0 F 5 6 C < F 6 C 0 0 F > D : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 : D J 1 2 3 6 5 c E A C 0 6 2 @ 8 M > 0 F5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6 � A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � 6 5 � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � E M F > B F ; : 8 A 1 > ; 7 C 0 1 3 0 6 0 F : 0 7 1 5 D 6 2 b D c 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 b D c: 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K e 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D f D F 6 M 2 M > 0 F 0 F 1 G B F 1 3 C @ 1 M F > B F : 5 1 3 > D 0 5 > A C 0 1 3 6 5 D 6 @ 3 > 2 0 F 1 5 1 < C @ : 5 B 6 C 5 D 1 6 K0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 � D A C D > 2 1 D D > D : 2 > 2 D C 5 1 3 hV 6 M 1 J 1 5 Zv � w o F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 D C B F J 1 2 3 6 5 6 2 @ 8 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 0 6 0 F 1 1 / 0 1 2 0 7 1 5 ; > 0 0 1 3 A 8 @ : M x : 2 3v k w Y K B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 7 5 6 J > 3 1 3 0 6 0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 > D 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 8 : B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 E 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 D C B FJ 1 2 3 6 5 M > @ @ 2 6 0 A 1 A 5 6 : 3 1 5 0 F : 2 0 F : 0 M F > B F 8 6 C : 5 1 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 0 6 7 5 6 J > 3 1 K 6 5D C B F J 1 2 3 6 5 h+ , W > 0 F 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 0 F 1 D 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 D E 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 D : 7 7 @ 8 Zv � w o F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 Zv � w e P 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f 6 5 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f K 6 5 M F > B F 0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 > D 6 A @ > < : 0 1 3 0 6 7 : 8 3 : ; : < 1 D A 8 5 1 : D 6 2 6 K0 F 1 : D D C ; 7 0 > 6 2 6 K @ > : A > @ > 0 8 > 2 : B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 h o F > D 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 @ > : A > @ > 0 8 K 6 53 : ; : < 1 D 0 F : 0 0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 M 6 C @ 3 F : J 1 > 2 0 F 1 : A D 1 2 B 1 6 K 0 F 1 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 xv + w ^ 2 8 1 / 7 5 1 D D M : 5 5 : 2 0 8 C 2 : C 0 F 6 5 > [ 1 3 A 8 8 6 C xv ( w ^ 2 8 7 F 8 D > B : @ 6 5 B F 1 ; > B : @ B F : 2 < 1 > 2 0 F 1 7 5 6 3 C B 0 ; : 3 1 > 2 0 1 2 0 > 6 2 : @ @ 8 A 8 0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 xv % w U 1 7 : B H : < > 2 < E 1 / B 1 7 0 M F 1 2 C 2 7 : B H 1 3 D 6 @ 1 @ 8 K 6 5 0 F 1 7 C 5 7 6 D 1 6 K > 2 D 7 1 B 0 > 6 2 E 3 1 ; 6 2 D 0 5 : 0 > 6 2 E 0 1 D 0 > 2 < E 6 50 F 1 D C A D 0 > 0 C 0 > 6 2 6 K 7 : 5 0 D C 2 3 1 5 > 2 D 0 5 C B 0 > 6 2 D K 5 6 ; 0 F 1 ; : 2 C K : B 0 C 5 1 5 E : 2 3 0 F 1 2 5 1 7 : B H : < 1 3 > 2 0 F 16 5 > < > 2 : @ B 6 2 0 : > 2 1 5 hv # w ^ 2 8 K : > @ C 5 1 0 6 ; : H 1 D C B F > 2 D 7 1 B 0 > 6 2 D E : 3 a C D 0 ; 1 2 0 D E 0 1 D 0 D 6 5 D 1 5 J > B > 2 < : D 0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 F : D : < 5 1 1 3 0 6; : H 1 6 5 2 6 5 ; : @ @ 8 C 2 3 1 5 0 : H 1 D 0 6 ; : H 1 > 2 0 F 1 C D C : @ B 6 C 5 D 1 6 K A C D > 2 1 D D E > 2 B 6 2 2 1 B 0 > 6 2 M > 0 F 0 F 13 > D 0 5 > A C 0 > 6 2 6 5 D : @ 1 6 K 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D hv ! w 9 1 ; 6 2 D 0 5 : 0 > 6 2 E > 2 D 0 : @ @ : 0 > 6 2 E D 1 5 J > B > 2 < 6 5 5 1 7 : > 5 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D E 1 / B 1 7 0 D C B F 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; 1 3 : 0 0 F 1J 1 2 3 6 5 � D 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D > 2 B 6 2 2 1 B 0 > 6 2 M > 0 F 0 F 1 D : @ 1 6 K 0 F 1 7 5 6 3 C B 0 hv ) w 4 5 6 3 C B 0 D M F > B F E : K 0 1 5 3 > D 0 5 > A C 0 > 6 2 6 5 D : @ 1 A 8 8 6 C E F : J 1 A 1 1 2 @ : A 1 @ 1 3 6 5 5 1 @ : A 1 @ 1 3 6 5 C D 1 3 : D :B 6 2 0 : > 2 1 5 E 7 : 5 0 6 5 > 2 < 5 1 3 > 1 2 0 6 K : 2 8 6 0 F 1 5 0 F > 2 < 6 5 D C A D 0 : 2 B 1 A 8 6 5 K 6 5 0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 hv � w � P 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � 6 5 � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K 0 F 1 D 6 @ 1 2 1 < @ > < 1 2 B 1 6 K 0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 K 6 5 > 0 D 6 M 2 : B 0 D6 5 6 ; > D D > 6 2 D 6 5 0 F 6 D 1 6 K > 0 D 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 D 6 5 : 2 8 6 2 1 1 @ D 1 : B 0 > 2 < 6 2 > 0 D A 1 F : @ K h V 6 M 1 J 1 5 E 0 F > D 1 / B @ C D > 6 23 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 Z� , o F 1 1 / B 1 7 0 > 6 2 D B 6 2 0 : > 2 1 3 > 2 G C A L 7 : 5 : < 5 : 7 F D 3 h 6 5 K h x 6 5� � , G C B F > 2 D 7 1 B 0 > 6 2 D E : 3 a C D 0 ; 1 2 0 D E 0 1 D 0 D 6 5 D 1 5 J > B > 2 < : D 0 F 1 J 1 2 3 6 5 F : D : < 5 1 1 3 0 6 ; : H 1 6 5 2 6 5 ; : @ @ 8C 2 3 1 5 0 : H 1 D 0 6 ; : H 1 > 2 0 F 1 C D C : @ B 6 C 5 D 1 6 K A C D > 2 1 D D E > 2 B 6 2 2 1 B 0 > 6 2 M > 0 F 0 F 1 3 > D 0 5 > A C 0 > 6 2 6 5 D : @ 1 6 K0 F 1 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D hv k w o F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 : 2 8 > 2 D C 5 1 3 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 E K 5 6 ; M F 6 ; 8 6 C F : J 1 : B Q C > 5 1 3 D C B F7 5 6 3 C B 0 D E 6 5 : 2 8 > 2 < 5 1 3 > 1 2 0 E 7 : 5 0 6 5 B 6 2 0 : > 2 1 5 E 1 2 0 1 5 > 2 < > 2 0 6 E : B B 6 ; 7 : 2 8 > 2 < 6 5 B 6 2 0 : > 2 > 2 < D C B F 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D h
� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # }  ! � k


 % % � " �  & � ' � & � � � # % p � # & %  � �

372

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �� , � , ^ 2 8 7 1 5 D 6 2 b D c 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 b D c K 5 6 ; M F 6 ; 8 6 C @ 1 : D 1 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 M F 1 2 8 6 C : 2 3 D C B F 7 1 5 D 6 2 b D c 6 56 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 b D c F : J 1 : < 5 1 1 3 > 2 M 5 > 0 > 2 < > 2 : B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 0 F : 0 D C B F 7 1 5 D 6 2 b D c 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 b D c A 1: 3 3 1 3 : D : 2 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 6 2 8 6 C 5 7 6 @ > B 8 h G C B F 7 1 5 D 6 2 b D c 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 b D c > D : 2 > 2 D C 5 1 3 6 2 @ 8 M > 0 F5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6 8 6 C 5 @ > : A > @ > 0 8 K 6 5 � A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � E � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � 6 5 � 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 < > 2 a C 5 8 � 3 > 5 1 B 0 @ 8: 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K 0 F 1 ; : > 2 0 1 2 : 2 B 1 E 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 6 5 C D 1 6 K 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 @ 1 : D 1 3 0 6 8 6 C E M F > B F ; : 8 A 1 > ; 7 C 0 1 3 0 6 D C B F7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 : D 0 F 1 @ 1 D D 6 5 6 K 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 hV 6 M 1 J 1 5 E 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 D C B F : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 Zv � w l 2 @ 8 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 0 6 0 F 1 1 / 0 1 2 0 7 1 5 ; > 0 0 1 3 A 8 @ : M x : 2 3v k w W > @ @ 2 6 0 A 1 A 5 6 : 3 1 5 0 F : 2 0 F : 0 M F > B F 8 6 C : 5 1 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 0 6 7 5 6 J > 3 1 K 6 5 D C B F: 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 h^ 7 1 5 D 6 2 � D 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 � D D 0 : 0 C D : D : 2 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 C 2 3 1 5 0 F > D 1 2 3 6 5 D 1 ; 1 2 0 1 2 3 D M F 1 2 0 F 1 > 5 B 6 2 0 5 : B 06 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 M > 0 F 8 6 C K 6 5 D C B F @ 1 : D 1 3 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 1 2 3 D h+ , W > 0 F 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 0 F 1 D 1 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 D E 0 F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 : 2 8� 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � M F > B F 0 : H 1 D 7 @ : B 1 : K 0 1 5 0 F 1 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 @ 1 : D 1 1 / 7 > 5 1 D h� , � , ^ 2 8 7 1 5 D 6 2 b D c 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 b D c E A C 0 6 2 @ 8 M > 0 F 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6 @ > : A > @ > 0 8 : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K 0 F 1 6 M 2 1 5 D F > 7 E ; : > 2 0 1 2 : 2 B 1 6 5C D 1 6 K 0 F : 0 7 : 5 0 6 K 0 F 1 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D @ 1 : D 1 3 0 6 8 6 C : 2 3 D C A a 1 B 0 0 6 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 D Zo F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 Zv � w ^ 2 8 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � M F > B F 0 : H 1 D 7 @ : B 1 : K 0 1 5 8 6 C B 1 : D 1 0 6 A 1 : 0 1 2 : 2 0 > 2 0 F : 0 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D hv k w G 0 5 C B 0 C 5 : @ : @ 0 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D E 2 1 M B 6 2 D 0 5 C B 0 > 6 2 6 5 3 1 ; 6 @ > 0 > 6 2 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; 1 3 A 8 6 5 6 2 A 1 F : @ K 6 K 0 F 17 1 5 D 6 2 b D c 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 b D c D F 6 M 2 > 2 0 F 1 G B F 1 3 C @ 1 hV 6 M 1 J 1 5 Zv � w o F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 D C B F : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 6 2 @ 8 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 0 6 0 F 1 1 / 0 1 2 0 7 1 5 ; > 0 0 1 3 A 8 @ : M x : 2 3v k w Y K B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 7 5 6 J > 3 1 3 0 6 0 F 1 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 > D 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 8 : B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 E 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1: K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 D C B F : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 M > @ @ 2 6 0 A 1 A 5 6 : 3 1 5 0 F : 2 0 F : 0 M F > B F 8 6 C : 5 1 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5: < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 0 6 7 5 6 J > 3 1 K 6 5 D C B F : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 h� , 
 % % � " �  & � ' � & � � � # % p � & ) � & # # � � u 
 � ( � � " # ( " �  � � � � $ # �  � � �  " � & ) � ) # % + � " � # � � � # % � & � � � # %� , ^ 2 8 : 5 B F > 0 1 B 0 D E 1 2 < > 2 1 1 5 D 6 5 D C 5 J 1 8 6 5 D M F 6 : 5 1 2 6 0 1 2 < : < 1 3 A 8 8 6 C : 5 1 > 2 D C 5 1 3 D E A C 0 6 2 @ 8 M > 0 F 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6@ > : A > @ > 0 8 K 6 5 � A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � 6 5 � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � 6 5 e 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 < > 2 a C 5 8 � M F > B F ; : 8 A 1 > ; 7 C 0 1 3 0 60 F : 0 : 5 B F > 0 1 B 0 E 1 2 < > 2 1 1 5 6 5 D C 5 J 1 8 6 5 : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K Zv � w m 6 C 5 : B 0 D 6 5 6 ; > D D > 6 2 D x 6 5v k w m 6 C 5 : B 0 D 6 5 6 ; > D D > 6 2 D 6 K 0 F 6 D 1 : B 0 > 2 < 6 2 8 6 C 5 A 1 F : @ K x> 2 0 F 1 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; : 2 B 1 6 K 8 6 C 5 6 2 < 6 > 2 < 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; 1 3 A 8 8 6 C 6 5 6 2 8 6 C 5 A 1 F : @ K hV 6 M 1 J 1 5 E 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 D C B F : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 Zv � w l 2 @ 8 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 0 6 0 F 1 1 / 0 1 2 0 7 1 5 ; > 0 0 1 3 A 8 @ : M x : 2 3v k w W > @ @ 2 6 0 A 1 A 5 6 : 3 1 5 0 F : 2 0 F : 0 M F > B F 8 6 C : 5 1 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 0 6 7 5 6 J > 3 1 K 6 5 D C B F: 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 h+ , W > 0 F 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 0 F 1 D 1 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 D E 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 : 7 7 @ > 1 D Zo F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 � A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � E � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � 6 5 � 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 < > 2 a C 5 8 �: 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K 0 F 1 5 1 2 3 1 5 > 2 < 6 K 6 5 K : > @ C 5 1 0 6 5 1 2 3 1 5 : 2 8 7 5 6 K 1 D D > 6 2 : @ D 1 5 J > B 1 D E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < Z� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # �  ! � k


 % % � " �  & � ' � & � � � # % z � # � �  �  ! � # � � # % � { � � * � # & " z 
 � "  � � " � ( � " � " � � j � # & 	 # { � � � # % � & � # � � #
 ) � # # � # & " j � " �   �


 % % � " �  & � ' � & � � � # % z � � & � ) # � �  � � # � �  � �  ! � � # � � � # �

P C 0 6 2 @ 8 > K D C B F : 5 B F > 0 1 B 0 D E 1 2 < > 2 1 1 5 D 6 5 D C 5 J 1 8 6 5 D E M F > @ 1 2 6 0 1 2 < : < 1 3 A 8 8 6 C E : 5 1 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 C : @ @ 8 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 0 6 A 1: 3 3 1 3 : D : 2 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 0 6 8 6 C 5 7 6 @ > B 8 h

373

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �v � w o F 1 7 5 1 7 : 5 > 2 < E : 7 7 5 6 J > 2 < E 6 5 K : > @ > 2 < 0 6 7 5 1 7 : 5 1 6 5 : 7 7 5 6 J 1 E ; : 7 D E 3 5 : M > 2 < D E 6 7 > 2 > 6 2 D E 5 1 7 6 5 0 D E D C 5 J 1 8 D EB F : 2 < 1 6 5 3 1 5 D E 3 1 D > < 2 D 6 5 D 7 1 B > K > B : 0 > 6 2 D x 6 5v k w G C 7 1 5 J > D 6 5 8 E > 2 D 7 1 B 0 > 6 2 6 5 1 2 < > 2 1 1 5 > 2 < D 1 5 J > B 1 D ho F > D 1 / B @ C D > 6 2 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 1 J 1 2 > K 0 F 1 B @ : > ; D : < : > 2 D 0 : 2 8 > 2 D C 5 1 3 : @ @ 1 < 1 2 1 < @ > < 1 2 B 1 6 5 6 0 F 1 5 M 5 6 2 < 3 6 > 2 < > 2 0 F 1D C 7 1 5 J > D > 6 2 E F > 5 > 2 < E 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 ; 1 2 0 E 0 5 : > 2 > 2 < 6 5 ; 6 2 > 0 6 5 > 2 < 6 K 6 0 F 1 5 D A 8 0 F : 0 > 2 D C 5 1 3 E > K 0 F 1 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � M F > B FB : C D 1 3 0 F 1 e A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � 6 5 � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � E 6 5 0 F 1 6 K K 1 2 D 1 M F > B F B : C D 1 3 0 F 1 � 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 <> 2 a C 5 8 � E > 2 J 6 @ J 1 3 0 F 1 5 1 2 3 1 5 > 2 < 6 K 6 5 0 F 1 K : > @ C 5 1 0 6 5 1 2 3 1 5 : 2 8 7 5 6 K 1 D D > 6 2 : @ D 1 5 J > B 1 D h� � , 
 % % � " �  & � ' � & � � � # % p � � * '  � # # � & s � � � "  
 &  " � # � � � * '  � # #W > 0 F 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 0 6 8 6 C 5 e 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 D f M F 6 6 B B C 7 8 7 6 D > 0 > 6 2 D M F > B F : 5 1 D C 7 1 5 J > D 6 5 8 > 2 2 : 0 C 5 1 Z4 : 5 : < 5 : 7 F k , � , v � w 6 K � � � � � � � � � z j i � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � > D : ; 1 2 3 1 3 0 6 5 1 : 3 Z� , e P 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f 6 5 e 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 < > 2 a C 5 8 fv � w o 6 8 6 C E 0 6 8 6 C 5 7 : 5 0 2 1 5 D 6 5 ; 1 ; A 1 5 D b > K 8 6 C : 5 1 : 7 : 5 0 2 1 5 D F > 7 6 5 a 6 > 2 0 J 1 2 0 C 5 1 c E 6 5 0 6 8 6 C 5 ; 1 ; A 1 5 D b > K8 6 C : 5 1 : @ > ; > 0 1 3 @ > : A > @ > 0 8 B 6 ; 7 : 2 8 c xv k w = 6 5 M F > B F 0 F 1 5 1 > D : 2 8 6 A @ > < : 0 > 6 2 0 6 D F : 5 1 3 : ; : < 1 D M > 0 F 6 5 5 1 7 : 8 D 6 ; 1 6 2 1 1 @ D 1 M F 6 ; C D 0 7 : 8 3 : ; : < 1 DA 1 B : C D 1 6 K 0 F 1 > 2 a C 5 8 3 1 D B 5 > A 1 3 > 2 7 : 5 : < 5 : 7 F v � w v � w : A 6 J 1 x 6 5v � w ^ 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K F > D 6 5 F 1 5 7 5 6 J > 3 > 2 < 6 5 K : > @ > 2 < 0 6 7 5 6 J > 3 1 7 5 6 K 1 D D > 6 2 : @ F 1 : @ 0 F B : 5 1 D 1 5 J > B 1 D h 4 : 5 : < 5 : 7 F � , � , > D3 1 @ 1 0 1 3 h= 6 5 0 F 1 7 C 5 7 6 D 1 6 K 0 F > D Y 0 1 ; � � 6 2 @ 8 E : 7 6 D > 0 > 6 2 > D 3 1 1 ; 1 3 0 6 A 1 D C 7 1 5 J > D 6 5 8 > 2 2 : 0 C 5 1 > K 0 F : 0 7 1 5 D 6 2 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; D7 5 > 2 B > 7 @ 1 M 6 5 H M F > B F > D D C A D 0 : 2 0 > : @ @ 8 3 > K K 1 5 1 2 0 K 5 6 ; 0 F : 0 6 K F > D 6 5 F 1 5 D C A 6 5 3 > 2 : 0 1 D : 2 3 F : D : C 0 F 6 5 > 0 8 0 6 F > 5 1 E3 > 5 1 B 0 E 3 > D B > 7 @ > 2 1 6 5 3 > D B F : 5 < 1 h
 , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Y 0 1 ; D : 5 1 3 1 @ 1 0 1 3 : 2 3 5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Zk , o F 1 T 1 2 1 5 : @ ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 ? > ; > 0 > D 0 F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 K 6 5 0 F 1 D C ; 6 K Z� , ` 1 3 > B : @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 D C 2 3 1 5 �  $ # � � ) # � �+ , 9 : ; : < 1 D C 2 3 1 5 �  $ # � � ) # 
 u 1 / B 1 7 0 3 : ; : < 1 D A 1 B : C D 1 6 K � A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � 6 5 � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � > 2 B @ C 3 1 3 > 20 F 1 � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D L B 6 ; 7 @ 1 0 1 3 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D F : [ : 5 3 � x : 2 3( , 9 : ; : < 1 D C 2 3 1 5 �  $ # � � ) # � � : 2 3% , 9 : ; : < 1 D C 2 3 1 5 �  $ # � � ) # i ,� , o F 1 4 5 6 3 C B 0 D L I 6 ; 7 @ 1 0 1 3 l 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 ? > ; > 0 > D 0 F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 C 2 3 1 5 �  $ # � � ) # 
 K 6 5 3 : ; : < 1 DA 1 B : C D 1 6 K � A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � : 2 3 � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � > 2 B @ C 3 1 3 > 2 0 F 1 � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D L B 6 ; 7 @ 1 0 1 3 6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D F : [ : 5 3 � : 2 3�  $ # � � ) # � ,} , G C A a 1 B 0 0 6 | , : A 6 J 1 E 0 F 1 9 : ; : < 1 0 6 4 5 1 ; > D 1 D U 1 2 0 1 3 0 6 m 6 C ? > ; > 0 > D 0 F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 C 2 3 1 5 �  $ # � � ) # 
 K 6 53 : ; : < 1 D A 1 B : C D 1 6 K � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � 0 6 : 2 8 6 2 1 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D E M F > @ 1 5 1 2 0 1 3 0 6 8 6 C E 6 5 > 2 0 F 1 B : D 1 6 K 3 : ; : < 1 A 8K > 5 1 E 1 / 7 @ 6 D > 6 2 E @ > < F 0 2 > 2 < E D ; 6 H 1 5 1 D C @ 0 > 2 < K 5 6 ; D C B F K > 5 1 E 1 / 7 @ 6 D > 6 2 E 6 5 @ > < F 0 2 > 2 < 6 5 D 7 5 > 2 H @ 1 5 @ 1 : H : < 1 M F > @ 1 5 1 2 0 1 30 6 8 6 C 6 5 0 1 ; 7 6 5 : 5 > @ 8 6 B B C 7 > 1 3 A 8 8 6 C M > 0 F 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 6 K 0 F 1 6 M 2 1 5 h� , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < : 5 1 : 3 3 1 3 Z� , G C A a 1 B 0 0 6 4 : 5 : < 5 : 7 F | , 6 K � � � � � � � � � � z � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � R X N E S S S > D 0 F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 C 2 3 1 5�  $ # � � ) # i K 6 5 j � " # � � � � � ) # � # ) � ' � � � + � ' � " � ,^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 ? > ; > 0 R N S E S S S. : B F 4 5 6 3 C B 0 U 1 B : @ @ ? > ; > 0 R X N E S S S� , o F 1 ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 ? > ; > 0 D F 6 M 2 : A 6 J 1 > D 0 F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 K 6 5 0 F 1 D C ; 6 K : @ @ � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 � 8 6 C> 2 B C 5 : D : 5 1 D C @ 0 6 K : @ @ � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ D � 8 6 C > 2 > 0 > : 0 1 3 C 5 > 2 < 0 F 1 1 2 3 6 5 D 1 ; 1 2 0 7 1 5 > 6 3 h� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # �  ! � k
�  $ # � � ) # � p � �  % � ( " 	 # ( � ' ' � r * # & � #� ,

374

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �+ , o F 1 . : B F 4 5 6 3 C B 0 U 1 B : @ @ ? > ; > 0 D F 6 M 2 : A 6 J 1 > D 0 F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 E D C A a 1 B 0 0 6 0 F 1 ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 : 2 3 R O E S S S3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 E K 6 5 � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 � 8 6 C > 2 B C 5 K 6 5 : 2 8 6 2 1 � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ f 8 6 C > 2 > 0 > : 0 1 3 C 5 > 2 < 0 F 11 2 3 6 5 D 1 ; 1 2 0 7 1 5 > 6 3 hW 1 M > @ @ 6 2 @ 8 7 : 8 K 6 5 0 F 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 6 K � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 D � M F > B F : 5 1 > 2 1 / B 1 D D 6 K 0 F 1 3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 h o F 13 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 : 7 7 @ > 1 D D 1 7 : 5 : 0 1 @ 8 0 6 1 : B F � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ � h o F 1 @ > ; > 0 D 6 K > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 M > @ @ 2 6 0 A 1 5 1 3 C B 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 : ; 6 C 2 06 K 0 F > D 3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 hW 1 ; : 8 E 6 5 M > @ @ > K 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 8 @ : M E 7 : 8 : @ @ 6 5 : 2 8 7 : 5 0 6 K : 2 8 3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 h g 7 6 2 2 6 0 > B 1 6 K 6 C 5 7 : 8 ; 1 2 0 6 K :3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 E 8 6 C D F : @ @ 7 5 6 ; 7 0 @ 8 5 1 > ; A C 5 D 1 C D K 6 5 0 F 1 7 : 5 0 6 K 0 F 1 3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 M 1 7 : > 3 h� � , o F 1 T 1 2 1 5 : @ ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 ? > ; > 0 : 7 7 @ > 1 D D 1 7 : 5 : 0 1 @ 8 0 6 1 : B F 6 K 8 6 C 5 � @ 6 B : 0 > 6 2 D � 6 M 2 1 3 A 8 6 5 5 1 2 0 1 3 0 6 8 6 C 6 50 1 ; 7 6 5 : 5 > @ 8 6 B B C 7 > 1 3 A 8 8 6 C M > 0 F 0 F 1 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 6 K 0 F 1 6 M 2 1 5 h� ? 6 B : 0 > 6 2 � ; 1 : 2 D 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D > 2 J 6 @ J > 2 < 0 F 1 D : ; 1 6 5 B 6 2 2 1 B 0 > 2 < @ 6 0 D E 6 5 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D M F 6 D 1 B 6 2 2 1 B 0 > 6 2 > D > 2 0 1 5 5 C 7 0 1 36 2 @ 8 A 8 : D 0 5 1 1 0 E 5 6 : 3 M : 8 E M : 0 1 5 M : 8 6 5 5 > < F 0 L 6 K L M : 8 6 K : 5 : > @ 5 6 : 3 h� � , o F 1 T 1 2 1 5 : @ ^ < < 5 1 < : 0 1 ? > ; > 0 : 7 7 @ > 1 D D 1 7 : 5 : 0 1 @ 8 0 6 1 : B F 6 K 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 a 1 B 0 D : M : 8 K 5 6 ; 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D 6 M 2 1 3 A 8 6 5 5 1 2 0 1 30 6 8 6 C h� k , W > 0 F 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 D 0 6 0 F 1 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : K K 6 5 3 1 3 0 6 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 D : K K 6 5 3 1 3 B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 A 8 > 0 1 ; D | 0 F 5 6 C < F � � 6 K� � � � � � � � � z j i � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � : A 6 J 1 E 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < > D : 3 3 1 3 Zo F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 6 2 A 1 F : @ K 6 K 0 F 1 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ > 2 D C 5 1 3 > D 0 F 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 6 K > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 Z� , U 1 Q C > 5 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 : < 5 1 1 ; 1 2 0 x+ , ^ J : > @ : A @ 1 C 2 3 1 5 0 F 1 : 7 7 @ > B : A @ 1 ? > ; > 0 D 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 D F 6 M 2 > 2 0 F 1 9 1 B @ : 5 : 0 > 6 2 D xW F > B F 1 J 1 5 > D @ 1 D D ho F > D 1 2 3 6 5 D 1 ; 1 2 0 D F : @ @ 2 6 0 > 2 B 5 1 : D 1 0 F 1 : 7 7 @ > B : A @ 1 ? > ; > 0 D 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 D F 6 M 2 > 2 0 F 1 9 1 B @ : 5 : 0 > 6 2 D h� � ,G C A a 1 B 0 0 6 | , 6 K � � � � � � � � � � z � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � E : R N E S S S � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � @ > ; > 0 : 2 3 : R O S E S S S � : < < 5 1 < : 0 1 �@ > ; > 0 > D 0 F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 C 2 3 1 5 I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 
 K 6 5 3 : ; : < 1 D A 1 B : C D 1 6 K � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � B 6 J 1 5 1 3 C 2 3 1 5�  $ # � � ) # � p �  ' � & " � � � � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # h�  � " � # * � � *  � # �  ! " � � � �  ' � & " � � � � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # u  � � � � ) � " � & % % � " � "  % # ! # & % # & % � t � # &t # � � $ # * � � % " � # � � � � "  ! � � � + � ' � " �  � " � # 
 ) ) � # ) � " # � � � � " !  � # � ( � (  $ # � � ) # u � & % t # � � # ) � � & " # %% � � ( � # " �  & � & � � ~ � & ) * � � � # & " � � & % # � " � � � (  $ # � � ) # ,� y , G C A a 1 B 0 0 6 | , 6 K � � � � � � � � � � z � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � E : R X N E S S S � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � @ > ; > 0 : 2 3 : R O S S E S S S� : < < 5 1 < : 0 1 � @ > ; > 0 > D 0 F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 C 2 3 1 5 �  $ # � � ) # � p � � � # u � � � "  % � � & % �  & " �  ' �  $ # � � ) # 5 1 < : 5 3 @ 1 D D6 K 0 F 1 2 C ; A 1 5 6 K Z� , Y 2 D C 5 1 3 D x+ , I @ : > ; D ; : 3 1 6 5 � D C > 0 D � A 5 6 C < F 0 x 6 5( , 4 1 5 D 6 2 D 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 D ; : H > 2 < B @ : > ; D 6 5 A 5 > 2 < > 2 < � D C > 0 D � h9 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 L l C 5 6 A @ > < : 0 > 6 2 0 6 7 : 8 3 : ; : < 1 D 6 2 8 6 C 5 A 1 F : @ K : 7 7 @ > 1 D 6 2 @ 8 0 6 0 F 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 6 K 3 : ; : < 1 D > 2 1 / B 1 D D 6 KR N S S ho F > D 3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 : 7 7 @ > 1 D 0 6 : @ @ 3 : ; : < 1 D A 1 B : C D 1 6 K � 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � : D 0 F 1 5 1 D C @ 0 6 K : 2 8 6 2 1 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 �5 1 < : 5 3 @ 1 D D 6 K 0 F 1 2 C ; A 1 5 6 K 7 1 5 D 6 2 D 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 D M F 6 D C D 0 : > 2 3 : ; : < 1 D A 1 B : C D 1 6 K 0 F : 0 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � hW 1 ; : 8 7 : 8 : 2 8 7 : 5 0 6 5 : @ @ 6 K 0 F 1 3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 0 6 1 K K 1 B 0 D 1 0 0 @ 1 ; 1 2 0 6 K : 2 8 B @ : > ; 6 5 � D C > 0 � : 2 3 C 7 6 22 6 0 > K > B : 0 > 6 2 6 K 0 F 1 : B 0 > 6 2 0 : H 1 2 E 8 6 C D F : @ @ 7 5 6 ; 7 0 @ 8 5 1 > ; A C 5 D 1 C D K 6 5 D C B F 7 : 5 0 6 K 0 F 1 3 1 3 C B 0 > A @ 1 : ; 6 C 2 0 : D F : DA 1 1 2 7 : > 3 A 8 C D h^ D 5 1 D 7 1 B 0 D 0 F > D B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 � : < < 5 1 < : 0 1 � > D 0 F 1 ; : / > ; C ; : ; 6 C 2 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 K 6 5 : @ @ B 6 J 1 5 1 3 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 D � 3 C 5 > 2 <6 2 1 7 6 @ > B 8 7 1 5 > 6 3 h�  � " � # * � � *  � # �  ! " � � � � � � # u � � � "  % � � & % �  & " �  ' � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # u  � � � � ) � " � & % % � " � "  % # ! # & % # & % � t � # & t # � � $ # * � � % " � # � � � � "  ! � � � + � ' � " �  � " � # 
 ) ) � # ) � " # � � � � " !  � # � ( � (  $ # � � ) # u � & % t #� � # ) � � & " # % % � � ( � # " �  & � & � � ~ � & ) * � � � # & " � � & % # � " � � � (  $ # � � ) # ,� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # �  ! � k


 ) ) � # ) � " # � � � � " �  ! � & � � � � & ( # v � # � �  ( � " �  & w

 ) ) � # ) � " # � � � � " �  ! � & � � � � & ( # v � # � � �  s # ( " w

375

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �� | , G C A a 1 B 0 0 6 | , 6 K � � � � � � � � � � z � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � E 0 F 1 ; 6 D 0 M 1 M > @ @ 7 : 8 K 6 5 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f C 2 3 1 5�  $ # � � ) # � p � ' # ( " �  & � ( � � " � � � � + � ' � " � �  $ # � � ) # K 6 5 @ 6 D D 6 K e 1 @ 1 B 0 5 6 2 > B 3 : 0 : f > D R N S E S S S M > 0 F 6 C 0 5 1 < : 5 3 0 6 0 F 12 C ; A 1 5 6 K e 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 D f h
 , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < B 6 2 3 > 0 > 6 2 D : 5 1 : ; 1 2 3 1 3 Z� , � &  t ' # % ) #  ! � ( ( � � � # & ( #I 6 2 3 > 0 > 6 2 k , u Y 0 1 ; D � , : 2 3 + h : 5 1 3 1 @ 1 0 1 3 : 2 3 5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Zv � w � � " � # � � & � � # � $ # & " � ! � ( ( � � � # & ( # u � ! ! # & � # u � ' � � � � � � � � "v � w m 6 C ; C D 0 D 1 1 0 6 > 0 0 F : 0 M 1 : 5 1 2 6 0 > K > 1 3 : D D 6 6 2 : D 7 5 : B 0 > B : A @ 1 6 K : 2 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � 6 5 : 2 6 K K 1 2 D 1 M F > B F; : 8 5 1 D C @ 0 > 2 : B @ : > ; h d 2 6 M @ 1 3 < 1 6 K : 2 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � A 8 8 6 C 5 : < 1 2 0 E D 1 5 J : 2 0 6 5 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 D F : @ @ 2 6 0 > 2> 0 D 1 @ K B 6 2 D 0 > 0 C 0 1 H 2 6 M @ 1 3 < 1 6 K 0 F 1 2 : ; 1 3 > 2 D C 5 1 3 C 2 @ 1 D D : 2 6 K K > B 1 5 6 K 0 F 1 2 : ; 1 3 > 2 D C 5 1 3 F : D 5 1 B 1 > J 1 3D C B F 2 6 0 > B 1 K 5 6 ; 0 F 1 : < 1 2 0 E D 1 5 J : 2 0 6 5 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 h o 6 0 F 1 1 / 0 1 2 0 7 6 D D > A @ 1 E 2 6 0 > B 1 D F 6 C @ 3 > 2 B @ C 3 1 Z� , V 6 M E M F 1 2 : 2 3 M F 1 5 1 0 F 1 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � 0 6 6 H 7 @ : B 1 x� � , o F 1 2 : ; 1 D : 2 3 : 3 3 5 1 D D 1 D 6 K : 2 8 > 2 a C 5 1 3 7 1 5 D 6 2 D : 2 3 M > 0 2 1 D D 1 D E : 2 3� � � , o F 1 2 : 0 C 5 1 : 2 3 @ 6 B : 0 > 6 2 6 K : 2 8 > 2 a C 5 8 6 5 3 : ; : < 1 : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K 0 F 1 � 6 B B C 5 5 1 2 B 1 � 6 5 6 K K 1 2 D 1 hv + w � ,
k , W F 1 5 1 � �  � % �  � � � � � # % � & � � � # % > D : 3 3 1 3 > 2 � � � � � � � � � z j i � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � 6 K 0 F > D 1 2 3 6 5 D 1 ; 1 2 0 EI 6 2 3 > 0 > 6 2 y , � " � # � � & � � � � & ( # + , � r ( # � � � & � � � � & ( # v � w , v � w > D 5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Zv � w ^ 2 8 6 K 0 F 1 6 0 F 1 5 > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 E M F 1 0 F 1 5 7 5 > ; : 5 8 E 1 / B 1 D D E B 6 2 0 > 2 < 1 2 0 6 5 6 2 : 2 8 6 0 F 1 5 A : D > D E 0 F : 0 > D : J : > @ : A @ 1 0 6 : 2> 2 D C 5 1 3 D 6 @ 1 @ 8 A 8 5 1 : D 6 2 6 K 6 M 2 1 5 D F > 7 A 8 8 6 C 6 K ; 6 5 1 0 F : 2 N S 7 1 5 B 1 2 0 6 K 0 F 1 J 6 0 > 2 < D 0 6 B H E : 2 3 2 6 0M > 0 F D 0 : 2 3 > 2 < : 2 8 6 0 F 1 5 @ : 2 < C : < 1 > 2 : 2 8 6 0 F 1 5 7 6 @ > B 8 h o F > D 7 5 6 J > D > 6 2 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : 7 7 @ 8 0 6 : 7 6 @ > B 8 M 5 > 0 0 1 2 0 6 : 7 7 @ 8D 7 1 B > K > B : @ @ 8 > 2 1 / B 1 D D 6 K 0 F > D 7 6 @ > B 8 h� , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < : 5 1 : 3 3 1 3 Z� � , I 6 2 3 > 0 > 6 2 v | w  ! k , � � � " � # � � & " � # # $ # & " � ( ( � � � # & ( # u � ! ! # & � # u � ' � � �  � � � � " � ( , m 6 C 6 5 : 2 8 6 0 F 1 5 > 2 J 6 @ J 1 3> 2 D C 5 1 3 ; C D 0 Zv | w g 7 6 2 6 C 5 5 1 Q C 1 D 0 E 5 1 7 @ : B 1 6 5 5 1 7 : > 5 0 F 1 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 B 6 J 1 5 1 3 C 2 3 1 5 �  ' � & " � � � � �  * # � " � � � � � ) # �  $ # � � ) # : 08 6 C 5 : B 0 C : @ B 6 D 0 E 1 / B @ C 3 > 2 < 7 5 6 K > 0 6 5 6 J 1 5 F 1 : 3 h� � , � ' � & ~ # " j � � $ # � � ! � � + �  ) � " �  &W 1 M : > J 1 : 2 8 5 > < F 0 6 K 5 1 B 6 J 1 5 8 M 1 ; : 8 F : J 1 : < : > 2 D 0 : 2 8 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 A 1 B : C D 1 6 K 7 : 8 ; 1 2 0 D M 1 ; : H 1K 6 5 > 2 a C 5 8 6 5 3 : ; : < 1 : 5 > D > 2 < 6 C 0 6 K Z 7 5 1 ; > D 1 D 6 M 2 1 3 6 5 6 B B C 7 > 1 3 A 8 6 5 5 1 2 0 1 3 6 5 @ 6 : 2 1 3 0 6 8 6 C E 6 2 < 6 > 2 <6 7 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 D 7 1 5 K 6 5 ; 1 3 A 8 8 6 C 6 5 6 2 8 6 C 5 A 1 F : @ K E 3 6 2 1 C 2 3 1 5 : B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 M > 0 F 0 F : 0 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 E e 8 6 C 5M 6 5 H f E 6 5 e 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D f h W 1 M : > J 1 0 F > D 5 > < F 0 M F 1 5 1 8 6 C F : J 1 : < 5 1 1 3 0 6 3 6 D 6 : D 7 : 5 0 6 K : M 5 > 0 0 1 2 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 E1 / 1 B C 0 1 3 A 8 8 6 C A 1 K 6 5 1 0 F 1 e A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f 6 5 e 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 f 6 B B C 5 D 6 5 0 F 1 e 7 1 5 D 6 2 : @ : 2 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D > 2 < > 2 a C 5 8 f6 K K 1 2 D 1 > D B 6 ; ; > 0 0 1 3 h� k , � � + # � � ' � � � " �  &Y K : 5 1 J > D > 6 2 0 6 0 F > D I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 4 : 5 0 E M F > B F M 6 C @ 3 7 5 6 J > 3 1 ; 6 5 1 B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 M > 0 F 2 6 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ 7 5 1 ; > C ; A 1 B 6 ; 1 D1 K K 1 B 0 > J 1 3 C 5 > 2 < 0 F 1 7 6 @ > B 8 7 1 5 > 6 3 > 2 0 F 1 D 0 : 0 1 3 1 D > < 2 : 0 1 3 K 6 5 0 F 1 K > 5 D 0 ] : ; 1 3 Y 2 D C 5 1 3 D F 6 M 2 > 2 0 F 1 9 1 B @ : 5 : 0 > 6 2 D E8 6 C 5 7 6 @ > B 8 M > @ @ : C 0 6 ; : 0 > B : @ @ 8 7 5 6 J > 3 1 0 F > D : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 6 2 0 F 1 1 K K 1 B 0 > J 1 3 : 0 1 6 K 0 F 1 5 1 J > D > 6 2 h

� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # � �  ! � k

� ,
Y ; ; 1 3 > : 0 1 @ 8 5 1 B 6 5 3 0 F 1 D 7 1 B > K > B D 6 K 0 F 1 B @ : > ; 6 5 � D C > 0 � : 2 3 0 F 1 3 : 0 1 5 1 B 1 > J 1 3 x : 2 3Y K : B @ : > ; > D ; : 3 1 6 5 � D C > 0 � > D A 5 6 C < F 0 : < : > 2 D 0 : 2 8 > 2 D C 5 1 3 E 8 6 C ; C D 0 Z� � , ] 6 0 > K 8 C D : D D 6 6 2 : D 7 5 : B 0 > B : A @ 1 hm 6 C ; C D 0 D 1 1 0 6 > 0 0 F : 0 M 1 5 1 B 1 > J 1 M 5 > 0 0 1 2 2 6 0 > B 1 6 K 0 F 1 B @ : > ; 6 5 � D C > 0 � : D D 6 6 2 : D 7 5 : B 0 > B : A @ 1 h d 2 6 M @ 1 3 < 16 K : B @ : > ; 6 5 � D C > 0 � A 8 8 6 C 5 : < 1 2 0 E D 1 5 J : 2 0 6 5 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 D F : @ @ 2 6 0 > 2 > 0 D 1 @ K B 6 2 D 0 > 0 C 0 1 H 2 6 M @ 1 3 < 1 6 K 0 F 12 : ; 1 3 > 2 D C 5 1 3 C 2 @ 1 D D : 2 6 K K > B 1 5 6 K 0 F 1 2 : ; 1 3 > 2 D C 5 1 3 F : D 5 1 B 1 > J 1 3 D C B F 2 6 0 > B 1 K 5 6 ; 0 F 1 : < 1 2 0 E D 1 5 J : 2 06 5 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 h

376

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �� � , � & � & " # & " �  & � ' � � � ' � � # "  � � � ( '  � # 
 ' ' i � � � � % �P : D 1 3 6 2 6 C 5 5 1 @ > : 2 B 1 6 2 8 6 C 5 5 1 7 5 1 D 1 2 0 : 0 > 6 2 D : D 0 6 1 / > D 0 > 2 < F : [ : 5 3 D E > K 8 6 C C 2 > 2 0 1 2 0 > 6 2 : @ @ 8 D F 6 C @ 3 K : > @ 0 6 3 > D B @ 6 D 1: @ @ D C B F F : [ : 5 3 D : 0 0 F 1 > 2 B 1 7 0 > 6 2 3 : 0 1 6 K 8 6 C 5 7 6 @ > B 8 E M 1 M > @ @ 2 6 0 3 1 2 8 B 6 J 1 5 : < 1 C 2 3 1 5 0 F > D I 6 J 1 5 : < 1 4 : 5 0A 1 B : C D 1 6 K D C B F K : > @ C 5 1 h V 6 M 1 J 1 5 E 0 F > D 7 5 6 J > D > 6 2 3 6 1 D 2 6 0 : K K 1 B 0 6 C 5 5 > < F 0 0 6 B 6 @ @ 1 B 0 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ 7 5 1 ; > C ; 6 51 / 1 5 B > D 1 6 C 5 5 > < F 0 6 K B : 2 B 1 @ @ : 0 > 6 2 6 5 2 6 2 L 5 1 2 1 M : @ h� y , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < B 6 2 3 > 0 > 6 2 D : 5 1 : 3 3 1 3 > 2 5 1 < : 5 3 0 6 �  $ # � � ) # � p � �  % � ( " 	 # ( � ' ' � r * # & � #Y 2 1 J 1 2 0 6 K : � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ � E 8 6 C ; C D 0� , G 1 1 0 6 > 0 0 F : 0 M 1 : 5 1 2 6 0 > K > 1 3 : D D 6 6 2 : D 7 5 : B 0 > B : A @ 1 6 K : � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ � h o 6 0 F 1 1 / 0 1 2 0 7 6 D D > A @ 1 E 2 6 0 > B 1D F 6 C @ 3 > 2 B @ C 3 1 F 6 M E M F 1 2 : 2 3 M F 1 5 1 0 F 1 � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ � 0 6 6 H 7 @ : B 1 : 2 3 1 D 0 > ; : 0 1 3 � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 � h+ , o : H 1 : @ @ 5 1 : D 6 2 : A @ 1 D 0 1 7 D 0 6 ; > 2 > ; > [ 1 � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 � h o F > D M > @ @ 2 6 0 > 2 B 5 1 : D 1 0 F 1 @ > ; > 0 D 6 K > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 h( , Y K 5 1 Q C 1 D 0 1 3 E 7 1 5 ; > 0 C D 0 6 Q C 1 D 0 > 6 2 8 6 C C 2 3 1 5 6 : 0 F : 0 D C B F 0 > ; 1 D : D ; : 8 A 1 5 1 : D 6 2 : A @ 8 5 1 Q C > 5 1 3 : A 6 C 0 : 2 8; : 0 0 1 5 5 1 @ : 0 > 2 < 0 6 0 F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 6 5 8 6 C 5 B @ : > ; E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < 8 6 C 5 A 6 6 H D : 2 3 5 1 B 6 5 3 D h m 6 C 5 : 2 D M 1 5 D ; C D 0 A 1D > < 2 1 3 h% , 4 1 5 ; > 0 C D 0 6 > 2 D 7 1 B 0 : 2 3 6 A 0 : > 2 6 0 F 1 5 > 2 K 6 5 ; : 0 > 6 2 7 5 6 J > 2 < 0 F 1 @ 6 D D h m 6 C ; C D 0 D 1 2 3 C D : D > < 2 1 3 E D M 6 5 2D 0 : 0 1 ; 1 2 0 6 K @ 6 D D B 6 2 0 : > 2 > 2 < 0 F 1 > 2 K 6 5 ; : 0 > 6 2 M 1 5 1 Q C 1 D 0 0 6 > 2 J 1 D 0 > < : 0 1 0 F 1 B @ : > ; h m 6 C ; C D 0 3 6 0 F > D M > 0 F > 2 � S3 : 8 D : K 0 1 5 6 C 5 5 1 Q C 1 D 0 h# , I 6 6 7 1 5 : 0 1 M > 0 F C D > 2 0 F 1 > 2 J 1 D 0 > < : 0 > 6 2 6 5 D 1 0 0 @ 1 ; 1 2 0 6 K : 2 8 B @ : > ; h! , ^ D D > D 0 C D C 7 6 2 6 C 5 5 1 Q C 1 D 0 E > 2 0 F 1 1 2 K 6 5 B 1 ; 1 2 0 6 K : 2 8 5 > < F 0 D : < : > 2 D 0 : 2 8 7 1 5 D 6 2 6 5 6 5 < : 2 > [ : 0 > 6 2 M F > B F ; : 8 A 1@ > : A @ 1 0 6 8 6 C A 1 B : C D 1 6 K @ 6 D D 0 6 M F > B F 0 F > D > 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 : 7 7 @ > 1 D h
 , ^ 0 > 0 1 ; � k , � ` 6 A > @ 1 1 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 � 0 F 1 M 6 5 3 > 2 < : 0 ! , v � w > D 3 1 @ 1 0 1 3 : 2 3 5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 A 8 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Zv � w G 2 6 M 5 1 ; 6 J : @ xv + w U 6 : 3 ; : > 2 0 1 2 : 2 B 1 E A C 0 2 6 0 B 6 2 D 0 5 C B 0 > 6 2 6 5 5 1 D C 5 K : B > 2 < x 6 5v ( w G 0 5 1 1 0 B @ 1 : 2 > 2 < x1 / B 1 7 0 K 6 5 D C B F J 1 F > B @ 1 D 0 F : 0 F : J 1 : < 5 6 D D J 1 F > B @ 1 M 1 > < F 0 @ 1 D D 0 F : 2 O E S S S @ A D M F > B F : 5 1 2 6 0 3 1 D > < 2 1 3 K 6 5 F > < F M : 8C D 1 h� , Y 0 1 ; � , e A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f > D 3 1 @ 1 0 1 3 : 2 3 5 1 7 @ : B 1 3 M > 0 F 0 F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < Z� , e P 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 f ; 1 : 2 D 7 F 8 D > B : @ > 2 a C 5 8 E D > B H 2 1 D D 6 5 3 > D 1 : D 1 D C D 0 : > 2 1 3 A 8 : 7 1 5 D 6 2 h o F > D > 2 B @ C 3 1 D ; 1 2 0 : @ : 2 < C > D F E; 1 2 0 : @ > 2 a C 5 8 E D F 6 B H E K 5 > < F 0 6 5 3 1 : 0 F 0 F : 0 5 1 D C @ 0 D K 5 6 ; D C B F 7 F 8 D > B : @ > 2 a C 5 8 E D > B H 2 1 D D 6 5 3 > D 1 : D 1 h� , o F 1 K 6 @ @ 6 M > 2 < 3 1 K > 2 > 0 > 6 2 D : 5 1 : 3 3 1 3 K 6 5 0 F > D 1 2 3 6 5 D 1 ; 1 2 0 6 2 @ 8 Zk � , e . @ 1 B 0 5 6 2 > B 3 : 0 : � ; 1 : 2 D > 2 K 6 5 ; : 0 > 6 2 E K : B 0 D 6 5 7 5 6 < 5 : ; D D 0 6 5 1 3 : D 6 5 6 2 E B 5 1 : 0 1 3 6 5 C D 1 3 6 2 E 6 5 0 5 : 2 D ; > 0 0 1 3 0 6 6 5K 5 6 ; B 6 ; 7 C 0 1 5 D 6 K 0 M : 5 1 E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < D 8 D 0 1 ; D : 2 3 : 7 7 @ > B : 0 > 6 2 D D 6 K 0 M : 5 1 E F : 5 3 6 5 K @ 6 7 7 8 3 > D H D E I 9 L U l ` G E 0 : 7 13 5 > J 1 D E B 1 @ @ D E 3 : 0 : 7 5 6 B 1 D D > 2 < 3 1 J > B 1 D 6 5 : 2 8 6 0 F 1 5 ; 1 3 > : M F > B F : 5 1 C D 1 3 M > 0 F 1 @ 1 B 0 5 6 2 > B : @ @ 8 B 6 2 0 5 6 @ @ 1 31 Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 hk y , � 4 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ � ; 1 : 2 D : M > 0 F 3 5 : M : @ 6 5 5 1 ; 6 J : @ K 5 6 ; 0 F 1 ; : 5 H 1 0 6 K � 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 � A : D 1 3 6 2 0 F 1 3 1 0 1 5 ; > 2 : 0 > 6 2 A 88 6 C 6 5 : 2 8 5 1 < C @ : 0 6 5 8 6 5 < 6 J 1 5 2 ; 1 2 0 : @ : < 1 2 B 8 0 F : 0 Z� , o F 1 C D 1 6 5 B 6 2 D C ; 7 0 > 6 2 6 K � 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 � F : D B : C D 1 3 6 5 M > @ @ B : C D 1 : B 0 C : @ 6 5 : @ @ 1 < 1 3 � A 6 3 > @ 8 > 2 a C 5 8 � 6 5� 7 5 6 7 1 5 0 8 3 : ; : < 1 � x : 2 3+ , G C B F 3 1 0 1 5 ; > 2 : 0 > 6 2 5 1 Q C > 5 1 D 8 6 C 0 6 5 1 B 6 J 1 5 7 6 D D 1 D D > 6 2 6 5 B 6 2 0 5 6 @ 6 K � 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 � K 5 6 ; : 2 8 3 > D 0 5 > A C 0 6 5 E7 C 5 B F : D 1 5 6 5 C D 1 5 E 0 6 5 1 7 : > 5 6 5 5 1 7 @ : B 1 � 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 � E A C 0 6 2 @ 8 > K � 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 � > D C 2 K > 0 K 6 5 C D 1 6 5B 6 2 D C ; 7 0 > 6 2 E 6 5 > D F : [ : 5 3 6 C D : D : 5 1 D C @ 0 6 K Zv � w ^ 2 1 5 5 6 5 6 5 6 ; > D D > 6 2 A 8 : 2 > 2 D C 5 1 3 > 2 0 F 1 3 1 D > < 2 E ; : 2 C K : B 0 C 5 > 2 < E 7 5 6 B 1 D D > 2 < E @ : A 1 @ > 2 < E D 0 6 5 : < 1 E 6 50 5 : 2 D 7 6 5 0 : 0 > 6 2 6 K � 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 � x 6 5v k w ^ B 0 C : @ 6 5 : @ @ 1 < 1 3 > 2 0 1 2 0 > 6 2 : @ E ; : @ > B > 6 C D 6 5 M 5 6 2 < K C @ : @ 0 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 6 5 B 6 2 0 : ; > 2 : 0 > 6 2 6 K � 8 6 C 5 7 5 6 3 C B 0 � A 8D 6 ; 1 6 2 1 6 0 F 1 5 0 F : 2 8 6 C h� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # � �  ! � k

! , v � w . Q C > 7 ; 1 2 0 3 1 D > < 2 1 3 7 5 > ; : 5 > @ 8 K 6 5 Z

377

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � �k | , � 4 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 � ; 1 : 2 D 5 1 : D 6 2 : A @ 1 : 2 3 2 1 B 1 D D : 5 8 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 D K 6 5 Z� , o 1 @ 1 7 F 6 2 1 E 5 : 3 > 6 : 2 3 0 1 @ 1 J > D > 6 2 B 6 ; ; C 2 > B : 0 > 6 2 : 2 3 7 5 > 2 0 1 3 : 3 J 1 5 0 > D 1 ; 1 2 0 D E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < D 0 : 0 > 6 2 1 5 8 E 1 2 J 1 @ 6 7 1 D: 2 3 7 6 D 0 : < 1 h+ , o 5 : 2 D 7 6 5 0 > 2 < 5 1 B : @ @ 1 3 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D K 5 6 ; : 2 8 7 C 5 B F : D 1 5 E 3 > D 0 5 > A C 0 6 5 6 5 C D 1 5 E 0 6 @ 6 B : 0 > 6 2 D 3 1 D > < 2 : 0 1 3 A 8 8 6 C h( , U 1 ; C 2 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 7 : > 3 0 6 8 6 C 5 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 D K 6 5 6 J 1 5 0 > ; 1 E : D M 1 @ @ : D 5 1 ; C 2 1 5 : 0 > 6 2 7 : > 3 0 6 : 3 3 > 0 > 6 2 : @ 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 D 6 5> 2 3 1 7 1 2 3 1 2 0 B 6 2 0 5 : B 0 6 5 D 8 6 C F > 5 1 h% , o 5 : 2 D 7 6 5 0 : 0 > 6 2 : 2 3 : B B 6 ; ; 6 3 : 0 > 6 2 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 > 2 B C 5 5 1 3 A 8 8 6 C 5 1 ; 7 @ 6 8 1 1 D h# , U 1 2 0 : @ 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 > 2 B C 5 5 1 3 K 6 5 0 1 ; 7 6 5 : 5 8 @ 6 B : 0 > 6 2 D C D 1 3 0 6 D 0 6 5 1 5 1 B : @ @ 1 3 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D h! , . / 7 1 2 D 1 > 2 B C 5 5 1 3 0 6 7 5 6 7 1 5 @ 8 3 > D 7 6 D 1 6 K 5 1 B : @ @ 1 3 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D E > 2 B @ C 3 > 2 < 7 : B H : < > 2 < 0 F : 0 B : 2 2 6 0 A 1 5 1 C D 1 3 h) , o 5 : 2 D 7 6 5 0 : 0 > 6 2 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 D > 2 B C 5 5 1 3 0 6 5 1 7 @ : B 1 5 1 B : @ @ 1 3 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D h� , U 1 7 : > 5 > 2 < E 5 1 3 > D 0 5 > A C 0 > 2 < 6 5 5 1 7 @ : B > 2 < B 6 J 1 5 1 3 5 1 B : @ @ 1 3 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D M > 0 F @ > H 1 7 5 6 3 C B 0 D 6 5 D C A D 0 > 0 C 0 1 D E 2 6 0 0 61 / B 1 1 3 8 6 C 5 6 5 > < > 2 : @ B 6 D 0 6 K ; : 2 C K : B 0 C 5 > 2 < E 7 5 6 B 1 D D > 2 < E : B Q C > D > 0 > 6 2 : 2 3 � 6 5 3 > D 0 5 > A C 0 > 6 2 ho F 1 D 1 1 / 7 1 2 D 1 D ; C D 0 A 1 > 2 B C 5 5 1 3 : D : 5 1 D C @ 0 6 K : � 7 5 6 3 C B 0 5 1 B : @ @ � h

� � � � � � � � � � Y 2 B @ C 3 1 D B 6 7 8 5 > < F 0 1 3 ; : 0 1 5 > : @ 6 K Y 2 D C 5 : 2 B 1 G 1 5 J > B 1 D l K K > B 1 E Y 2 B h E M > 0 F > 0 D 7 1 5 ; > D D > 6 2 h � � ) # � k  ! � k
378

Item 14.



 !"#$#%&#'()*+,-./0+,1,-(  )2-!,+(),3/4* 5634,2+,0,2.*( 20,7844569::;<;=>9?;>@ABC:D=E>CB@F?C@@CC@=BG=><B9G<=B@DHIJKLMNOPKLQLMRQONJSJLKJMKTPUMVLWPOXJNLNTMNLPRILSOYYOZJM[\]̂ __̀ a]bcdè f̀ acddbcgbdbHh]̂ ì acè jcaHjâ kl]Hmn]̂ _jd̀ H̀ k ĵ̀ acHb̂fm dbcgbdbHh]̂ ì acè jcaH+ ),.84,-opqrs2ttuvurwox*wyz{qt3q{yrw|y}r{/{~owu�ovurw|y} 4r�ovurw2wt.qy�{u�vurw/s rp�xqvqt/�q{ovurwybMSOPQURJOMPL�TJPLNROVOQWYLRLRIJKmVILNTYL�JSMORKIOZMU�OXL�ZJYY�LKIOZMJMRILkLVYUPURJOMK�+q�vurw**���r*y2w*wyz{qtJKUQLMNLNROJMVYTNLUKUMUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLNRILWLPKOM�K�OPOP[UMJ�URJOM�K�KIOZMJMRILmVILNTYL��TROMY�ZJRIPLKWLVRRO�OTPYJU�JYJR�SOP��ONJY�JM�TP��OP�WPOWLPR�NUQU[L�ZIJVIQU��LJQWTRLN RORIURWLPKOM�K�OPOP[UMJ�URJOM�K�NJPLVRY�UPJKJM[OTROS��OTPZOP��URRILYOVURJOM NLKJ[MURLN UMNNLKVPJ�LNJMRILKVILNTYLOSRIJKLMNOPKLQLMRWLPSOPQLNSOPRIURUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLNUMNOMY�SOPRIURYJU�JYJR�JMVYTNLNJMRIL�WPONTVRK�VOQWYLRLNOWLPURJOMKIU�UPN���OZLXLP\#6 HILJMKTPUMVLUSSOPNLNROKTVIUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLNOMY�UWWYJLKRORILL�RLMRWLPQJRRLN��YUZ�UMN&6 bSVOXLPU[LWPOXJNLNRORILUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLNJKPL�TJPLN��UVOMRPUVROPU[PLLQLMR�RILJMKTPUMVLUSSOPNLNROKTVIUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLNZJYYMOR�L�POUNLPRIUMRIURZIJVI�OTUPLPL�TJPLNg�RILVOMRPUVROPU[PLLQLMRROWPOXJNLSOPKTVIUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLN��6�JRIPLKWLVRRORILJMKTPUMVLUSSOPNLNRORILKLUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLNK�RILSOYYOZJM[UNNJRJOMUYL�VYTKJOMKUWWY�\HIJKJMKTPUMVLNOLKMORUWWY�RO\#6 �gONJY�JM�TP����WPOWLPR�NUQU[L�OP�WLPKOMUYUMNUNXLPRJKJM[JM�TP��UPJKJM[OTROSRILPLMNLPJM[OS�OPRILSUJYTPLROPLMNLP�UM�WPOSLKKJOMUYUPVIJRLVRTPUY�LM[JMLLPJM[OPKTPXL�JM[KLPXJVLKJMVYTNJM[\o6 HILWPLWUPJM[�UWWPOXJM[�OPSUJYJM[ROWPLWUPLOPUWWPOXL�QUWK�KIOWNPUZJM[K�OWJMJOMK�PLWOPRK�KTPXL�K�SJLYNOPNLPK�VIUM[LOPNLPKOPNPUZJM[KOPKWLVJSJVURJOMK�OP�6mTWLPXJKOP��JMKWLVRJOM�UPVIJRLVRTPUYOPLM[JMLLPJM[UVRJXJRJLK� 6�JRIPLKWLVRRORILJMKTPUMVLUSSOPNLNRORILKLUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLNK�RILSOYYOZJM[JKUNNLNRO+q�vurw***�4upuvy/s*wyz{ow�q�bSVOXLPU[LWPOXJNLNRORILUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLNJKPL�TJPLN��UVOMRPUVROPU[PLLQLMR�RILQOKRZLZJYYWU�OM�LIUYSOSRILUNNJRJOMUYJMKTPLNJKRILUQOTMROSJMKTPUMVL\#6 aL�TJPLN��RILVOMRPUVROPU[PLLQLMR�OP&6 cXUJYU�YLTMNLPRILUWWYJVU�YLdJQJRKOSbMKTPUMVLKIOZMJMRILkLVYUPURJOMK�ZIJVILXLPJKYLKK�HIJKLMNOPKLQLMRKIUYYMORJMVPLUKLRILUWWYJVU�YLdJQJRKOSbMKTPUMVLKIOZMJMRILkLVYUPURJOMK� !"#$#%&#' bMVYTNLKVOW�PJ[IRLNQURLPJUYOSbMKTPUMVLmLPXJVLK ŜSJVL�bMV��ZJRIJRKWLPQJKKJOM 3o~q#rs#G=��?C<C: =�CB9<;=>@26 � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � �

379

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � � � � �� � �  � � � �  �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " # � �  !

� � �  � � � �  � 
 $ % &  ' ( �

) * + , - . / 0 1 , - 2 - . 3 2 0 / + 4 + - , + . , 5 1 6 . 7 - 8 1 0 9 + / - / 5 . / - 1 3 * - 4 0 : : 0 ; + . < => ? @ @ A B > C D E F A G A B D E E C D H C E C ) I > ? J A B D F A K ? B @H L M C G A M M ? N G A B M > ? J A B D F A K ? B @H L M C G A M M D L ) ? > ? J A B D F A K ? B @ O � P � Q � � �� $ R & ' ( � S % $ T U V $ W U ' T X
� Y Y U W U ' T $ Z � T [ \ S & Y O & ] W U ' T X) * - - . 3 + 3 ^ , * 0 ; . + . 3 * - , 7 * - / 5 : - 6 _ 0 9 - ` + . 7 : 5 / + . < 6 : : + 3 , - : - 7 3 - / 6 . / 6 8 8 0 + . 3 - / 0 4 4 + 7 + 6 : , ` 6 : : + 3 , - 2 8 : 0 ^ - - , 6 . /9 0 : 5 . 3 - - 1 , ` 6 : : + 3 , _ 0 6 1 / , ` 7 0 2 2 + , , + 0 . , 6 . / a 0 1 6 5 3 * 0 1 + 3 + - , 6 . / 3 * - + 1 _ 0 6 1 / 2 - 2 _ - 1 , ` - 2 8 : 0 ^ - - , 6 . / 9 0 : 5 . 3 - - 1 ,6 1 - + . 7 : 5 / - / 6 , D / / + 3 + 0 . 6 : C . , 5 1 - / , ; + 3 * 1 - , 8 - 7 3 3 0 : + 6 _ + : + 3 ^ 6 1 + , + . < 0 5 3 0 4 3 * - C . , 5 1 - / b , ; 0 1 c 6 . / a 0 1 , - 1 9 + 7 - ,8 - 1 4 0 1 2 - / 4 0 1 3 * - - . 3 + 3 ^ , * 0 ; . 6 _ 0 9 - d ) * + , 7 0 9 - 1 6 < - , * 6 : : _ - 8 1 + 2 6 1 ^ 3 0 3 * - D / / + 3 + 0 . 6 : C . , 5 1 - / , ` 6 . / . 0 37 0 . 3 1 + _ 5 3 + . < ; + 3 * 6 . ^ 0 3 * - 1 + . , 5 1 6 . 7 - 0 1 , + 2 + : 6 1 8 1 0 3 - 7 3 + 0 . 6 9 6 + : 6 _ : - 3 0 3 * - D / / + 3 + 0 . 6 : C . , 5 1 - / , ` ; * - 3 * - 1 0 3 * - 16 9 6 + : 6 _ : - 7 0 9 - 1 6 < - _ - 8 1 + 2 6 1 ^ ` 7 0 . 3 1 + _ 5 3 + . < 0 1 - e 7 - , , df ' g & S T R & T W $ Z � R R \ T U W U & [ O & ] W U ' T X h � ' T i $ U g & S ' ( f ' g & S T R & T W $ Z � R R \ T U W j h ) * - + . , 5 1 6 . 7 - 7 6 1 1 + - 1 - e 8 1 - , , : ^ 6 < 1 - - , 6 . / , 3 6 3 - , 3 * 6 3 3 * - 8 5 1 7 * 6 , -0 4 3 * + , 8 0 : + 7 ^ 6 . / 3 * - + . 7 : 5 / + . < 0 4 3 * - 0 1 < 6 . + k 6 3 + 0 . , * 0 ; . + . 3 * - M 7 * - / 5 : - 6 , 6 . D / / + 3 + 0 . 6 : C . , 5 1 - / / 0 - , . 0 3; 6 + 9 - 6 . ^ 0 4 3 * - / - 4 - . , - , 0 4 < 0 9 - 1 . 2 - . 3 6 : + 2 2 5 . + 3 ^ 6 9 6 + : 6 _ : - 3 0 3 * - 0 1 < 6 . + k 6 3 + 0 . , * 0 ; . + . 3 * - M 7 * - / 5 : - 5 . / - 1> 0 / - 0 4 C 0 ; 6 M - 7 3 + 0 . l m n d o 6 , + 3 . 0 ; - e + , 3 , 6 . / 6 , + 3 2 6 ^ _ - 6 2 - . / - / 4 1 0 2 3 + 2 - 3 0 3 + 2 - d� h � Z $ U R [ � ' g & S $ % & h ) * - + . , 5 1 6 . 7 - 7 6 1 1 + - 1 4 5 1 3 * - 1 6 < 1 - - , 3 * 6 3 3 * + , 8 0 : + 7 ^ 0 4 + . , 5 1 6 . 7 - , * 6 : : 7 0 9 - 1 0 . : ^ 3 * 0 , -7 : 6 + 2 , . 0 3 , 5 _ p - 7 3 3 0 3 * - / - 4 - . , - 0 4 < 0 9 - 1 . 2 - . 3 6 : + 2 2 5 . + 3 ^ 5 . / - 1 3 * - > 0 / - 0 4 C 0 ; 6 M - 7 3 + 0 . l m n d o 6 , + 3 . 0 ;- e + , 3 , 6 . / 6 , + 3 2 6 ^ _ - 6 2 - . / - / 4 1 0 2 3 + 2 - 3 0 3 + 2 - dq h � [ [ & S W U ' T ' ( f ' g & S T R & T W $ Z � R R \ T U W j h ) * - 0 1 < 6 . + k 6 3 + 0 . , * 0 ; . + . 3 * - M 7 * - / 5 : - , * 6 : : _ - 1 - , 8 0 . , + _ : - 4 0 16 , , - 1 3 + . < 6 . ^ / - 4 - . , - 0 4 < 0 9 - 1 . 2 - . 3 6 : + 2 2 5 . + 3 ^ ` 6 . / 2 6 ^ / 0 , 0 6 3 6 . ^ 3 + 2 - 6 . / , * 6 : : / 0 , 0 5 8 0 . 3 * - 3 + 2 - : ^; 1 + 3 3 - . 1 - r 5 - , 3 0 4 3 * - + . , 5 1 6 . 7 - 7 6 1 1 + - 1 d G 0 3 * + . < 7 0 . 3 6 + . - / + . 3 * + , - . / 0 1 , - 2 - . 3 ` , * 6 : : 8 1 - 9 - . 3 3 * - 7 6 1 1 + - 1 4 1 0 26 , , - 1 3 + . < 3 * - / - 4 - . , - 0 4 < 0 9 - 1 . 2 - . 3 6 : + 2 2 5 . + 3 ^ 0 . _ - * 6 : 4 0 4 3 * - 0 1 < 6 . + k 6 3 + 0 . , * 0 ; . + . 3 * - M 7 * - / 5 : - ds h � ' T t Q & T U $ Z ' ( � ' g & S $ % & h ) * - + . , 5 1 6 . 7 - 7 6 1 1 + - 1 , * 6 : : . 0 3 / - . ^ 7 0 9 - 1 6 < - 5 . / - 1 3 * + , 8 0 : + 7 ^ 6 . / 3 * - + . , 5 1 6 . 7 -7 6 1 1 + - 1 , * 6 : : . 0 3 / - . ^ 6 . ^ 0 4 3 * - 1 + < * 3 , 6 . / _ - . - 4 + 3 , 6 7 7 1 5 + . < 3 0 3 * - 0 1 < 6 . + k 6 3 + 0 . , * 0 ; . + . 3 * - M 7 * - / 5 : - 5 . / - 1 3 * + ,8 0 : + 7 ^ 4 0 1 1 - 6 , 0 . , 0 4 < 0 9 - 1 . 2 - . 3 6 : + 2 2 5 . + 3 ^ 5 . : - , , 6 . / 5 . 3 + : 6 7 0 5 1 3 0 4 7 0 2 8 - 3 - . 3 p 5 1 + , / + 7 3 + 0 . * 6 , 1 5 : - / + . 4 6 9 0 10 4 3 * - / - 4 - . , - u , v 0 4 < 0 9 - 1 . 2 - . 3 6 : + 2 2 5 . + 3 ^ 6 , , - 1 3 - / _ ^ 3 * - 0 1 < 6 . + k 6 3 + 0 . , * 0 ; . + . 3 * - M 7 * - / 5 : - dw h � ' � W x & S � x $ T % & U T 
 ' Z U ] j h ) * - + . , 5 1 6 . 7 - 7 6 1 1 + - 1 6 . / 3 * - 0 1 < 6 . + k 6 3 + 0 . , * 0 ; . + . 3 * - M 7 * - / 5 : - 6 < 1 - - 3 * 6 3 3 * -6 _ 0 9 - 8 1 - , - 1 9 6 3 + 0 . 0 4 < 0 9 - 1 . 2 - . 3 6 : + 2 2 5 . + 3 + - , , * 6 : : . 0 3 0 3 * - 1 ; + , - 7 * 6 . < - 0 1 6 : 3 - 1 3 * - 7 0 9 - 1 6 < - 6 9 6 + : 6 _ : - 5 . / - 13 * - 8 0 : + 7 ^ d

y z { | } ~ y � � � � � � � � �� � � y � � | � { � � � {y � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

380

Item 14.



� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

� � � � �     � ¡ ¢ � � � � £ ¤ � ¡ � ¥ ¢ �   � ¦ � � � � § ¨ � � ¡ ¢ � � ©ª « ¬  ® ¯ ° ± ² ³ ´ µ ¯ ¶ · ´ ¸ µ ¹ º » ¼  ¬ ® ® » ¹ ½ ¾ ® ¬ º » ¾ ¿ À µ ¹ º » Á Á µ ® ¬ ¾ ¹ Â ® » ¹ ° Ã ² ³ ´ µ ¯ ¶ ¼  ¬ ® ® » ¹ ½ ¾ ® ¬ ¿ ¬ º µ ® ¬ ¾ ¹ ¾ ¿ À µ ¹ º » Á Á µ ® ¬ ¾ ¹ ´ Ä » ® ¾¹ ¾ ¹ Å Æ µ ¯ Ç » ¹ ® ¾ ¿ Æ  » Ç ¬ Ä Ç Â µ ¹ ´ ¿ ¾  ® ¯ Å ¿ ¬ ¸ » ° È É ³ ´ µ ¯ ¶ · ´ ¸ µ ¹ º » ¼  ¬ ® ® » ¹ ½ ¾ ® ¬ ¿ ¬ º µ ® ¬ ¾ ¹ ¾ ¿ ½ ¾ ¹ Å Ê » ¹ » Ë µ Á ¶ « µ Á Á Ì » ¶ » ¹ ® ® ¾® « » µ ´ ´  » ¶ ¶ ¶ « ¾ Ë ¹ ¾ ¹ ® « » ¶ º « » ´ Ä Á » ¿ ¾  ® « » » ¹ ® ¬ ® ¯ Á ¬ ¶ ® » ´ ¾ ¹ ® « ¬ ¶ » ¹ ´ ¾  ¶ » Ç » ¹ ® Í

381

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 
 DATE: January 7, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022-2025 Sturgis Falls Agreement 
   
 
 City staff has been working with Jay Stoddard and the Sturgis Falls Board to update their 
current agreement with the City. The current agreement was previously in place for one(1) year 
and expires on April 4, 2022. The Sturgis Falls Board has been agreeable to renew the contract 
with the City for the period of three (3) years. This will help assist Sturgis Falls Board in the 
planning and scheduling of events. 
  
 This agreement has minor changes from the one(1) year agreement in 2021. These 
changes were intended to provide clear understanding to both parties. The attached three(3) 
year agreement outlines the specific areas in the parks that will be used by the Sturgis Falls 
Celebration; these include Overman Park, Tourist Park, Gateway Park, Police Officer’s 
Memorial Park, and a portion of Sturgis Park. The celebration is held the last weekend in June 
of each year. This agreement will run for three(3) years beginning April 5, 2022 and ending April 
1, 2025.  
 
 I have attached the Sturgis Falls proposed agreement for review and consideration. City 
Staff has reviewed the agreement and is recommending approval. 
 
 
xc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 

  

382

Item 15.



383

Item 15.



384

Item 15.



385

Item 15.



386

Item 15.



387

Item 15.



388

Item 15.



389

Item 15.



390

Item 15.



391

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 10, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
  City Project Number: SA-000-3297 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, February 7th, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for the public hearing on this project, and Thursday, February 10th, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. as 
the date and time for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to 
Bidders be published by Thursday, January 20th, 2022 The Plans and Specifications will 
be ready for distribution to contractors on Thursday, January 20th, 2022, allowing for 
three (3) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 

This project consists of furnishing and installing a cured in place liner within existing 8 
and 12 inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in accordance with 
the contract documents. The total project involves approximately 8,209 linear feet and 
185 service taps.   
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $248,119.50. The project 
will be funded by Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Sewer Rental 
Funds (SRF). 
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2022 CDBG 
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

392

Item 16.



1

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

FOR

2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER 

REHABILITATION PROJECT

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDED 

PROJECT No. SA-000-3297 
 

Cedar Falls, Iowa

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa.

_____________________________________  Date: 1/10/2022
David A. Wicke, P.E.      Iowa License No. 25684
My license renewal date is December  31, 2022

Pages or sheets covered by this seal: All  

393

Item 16.



2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Number

TITLE SHEET 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 - 3

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 5 - 8

DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders

01 Definition & Terms 9
02 Qualification of the Bidder 9 - 10
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 10
04 Taxes 10
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder & Bid Security 11
Form of Proposal 12 - 13
Bid Bond 14 
Bidder Status Form 15 - 16

           Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 17
Form of Contract 18 - 19

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions

01 Award of Contract 20
02 Availability of Site 20
03 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 20
04 Contract Time 21
05 Weekly record of Working Days 21
06 Liquidated Damages 21
07 Progress Payments 21 - 22
08 Pollution Prevention Plan 22 - 23
09 Method of Measurement 23
10 Basis of Payment 23

394

Item 16.



3

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications

The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2022 Edition of the Iowa “Statewide 
Urban Design and Specifications” (SUDAS) as the City’s Standard Specification.

This “Standard Specification” is amended by the current City of Cedar Falls’ 
Supplemental Specifications to the latest edition of the Iowa “Statewide Urban 
Design and Specifications” (SUDAS).

Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at:
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards  

DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS 24 - 26

FY2022 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PLAN

List of Locations 27 – 28

DIVISION 5 – CDBG Funding   29 - 72

A. Wage Determination (7 pages)
B. Required Federal Contract Language for CDBG Funded Contracts (12 

pages)
C. Payroll Form (2 pages)
D. Intake Form (2 pages)
E. Labor Standards Questionnaire (English, 2 pages)
F. Labor Standards Questionnaire (Spanish, 2 pages)
G. Online Employee Questionnaire (2 pages)
H. Record of Employee Interview (English, 1 page)
I. Record of Employee Interview (Spanish, 1 page)
J. Intent to Comply with Section 3 (2 pages)
K. Section 3 Employee Interviews (1 page)
L. Section 3 Business Certification (2 pages)
M. Section 3 New Hire Compliance Report (4 pages)
N. Contractor Clearance Form (1 Page)
O. Project Sign Board (1 Page)

395

Item 16.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards
http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards
http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards


4

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS,

FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE

2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT

IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER 
PERSONS INTERESTED:

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and 

Estimate of Cost for the construction of the 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 

Project in said City at 7:00 p.m. on the 7th day of February, 2022, said meeting to be 

held at the Community Center, 528 Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa.

Said Plans, Specifications, and Form of Contract are now on file in the office of 

the City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected by any 

persons interested.

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications, Contract or Estimated Total 

Cost of making said improvement.

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

                          

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

By: _______________________________
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC

     City Clerk

396

Item 16.



5

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT

IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

Time and Place of Pre-Bid Meeting: There will NOT be a pre-bid meeting. 

Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Proposals will only be accepted electronically on 
the Quest CDN website before 2:00pm on the 10th day of February, 2022. 

Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be 
publicly opened online at 2:00pm on the 10th day of February, 2022 at www.questcdn.com, for 
consideration by the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its meeting at 7:00 PM on the 21st day of 
February, 2022 or at such later time and place as may be fixed. The City of Cedar Falls 
reserves the right to reject any and all proposals including without limitation, nonconforming, 
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids.
 
Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall 
commence within ten (10) calendar days after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed 
and shall be performed regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. The 
Contractor shall fully complete the project no later than May 31st, 2022. Liquidated damages in 
the amount of $1000 per calendar day shall be assessed for each calendar day that work 
remains uncompleted after the completion date.

Bid Security: Each Form of Proposal shall be accompanied in a separate envelope by a 
proposal guaranty as defined in Division 1 Section 05. A scanned copy of the Bid Bond must be 
included with the online bid submitted at www.questcdn.com. 

Performance and Payment Bonds: The successful Bidder shall furnish to the City a 
performance bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, 
guaranteeing faithful performance of the contract and guaranteeing the completed project 
against defective workmanship and materials for a period of two (2) years from and after 
completion and acceptance by the City. The successful Bidder shall also provide a payment 
bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price guaranteeing 
payment of all persons supplying labor and material, or both, in the execution of the work 
provide for in the contract. 

Contract Documents: The contract documents are available at www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN 
and www.questCDN.com. This contract is QuestCDN project number 8103628. A contractor 
may view the contract documents at no cost prior to deciding to become a Planholder. To be 
considered a Planholder for bids, a contractor must register with QuestCDN.com. Registering 
as a planholder is recommended for all prime contractors and subcontractors as Planholders 
will receive automatic notice of addenda and other contract document updates via QuestCDN. 
Contact QuestCDN Customer Support at (952)233-1632 or info@questcdn.com for assistance 
in membership registration, downloading digital project information and vBid online bid submittal 
questions. Bids will only be received and accepted via the online electronic bid service through 
QuestCDN.com. To access the electronic bid form, download the project documents and click 
on the online bid button at the top of the bid advertisement page. Prospective bidders must be 

397

Item 16.

http://www.questcdn.com/
http://www.questcdn.com/
http://www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN
http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


6

on the Planholder list through QuestCDN for bids to be accepted. 
Downloading electronic contract documents is strongly encouraged, but hard copies of the 
project documents may be obtained from the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
IA 50613 at no cost. Those desiring to obtain hard copies must make an appointment to pick up 
the documents by calling 319-268-5161 and ask for Haley Habinck. No drop-ins will be allowed. 

If any prospective bidder is in doubt as the true meaning of any parts of the contract 
documents, the bidder may request an interpretation from the Engineer, in writing, through 
email. Questions received less than five (5) days prior to the date for opening bids may not be 
answered. 

Contact individuals shall be as follows:

Mike Nyman
Water Reclamation
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa
mike.nyman@cedarfalls.com 

Any interpretation of the contract documents will be made in writing and only by addendum with 
online notification given to bidders. Only questions answered by Addenda will be binding. Oral 
and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Addenda may be issued to 
clarify, correct or change the contract documents as deemed advisable by the City of Cedar 
Falls or the Engineer of record. 

Preference for Iowa Products and Labor:  By virtue of statutory authority, a preference will be 
given to products and provisions grown and coal produced within the State of Iowa. 

In accordance with Iowa statues, a resident bidder shall be allowed a preference as against a 
nonresident bidder from a state or foreign country if that state or foreign country give or requires 
any preference to bidders from that state or foreign country, including but not limited to any 
preference to bidders, the imposition of any type of labor force preference, or any other form of 
preferential treatment to bidders or laborers from the at state or foreign country. The 
preferences allowed shall be equal to the preference given or required by the state or foreign 
country in which the nonresident bidder is a resident. In the instance of a resident labor force 
preference, a nonresident bidder shall apply the same resident labor force preference to a 
public improvement in this state as would be required in the construction of a public 
improvement by the state or foreign country in which the nonresident bidder is a resident. 

Failure to submit a fully completed Bidder Status Form with the bid may result in the bid being 
deemed nonresponsive and rejected. 

Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the 
performance of this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project will be exempt 
from tax as provided by Iowa Code Sections 423.2 and 423.45.

398

Item 16.

mailto:mike.nyman@cedarfalls.com


7

Project Description: This work shall consist of furnishing and installing a cured in place liner 
within existing 8 and 12 inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in 
accordance with the contract documents. Total project involves approximately 8,209 linear feet 
and 185 service taps. A complete list of sewers to be rehabilitated and TV inspection reports for 
most lines are available.  Contractors may wish to perform their own evaluation prior to the bid.

CDBG Funded: This project is being funded in part by Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) dollars originating from the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD).  Therefore, this project is subject to federal labor standard requirements, 
including Davis Bacon-Act (federal prevailing wage requirements for laborers and mechanics on 
site) and HUD Section 3 Hiring (low-income persons employment) provisions.  Bidders should 
submit completed and signed “Intent to Comply with Section 3 Requirements” form as part of 
their bid documentation.  The Intent to Comply form as well as details on other federal 
requirements, including prevailing wage rates, are included in the Specifications.

Section 3 language for procurement documents:
 

A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u 
(section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic 
opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 
3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, 
particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing.

B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, 
which implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties 
to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would 
prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations.

C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers 
with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, 
if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the 
contractor's commitments under this section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice 
in conspicuous places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training 
and employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the section 3 
preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of 
apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and 
location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated 
date the work shall begin.

D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to 
compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, 
as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon 
a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The 
contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or 

399

Item 16.



8

knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 
CFR part 135.

E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training 
positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is 
executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 
135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the 
contractor's obligations under 24 CFR part 135.

F. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, 
termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD 
assisted contracts.

G. With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing 
assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act 
(25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 
7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for 
training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of 
contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned 
Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of section 
3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but 
not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b).

Section 3 Businesses are encouraged to respond to this proposal.  A Section 3 business is a 
business that is:

51% owned by Section 3 residents*

Whose permanent, full-time staff is comprised of at least 30% Section 3 residents*

Has committed 25% of the dollar amount of its subcontracts to Section 3 businesses

*A Section 3 resident is defined as a public housing resident or someone with a household 
income that is less than 80% of the area median income.
Businesses that believe they meet the Section 3 criteria are encouraged to register as a Section 
3 Business through HUD’s website: 
https://portalapps.hud.gov/Sec3BusReg/BRegistry/RegisterBusiness

Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

BY: 
__________________________

      Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC,
               City Clerk 

400

Item 16.

https://portalapps.hud.gov/Sec3BusReg/BRegistry/RegisterBusiness


9

401

Item 16.



10

DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders

The work comprising the 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project shall be constructed 
in accordance with the 2022 edition of the Iowa “SUDAS” and as further modified by the current 
City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications and the special provisions included in the 
contract documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the documents are defined in said 
Standard Specifications. 

Before submitting your bid, please review all requirements of DIVISION 5 related to CDBG 
funding of public improvement projects.

Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General Provisions 
and Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, bonding, contract 
execution, and insurance requirements.  Please be certain that all documents have been 
completed properly; as failure to complete and sign all documents and to comply with the 
requirements listed below can cause your bid not to be read.

01 Definition & Terms

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03:

Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa

Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative.

Project Manager: The Water Reclamation Manager of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized 
representative. 

Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council.

Project: 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project; Project No. SA-000-3297

02 Qualification of the Bidder

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01:

To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners 
request, bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below:

The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years engaged in 
the contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the state where 
incorporated; A list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to evaluate if the 
bidder can complete the work in accordance with the bidding documents; A financial statement 
of the bidder showing that the bidder has the financial resources to meet all obligations 
incidental to the work; The bidder’s performance record giving the description, location, and 
telephone number of similar projects constructed in a satisfactory manner by the bidder; A list of 

402

Item 16.



11

projects presently under contract, the approximate contract amount and the percent of 
completion of each; A list of contracts which resulted in lawsuits; A list of contracts defaulted; A 
statement of the bidder indicating whether or not the bidder has ever filed bankruptcy while 
performing work of a like nature or magnitude;  A list of officers of the firm who, while in the 
employ of the firm or the employ of previous firms, were associated with contracts which 
resulted in lawsuits, contracts defaulted or filed for bankruptcy; The technical experience of 
personnel guaranteed to be employed in responsible charge of the work stating whether the 
personnel have or have not performed satisfactorily on other contracts of like nature and 
magnitude or comparable difficulty at similar rate of progress; Such additional information as will 
assist the Owner in determining whether the bidder is adequately prepared to fulfill the contract. 
Owner’s decision as to qualifications of the bidder will be final.

The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered 
into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full 
opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on 
the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an award.

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02:

The contract documents are available at www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN and 
www.questCDN.com. This contract is QuestCDN project number 8103628. A contractor may 
view the contract documents at no cost prior to deciding to become a Planholder. To be 
considered a Planholder for bids, a contractor must register with QuestCDN.com. Registering 
as a planholder is recommended for all prime contractors and subcontractors as Planholders 
will receive automatic notice of addenda and other contract document updates via QuestCDN. 
Contact QuestCDN Customer Support at (952)233-1632 or info@questcdn.com for assistance 
in membership registration, downloading digital project information and vBid online bid submittal 
questions. Bids will only be received and accepted via the online electronic bid service through 
QuestCDN.com. To access the electronic bid form, download the project documents and click 
on the online bid button at the top of the bid advertisement page. Prospective bidders must be 
on the Planholder list through QuestCDN for bids to be accepted. 

Plans, specifications, and proposal forms have been approved by the City Council and are now 
on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk. Hard copies of the project 
documents may be obtained from the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 
50613 at no cost. Those desiring to obtain hard copies must make an appointment to pick up 
the documents by calling 319-268-5161 and ask for Haley Habinck. No drop-ins will be allowed. 

04 Taxes

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08:

Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption Certification 
to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment in the performance of this project. 

403

Item 16.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN
http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


12

Products utilized in the construction of this project will be exempt from tax as provided by Code 
of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45.
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder & Bid Security

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12:

The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including all add 
alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates).  Bid security shall be in the form of a 
cashier’s check, a certified check, or a bank money order drawn on a FDIC insured bank in Iowa 
or drawn on a FDIC insured bank chartered under the laws of the United States; or a certified 
share draft drawn on a credit union in Iowa or chartered under the laws of the United States; or a 
bid bond executed by a corporation authorized to contract as a surety in Iowa or satisfactory to 
the Jurisdiction.  The bid bond must be submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid 
bond forms are acceptable.  All signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; 
facsimile (fax) of any signature on the bid bond is not acceptable.  Bid security other than said bid 
bond shall be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”.

“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by 
persons, firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable bid 
security.

The bid shall be submitted on the Form of Proposal included herewith or on a computer printed 
proposal. All entries on this proposal shall be filled in ink, typed or computer printed. The bidder 
shall not alter the quantity, unit price, or the extension that has been provided for items that 
have been predetermined by the contracting authority.

If the proposal is computer generated, the bidder shall submit a form titled as “Form of 
Proposal,” followed by: the project name, project number, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and the 
bidder's name. The form shall then include the item numbers, item descriptions, and units and 
their quantities. The bidder shall specify a unit price in figures of dollars and cents for all pay 
items, the extensions for the respective unit prices and quantities in figures in a column 
provided for the purpose, and the total amount of the proposal obtained by adding the amounts 
of the several items. The form shall then conclude with the bidder's name, that of its 
representative and the representative's signature.

The computer generated proposal then is to be attached to the Form of Proposal included 
herewith, which has the following entries completed: bid security sum and form, the name of the 
bidder and its official address, and the bidder's representative's name, signature, and title. Also 
the total bid shall be completed with the entry of "see attached."

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope separate from the Bid Security, Bidder 
Status Form, and the Non-Collusion Affidavit. The envelope shall bear the return address of the 
Bidder and shall be addressed as follows:

To: City Clerk
City of Cedar Falls
City Hall

404

Item 16.



13

220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Proposal for: 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
Project No. SA-000-3297

FORM OF PROPOSAL

2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

PROJECT NO. SA-000-3297

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

The undersigned hereby certifies that _________________________ have personally and 

carefully examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract annexed hereto.  

Having made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to construct the 

improvements for the 2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT in 

accordance with the plans and specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk, the published 

Notice to Bidders and the Form of Contract, herewith, complying with all the laws of the State of 

Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, and to the 

satisfaction of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including the guaranteeing of 

this Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of final acceptance thereof at the 

following prices, to-wit:

Unit Price Amount
Item 

No.

Item 

Code
Description

Item 

Quantity

and Units
Dollars Cents Dollars Cents

1 4050-C-1 Pipe Lining, 8 Inch
7,111

Linear Feet

2 4050-C-1 Pipe Lining, 12 Inch
1,098

Linear Feet

3 4050-C-2 Building Sanitary Sewer Service 
Reconnection

185
Each

4 4050-F-4 Injection Grouting of Service 
Connections

185
Each

5 11,020-A Mobilization 1 LS

Total Bid

405

Item 16.



14

Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items constitute 
one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. Bids shall be submitted for all of the items. The 
successful bidder will be determined by evaluating the Total Bid shown above. Failure to submit 
a bid on any item shall be just cause for disqualification of the entire proposal. Unit bids must be 
filled in ink, typed or computer generated, or the bid will be rejected. The Owner reserves the 
right to delete any part or all of any item.

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, 
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further reserves 
the right to reject the bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to 
be non-responsible. The Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the Owner believes that 
it would not be in the best interest of the project to make an award to that bidder. The Owner 
also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price time or changes in the work

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned 
within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this bid is 
withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the prescribed form 
and furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the Contract is presented to 
him for signature, and start work within ten (10) calendar days after "Notice to Proceed" is 
issued.

Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders.

The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request.

The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda:

Addendum No. ______________     Date _____________
Addendum No. ______________     Date _____________
Addendum No. ______________     Date _____________

The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal.

Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 
1001.
Name of bidder
________________________________  _____________________________

 By
________________________________  _____________________________ 
Official Address  Title 

406

Item 16.



15

BID BOND
PROJECT NO. SA-000-3297

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, ___________________________________________
__________________________, as Principal, and ___________________________________________
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," In 
the penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) lawful money of the 
United States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 
administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted 
the accompanying bid dated the _______ day of_______________________, 20_____, for 
______________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________.

NOW THEREFORE,

(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate,

(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and 
shall furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons 
performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the 
agreement created by the acceptance of said Bid,

Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood 
and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal 
amount of this obligation as herein stated.

By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of 
damages sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in 
the specifications or by law.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be 
in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or 
execute such contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them 
as are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their 
proper officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____.

_________________________________ (Seal)
Principal

_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title)
Witness

_________________________________ (Seal)
Surety

_______________________________________ By____________________________________
Witness                                Attorney-in-fact

               

407

Item 16.



16
408

Item 16.



17
409

Item 16.



18

  NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER          

 PROJECT NO. SA-000-3297

STATE OF _______________________ 
                           ss

COUNTY OF _____________________

__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:

(1) We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________      
    (owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent)

_____________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid:

(2) We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent 
circumstances respecting such bid:

(3)  Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid:

(4) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees 
or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the 
Contract for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such 
Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or 
conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other 
Bidder, or, to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through 
any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and

(5)  The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, 
owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant.

__________________________________________
Signed
__________________________________________
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me

this _______ day of ________________, 20_____

________________________________________

_________________________________________
Title

My Commission expires ______________________.

410

Item 16.



19

FORM OF CONTRACT

This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of 

_________, 2022, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the 

Owner, and_____________ of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor.

WITNESSETH:

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials, and equipment 

and construct the public improvement consisting of:  2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER 

REHABILITATION PROJECT; PROJECT NO. SA-000-3297 all in the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by 

Resolution duly passed on the 21st day of February, 2022 and shown and described in the 

Plans and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City.

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications.

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said 2022 CDBG SANITARY 

SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT attached hereto shall be made a part of this 

contract as fully as though set out herein verbatim:

a. Resolution of Necessity
b. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement
c. Plans
d. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications
e. Notice to Bidders
f. Instructions to Bidders
g. Supplemental Conditions
h. General Conditions
i. Project Specifications
j. Form of Proposal
k. Performance Bond
l. Maintenance Bond
m. Form of Contract

411

Item 16.



20

n. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder
o. Bidder Status Form

On completion of the said improvement, the Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor the 

prices set out in the Form of Proposal of the Contractor, said payment to be made in the 

manner stated in the published Notice to Bidders.

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first 

herein written.

__________________________
Contractor

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

By____________________________
   Robert Green, Mayor City of Cedar Falls

Attest: _________________________
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC
City Clerk

412

Item 16.



21

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions

Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the “SUDAS” Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect.

01 Award of Contract

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03:

The lowest responsive bidder will be required to furnish a performance, payment, and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of 
two (2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls.

02 Availability of Site

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04:

During construction of this project, the Contractor will be required to coordinate all work 
operations with the Department of Community development, City project contractors, and / 
or others involved with, but not limited to, the following events:

1) Public Works garbage collection operations
2) Street Restoration - 2022
3) Street Reconstruction – 2022
4) Cedar Falls Util. Co. electrical, communications, gas & water main projects
5) 2022 Public Sidewalk & Patching Project
6) College Hill Arts Festival – June 17 thru 18, 2022
7) Sturgis Falls Celebration – June 24 thru 26, 2022

03 Subletting or Assignment of Contract

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01:

The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than fifty 
(50%) percent of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. An item designated as 
a specialty item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item 
as performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the 
amount of work required by the Contractor's organization.

413

Item 16.



22

04 Contract Time

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02:

The work under the proposed contract shall commence within ten (10) calendar weeks 
after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed regularly 
and diligently throughout the duration of the project. There is no specified number of 
allotted working days for this contract; however, much of this work is in conjunction with 
street reconstruction or resurfacing. To minimize conflicts, and avoid encountering a 
situation that may require a possible spot repair under a newly laid street, Contractor 
should plan to finish by May 31st, 2022.

Liquidated damages in the amount of $1000 per calendar day shall be assessed for each 
calendar day that work remains uncompleted after May 31st, 2022.

05 Weekly Record of Working Days

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06:

Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset. Work on Sundays and 
Holiday’s shall only be allowed after prior written approval by the Engineer.

06 Liquidated Damages

Add the following to The SUDAS Standard Specifications Section 1080 – 1.12:

Liquidated damages in the amount of eight hundred ($1000.00) dollars per calendar day will be 
assessed for work not completed within the designated contract term as described in the Notice to 
Proceed.

07 Progress Payments

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01:

Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the first (1st) and third 
(3rd) Mondays of each month.

Payment for the work may be made in three parts, if requested by the Contractor.  The 
Contractor may request from the Owner a progress payment when the job is 33% 
complete and another when the job is 66% complete. Final payment will be made upon 
satisfactory completion of this contract.  Payment will be in accordance with the prices set 
forth in the proposal for the quantity of work performed.  This shall include any additional 
expenses preapproved by the Owner.

Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain ten (10) percent of the project cost from 

414

Item 16.



23

the last payment for a period of ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and 
approval, unless satisfied that material and laborers have been paid for in full.

08 Pollution Prevention Plan

1. Project Description

This work shall consist furnishing and installing a cured in place liner within existing 8 and 
12 inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in accordance with the 
contract documents. Total project involves approximately 8,209 feet and 185 service taps. 
This project encompasses multiple locations within the city.  

2. Erosion and Sediment Controls

All contractors and subcontractors operating on the site shall take efforts to prevent 
contamination of storm water runoff, groundwater, and soils by hazardous material and / 
or pollutants caused by their operations or encountered in their work. All waste materials 
and supplies must be removed from the site(s). If construction equipment maintenance or 
repair is performed on any site, provisions must be made to capture and remove any 
lubricants or other fluids.

The Contractor shall notify the Owner immediately upon finding a hazardous material 
contamination either existing at the site or caused by construction activities.

The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall be responsible to the Owner to:

1. Execute Contractor’s part of the pollution prevention plan as described.

2. Conduct all work activities to not damage an existing erosion control 
measure or stabilizing vegetation.  If damages occur, the Contractor shall 
make repairs with no additional cost to the Owner.

3. Coordinate with the Owner for installation of additional erosion control 
measures that may be needed during construction.

3. Certification Statement 

N.P.D.E.S. CERTIFICATION

The contractor certifies under penalty of law that they understand the terms and conditions 
of the general National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit that 
authorizes the storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from the 
construction site as part of this certification. Further, by signing and entering into contract 
for this work, the contractor understands that they are becoming a co-permittee, along with 
the owner(s) and other contractors and subcontractors, to the Iowa Department of Natural 
Resources NPDES General Permit No. 2 for “Storm Water Discharge Associated with 

415

Item 16.



24

Industrial Activity for Construction Activities” at the identified site. As co-permittee, the 
contractor understands that they and their company are legally required under the Clean 
Water Act and the Code of Iowa, to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of 
the Storm Pollution Prevention Plan developed under this NPDES permit and the terms of 
this NPDES permit.

09 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

The Engineer will measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the 2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER 
REHABILITATION PROJECT in accordance with the 2022 edition of the Iowa “Statewide 
Urban Design and Specifications” (SUDAS) for public improvements and as further 
modified by the current City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications, except as 
amended or supplemented as follows:

Item No. 4 – Grouting Service Laterals
The number of grouting service laterals will be measured on a per each location basis. 

10 BASIS OF PAYMENT

Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement will be determined by 
multiplying the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit 
price as bid on the proposal form in accordance with the 2022 edition of the Iowa 
“STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS) as amended by the 
current City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the latest edition of the Iowa 
“STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND  SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS), except as amended 
or supplemented as follows:

Item No. 4 – Grouting Service Laterals
The Contractor will be paid the contract unit price per each measured. 

416

Item 16.



25

DIVISION 4 - SUPPLEMENTAL PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the 2022 CDBG 
SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT in accordance with the 2022 Edition of 
the Iowa “STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS) as amended 
by the current City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the latest edition of the 
Iowa “STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS), except as 
amended or supplemented as follows:

Item No. 1-2 – Pipe Lining, 8 Inch and 12 Inch

Traffic control as per I.D.O.T. Specification Section 2528.12 shall be incidental to bid 
items. The bypassing of sewage shall be incidental the bid items. The cleanup of the work 
site is incidental to the bid items including maintenance of surfaces such as paving, 
seeding, sodding and graveling, as needed, if damaged. 

Resin-Impregnated Tube for Cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) Lining shall be used per SUDAS 
Section 4050 3.03. 

Water-tight end seals are required. Sealing is incidental to lining. The Contractor is 
responsible for using one or more of the following methods to achieve a water tight seal at 
both ends of the liner:

1. Install gasketed stainless steel bands (LMK or pre-approved equal) inside each 
end of the host pipe prior to lining. This method shall be the only acceptable method for 
pipes 18” or larger in diameter, or those subject to hydrostatic pressure (ground water 
table) at any time of the year.
 

2. Apply a hydrophilic sealing material (Hydrotite or pre-approved equal) 360 
degrees inside the circumference of the host pipe at each end.  

3. Chemical pressure grout between the exterior of the pipe and annulus of the liner 
after lining at the manhole.  

The Contractor shall provide liner "coupon" specimens for testing to the Owner after 
installation.  The Owner will pay all expenses for the testing of these specimens.  The cost 
of retests made necessary by the failure of the samples of specimens to meet the 
specified requirements shall be paid for by the Contractor. Any liner installed failing this 
test shall be replaced at the Contractor’s expense.

417

Item 16.



26

The Contractor shall furnish a general purpose felt/unsaturated polyester resin and 
catalyst system that meets ASTM Test Procedures D-638 and D-790 and the finished 
formed physical strengths specified herein. The formed liner shall conform to the minimum 
structural standards as listed below:

Physical Characteristics Test Procedure Pipe Material Felt/Resin
Tensile Strength ASTM D-638 3000 psi
Tensile Modulus ASTM D-638 300000 psi

If, due to broken or offset pipe at the manhole wall, the pipe liner fails to make a tight seal, 
the Contractor shall apply a seal at that point.  The seal shall be of a resin mixture 
compatible with the liner pipe material.

After insertion is completed, the Contractor shall supply suitable heat source equipment.  
The equipment shall be capable of delivering the appropriate heat source through the 
lining section to uniformly raise the temperature to effect forming of the cured-in-place 
liner.  This temperature shall be determined by the system employed.

Any steam for processing shall utilize monitoring methods and forming period as 
recommended by the liner manufacturer. If water is utilized, the water temperature in the 
line during the forming period shall be as recommended by the liner manufacturer.

If the liner fails to form, the Contractor shall remove the failed liner and replace it with a 
new liner.  This work shall be performed without additional cost to Owner.

Any defects which will affect in the foreseeable future or warranty period, the integrity or 
strength of the liner pipe shall be repaired at the Contractor's expense.  Allowance shall be 
given for excess pipe (rib) when the cross-sectional area has been reduced due to offset 
joints, partial collapse, out of round sections, etc.

Item No. 3 – Building Sanitary Sewer Service Reconnection

Traffic control as per I.D.O.T. Specification Section 2528.12 shall be incidental to bid 
items. The cleanup of the work site is incidental to the bid items including maintenance of 
surfaces such as paving, seeding, sodding and graveling, as needed, if damaged. 

After the pipe liner has been formed in place, the Contractor shall reconnect the existing 
active service connections as designated by the Owner.  This shall be done without 
excavation, and in the case of non-man entry pipes, from the interior of the pipeline by 
means of a television camera and a cutting device that re-establishes the service 
connections to not less than 90 percent capacity.  The CCTV inspection of the formed 
liner shall show a "dimple effect", which is an indication that there is a tight fit of the liner 
against the host pipe.  If this is not the case, the liner must be reprocessed until there is a 
good definition of a "dimple" at the service connection, before reconnecting the service 
connection. 

418

Item 16.



27

Item No. 4 – Injection Grouting of Service Connections

Chemical grouting equipment shall consist of a closed circuit television system, necessary 
chemical sealant containers, pumps, regulators, valves, hoses, etc., and lateral connection 
sealing packers for the various sizes of sewer pipes.

Grout packer shall be cylindrical and have a diameter less than the pipe size and have 
cables attached at each end to pull it through the line.  The same equipment shall be used 
for both testing and sealing sewer lateral connections.  The packer shall contain a lateral 
sealing inversion tube.  This tube should be designed to accommodate two sizes of 
laterals, 4” and 6” diameters.  The inversion tubes are one length to facilitate sealing of 
approximately 2’ of the lateral.

Sewer main shall be televised before service line is grouted; testing of grouted service will 
also be televised.

The chemical grout shall be a type which has a documented record of satisfactory 
performance in sewer usage.  All grouting materials shall be delivered to the job site in the 
original, labeled, and unopened containers.  Grouts shall be Acrylic base gel chemical 
sealing material – Avanti AV-100 or equal.  

Laterals shall be air tested by isolating the area to be tested with the packer and applying 
positive pressure into the isolated “void” area.  The test procedure will consist of applying 
air pressure into each isolated void area.  The packer ends will be inflated to isolate the 
lateral and insert and inflatable inversion tube.  The lateral shall be tested with a gauge 
pressure of one-half (1/2) p.s.i. per foot of depth of sewer or a minimum of four (4) p.s.i., 
whichever is larger.  The void pressure will be observed during this test for a minimum of 
10 seconds.  If the void pressure drop is greater than 1 psi in 10 seconds, the lateral is 
considered to have failed the air test.  If no pressure can be built up, the connection will 
also have failed the test.  Any connection failing the test shall be sealed and retested 
utilizing the same method and procedures until it does pass the test.  The cost of retesting 
lateral connections shall be considered incidental and included in the cost of sealing 
sanitary sewer lateral connection.

Item No. 5 – Mobilization

CDBG Federal Grant funding is being utilized on this project.  It is the Contractor’s 
responsibility to familiarize themselves with the applicable federal requirements for bidding 
and construction these improvements.  Contractor coordination with federal requirements, 
including wage reporting and CDBG Project Construction Sign is incidental to this bid item. 
See Division 5 for additional CDBG Funding Required Provisions.

419

Item 16.



28

FY 2022 Rehabilitation (Lining) List
 (In Alphabetical Order by size)

Video ID# Street Length Taps Description
Line 

Size (in)

1
Bluff 215 9 700 Blk, MH 578 () to MH 576 () 8

2
Delta 305 5 1200 Blk, MH 3688 () to MH 1887 (9'4") 8

3
Franklin 252 7 2100 Blk, MH 851 () to MH 421 () 8

4
Franklin 85 4 2100 Blk, MH 421 () to MH 420 () 8

5
Four Winds 20 0 1700 Blk, Four Winds MH 3984 (7'10") to MH 

2642 (7'11")

8

6
Four Winds 196 2 1800 Blk, MH 2640 (8'2") to MH 3984 (7'10") 8

7
Four Winds 265 3 1900 Blk, MH 2641 (9'7") to MH 2640 (8'2") 8

8
Homeway 253 6 3100 Blk, MH 3091 (7'11") to MH 2752 (8'5") 8

9
Homeway 211 4 3200 Blk, MH 2752 (8'5") to MH 3092 (8'11") 8

10
Olive 312 7 1800 Blk, MH 2839 () to MH 2840 () 8

11
State 332 16 800 Blk, MH 574 () to MH 3122 () 8

12
State 334 12 1000 Blk, MH 2788 (8'9") to MH 2789 (9'4") 8

13
Tremont 334 9 300 Blk, MH 776 (8'4") to MH () 8

14
Tremont 339 5 2300 Blk, MH 2852 (8'7") to MH 2883 (8'4") 8

15
Walnut 292 8 2100 Blk, MH 416 (7'8") to MH 2886 (7'3") 8

16
Walnut 290 8 2300 Blk, MH 2774 () to MH 402 (9'4") 8

17
Washington 330 7 600 Blk, MH 2880 (11'9") to MH 391 (9'5"), 2021 

PMP

8

18
Washington 329 8 900 Blk, MH 886 (8'6") to MH 2790 (10'6") 8

19
Washington 378 11 1100 Blk, MH 185 (9'9") to MH 184 (8'10") 8

20
Washington 395 9 2100 Blk, MH 2902 to MH 3114 () 8

21
West 3rd 330 10 1300 Blk, MH 497 () to MH 707 () 8

22
West 3rd 333 8 1400 Blk, MH 137 () to MH 497 () 8

23
West 3rd 331 7 1500 Blk, MH 536 (9'4") to MH 137 (10'2") 8

24
West 3rd 186 5 1600 Blk, MH 1276 () to MH 536 () 8

25
West 4th 263 4 1500 Blk, MH 1233 () to MH 1232 () 8

420

Item 16.



29

26
West 4th 201 9 1600 Blk, MH 1278 () to MH 1233 () 8

27
Lilac 51 0 1200 Blk, MH 56 () to MH 54 () 12

28
Lilac 173 2 1200 Blk, MH 1115 () to MH 56 () 12

29
Lilac 195 ? 1300 Blk, MH 2457 () to MH 1115 (), Backyards 12

30
5th (East) 46 0 100 Blk, MH 385 () to MH 384, Under Railroad 12

31
5th (East) 318 0 100 Blk, MH 390 () to MH 385 (), Near 

Railroad, 2022 PMP

12

32
5th (West) 315 0 100 Blk, MH 392 () to MH 390 (), Near 

Railroad, 2022 PMP

12

421

Item 16.



30

DIVISION 5 – CDBG FUNDING REQUIRED PROVISIONS

See Following Pages:

A. Wage Determination (7 pages)
B. Required Federal Contract Language for CDBG Funded Contracts (12 

pages)
C. Payroll Form (2 pages)
D. Intake Form (2 pages)
E. Labor Standards Questionnaire (English, 2 pages)
F. Labor Standards Questionnaire (Spanish, 2 pages)
G. Online Employee Questionnaire (2 pages)
H. Record of Employee Interview (English, 1 page)
I. Record of Employee Interview (Spanish, 1 page)
J. Intent to Comply with Section 3 (2 pages)
K. Section 3 Employee Interviews (1 page)
L. Section 3 Business Certification (2 pages)
M. Section 3 New Hire Compliance Report (4 pages)
N. Contractor Clearance Form (1 Page)
O. Project Sign Board (1 Page)

422

Item 16.



423

Item 16.



424

Item 16.



425

Item 16.



426

Item 16.



427

Item 16.



428

Item 16.



429

Item 16.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Required Federal Contract Language 

For 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funded Contracts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

430

Item 16.



Federal Labor Standards Provisions   

 
 
Applicability 
The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United 
States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the 
provisions applicable to such Federal assistance. 
 
A.1. (i) Minimum Wages. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid 

unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except 
such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR 
Part 3), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment 
computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the 
contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe 
benefits under Section l(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to 
such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs 
incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the 
particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.  Such laborers and 
mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of 
work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics 
performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the 
time actually worked therein: Provided, that the employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each 
classification in which work is performed.  The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates 
conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the 
contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible, place where it can be easily seen 
by the workers. 
 
(ii)(a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under 

the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination.  HUD shall approve an additional 

classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria have been met: 

(1)The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; 

and 
 
(2)The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 

 
(3)The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates 

contained in the wage determination. 
 
(b)If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their 

representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for 
fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator of 
the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. 20210. 
The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification 
action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day 
period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 
1215-0140.) 
 
(c)In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and 

HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for 
fringe benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested 
parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an 
authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will 
notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.  (Approved by the Office of 
Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.) 
 
(d)The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of 

this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on 
which work is performed in the classification. 
 
(iii)Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe 

benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage 
determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 

431

Item 16.



 
(iv)If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the 

wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits 
under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that 
the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set 
aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. (Approved by the Office of 
Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)  
 
2. Withholding. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of 

the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be 
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers, employed by the 
contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract In the event of failure to pay any laborer 
or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the 
wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or 
owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of 
funds until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, disburse such 
amounts withheld for and on account of the contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they are 
due. The Comptroller General shall make such disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act contracts.  
 
3. (i) Payrolls and basic records.  Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor 

during the course of the work preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at 
the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or 
her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide 
fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-bacon Act), daily and 
weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.  Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found 
under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably 
anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the 
contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or 
program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or 
mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.  
Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the 
registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and 
trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management 
and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017.)  
 
(ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to 

HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit 
the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee. The payrolls 
submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 
5.5(a)(3)(i) except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. 
Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four 
digits of the employee’s social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form 
desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at 
http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the 
submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social 
security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to HUD or its 
designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the 
payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee, the contractor, 
or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with 
prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to 
provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to 
HUD or its designee. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149.)  
 
(b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of Compliance,” signed by the contractor or 

subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and 
shall certify the following:  
 
(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(ii), the 

appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is  
correct and complete; 
 
(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the 

payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no 

432

Item 16.



deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as 
set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;  
 
(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash 

equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into 
the contract.  
 
(c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 

shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of Compliance” required by subparagraph A.3.(ii)(b).  
 
(d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal 

prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.  
 
(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph A.3.(i) available for inspection, 

copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall 
permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor 
fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the 
contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make 
such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.  
 
4. Apprentices and Trainees.  
(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed 

when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the 
U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and 
Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her 
first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually 
registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor 
Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an 
apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater 
than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under  
 
 
the registered program.  Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio 
permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for 
the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in 
which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman’s hourly rate) 
specified in the contractor’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at 
not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice’s level of progress, expressed as a 
percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe 
benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify 
fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the 
applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice 
classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship 
Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of 
an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.  
 
(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined 

rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant ‘,to and individually registered in a program which has 
received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training 
Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan 
approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in 
the approved program for the trainee’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate 
specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of 
the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of 
fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that 
there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination 
which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is 
not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid 
not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.  In addition, any trainee 
performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than 
the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and 

433

Item 16.



Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize 
trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.  
 
(iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall 

be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 
CFR Part 30.  
 
5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 

which are incorporated by reference in this contract  
 
6. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in subparagraphs 

1 through 11 in this paragraph A and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, 
and a copy of the applicable prevailing wage decision, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these 
clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor 
or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in this paragraph.  
 
7. Contract termination; debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of 

the contract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.  
 
8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon 

and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract  
 
9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not 

be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the 
procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause 
include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee, the U.S. Department of 
Labor, or the employees or their representatives.  
 
10. (i) Certification of Eligibility.  By entering into this contract the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor 

any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor’s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government 
contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or 
participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.  
(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by 

virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD 
programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.  
(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. Additionally, U.S. 

Criminal Code, Section 1 01 0, Title 18, U.S.C., “Federal Housing Administration transactions”, provides in part: 
“Whoever, for the purpose of... influencing in any way the action of such Administration... makes, utters or publishes any 
statement knowing the same to be false... shall be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or 
both.”  
 
11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees. No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or 

other labor standards provisions of this Contract are applicable shall be discharged or in any other manner discriminated 
against by the Contractor or any subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to 
be instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating to the labor standards 
applicable under this Contract to his employer.  
 
B. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The provisions of this paragraph B are applicable where the 

amount of the prime contract exceeds $100,000. As used in this paragraph, the terms “laborers” and “mechanics” include 
watchmen and guards.  
 
(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may 

require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any 
workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such 
laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all 
hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.  
 
(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in 

subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the 
unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done 
under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such 
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and 
guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of $10 for each 
calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours 
without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in sub paragraph (1) of this paragraph. 
 

434

Item 16.



(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon 

written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any 
moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other 
Federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to be 
necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.  
 
(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph 

(1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.  
 
C. Health and Safety. The provisions of this paragraph C are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds 

$100,000. 
 
(1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, 

hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards 
promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation. 
 
(2) The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 and 

failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 
(Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat 96). 40 USC 3701 et seq.  
 
(3) The contractor shall include the provisions of this paragraph in every subcontract so that such provisions will be 

binding on each subcontractor. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontractor as the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

435

Item 16.



 

REQUIRED CONTRACT LANGUAGE 

All project contracts shall contain at a minimum the following provisions, as appropriate. 

 

ALL CONTRACTS 

1. Access and Maintenance of Records 

The contractor must maintain all required records for five years after final payments are made and all other 
pending matters are closed. 

At any time during normal business hours and as frequently as is deemed necessary, the contractor shall 
make available to the Iowa Economic Development Authority, the State Auditor, the General Accounting 
Office, and the Department of Housing and Urban Development, for their examination, all of its records 
pertaining to all matters covered by this contract and permit these agencies to audit, examine, make excerpts 
or transcripts from such records, contract, invoices, payrolls, personnel records, conditions of employment, 
and all other matters covered by this contract. 

2. Civil Rights 

The Contractor must comply with the following laws and regulations: 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352).  
States that no person may be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or subjected to 

discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance on the basis of 

race, color, or national origin. 

 

 Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair Housing Act), as amended. 
 

 Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965. 
 This Act mirrors the Federal Civil Rights Act. 

 

 Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
5309). 

Provides that no person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or subjected to 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or handicap under any program or 

activity funded in part or in whole under Title I of the Act. 

 

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.) 
Provides that no person on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 

of or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 

assistance. 

 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-112, 29 U.S.C. 794). 
Provides that no otherwise qualified individual shall solely by reason of his/her handicap be excluded 

from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be discriminated against under any program or 

436

Item 16.



activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 

 

 Americans with Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) 
Provides comprehensive civil rights to individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public 

accommodations, state and local government services, and telecommunications. 

 Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u). 
Provides to the greatest extent feasible, that training and employment opportunities be made available 

to lower-income residents of project areas and that contracts be awarded to small businesses located 

within the project area or owned in substantial part by project area residents. 

 

 Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order 11375. 
 Provides that no one be discriminated in employment. 

 

 Federal Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259. 
 

3. Termination Clause 

All contracts utilizing CDBG funds must contain a termination clause that specifies the following: 

 Under what conditions the clause may be imposed. 

 The form the termination notice must take (e.g., certified letter). 

 The time frame required between the notice of termination and its effective date. 

 The method used to compute the final payment(s) to the contractor. 
 

4. Certification regarding government-wide restriction on lobbying. 

All contracts utilizing CDBG funds must contain the following certification concerning restriction of lobbying: 

"The Recipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

i.  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Recipient, to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 

Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 

connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of 

any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, 

renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

ii.  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 

an officer or employee, or an employee of a Member of congress in connection with this Federal 

contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard 

Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Federal Lobbying" in accordance with its instruction. 

iii. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents 

for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, 

and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 

was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 

transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code.  Any person who fails to file the required certification 

shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure." 

437

Item 16.



 

 

5. Lead-Safe Housing Regulations (As applicable) 

24 CFR Part 35 et. al. 

Requirements for Notification, Evaluation and Reduction of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Federally Owned 

Residential Properties and Housing Receiving Federal Assistance, Final Rule 

6. Standards and Policies Relating to Energy Efficiency 

Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871 

Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy 

conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act. 

7. Notice of Awarding Agency Requirements and Regulations Pertaining to Reporting 

The Contractor must provide information as necessary and as requested by the Iowa Economic Development 

Authority for the purpose of fulfilling all reporting requirements related to the CDBG program. 

ALL CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $10,000 

In addition to the preceding provisions, all contracts in excess of $10,000 must include the following language, 

pursuant to Federal Executive Orders 11246 and 11375: 

"During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 

race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that 

applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their 

race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to the 

following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff 

or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 

apprenticeship.  The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 

applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions 

of this nondiscrimination clause. 

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 

contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard 

to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

(3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 

collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the 

agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's 

commitments under Section 202 of the Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall 

post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 

employment. 

(4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, 

and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

438

Item 16.



(5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant 

thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the 

Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, 

and orders. 

(6) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clause of this contract or 

with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended 

in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 

accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 

such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order No. 

11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as 

otherwise provided by law. 

(7) The contractor will include the provisions of Paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or 

purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued 

pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such 

provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The contractor will take such action 

with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the contracting agency may direct as a means of 

enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the 

event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 

vendor as a result of such direction by the contracting agency, the contractor may request the United 

States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 

ALL CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $100,000 

In addition to the preceding provisions, contracts in excess of $100,000 shall require compliance with the 

following laws and regulations: 

  Section 306 of the Clean Air Acts (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)). 

  Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368). 

  Executive Order 11738. 

   EPA Regulations - 40 CFR, Part 15. 

Clean Air and Water Acts - required clauses: 

This clause is required in all third party contracts involving projects subject to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 

1857 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.), and the regulations of the 

Environmental Protection Agency with respect to 40 CFR Part 15, as amended.  It should also be mentioned 

in the bid document. 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows: 

(1) The CONTRACTOR will certify that any facility to be utilized in the performance of any nonexempt 
contract or subcontract is not listed on the Excluded Party Listing System pursuant to 40 CFR 32. 

(2) The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air Act, 

as amended, (42 U.S.C. 1857c-8) and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 

amended (33 U.S.C. 1318) relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and information, as well 

as all other requirements specified in said Section 114 and Section 308, and all regulations and 

guidelines issued thereunder. 

439

Item 16.



(3) The CONTRACTOR agrees that as a condition for the award of the contract, prompt notice will be 

given of any notification received from the Director, Office of Federal Activities, Environmental 

Protection Agency, indicating that a facility utilized or to be utilized for the contract is under 

consideration to be listed on the Excluded Party Listing System. 

(4) The CONTRACTOR agrees that it will include or cause to be included the criteria and requirements in 

Paragraph (1) through (4) of this section in every nonexempt subcontract and require every 

subcontractor to take such action as the Government may direct as a means of enforcing such 

provisions. 

 

ALL CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $2,000 

In addition to the preceding provisions, all construction contracts in excess of $2,000 must include the Federal 

Labor Standards Provisions (verbatim) found in Appendix 2 under Required Contract Provisions.  (Housing 

rehabilitation contracts of less than 8 units are excluded from this requirement.) 

440

Item 16.



HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1968 

SECTION 3 CLAUSE 

 

A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing 

direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is 

subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as 

amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701 u.  Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for 

training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area and contracts for work in 

connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in, or owned in 

substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project. 

 

B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the regulations 

issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development set forth in 24 CFR Section 

3, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued there under prior to the execution of this 

contract.  The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other 

disability that would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 

C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which he has 

a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding if any, a notice advising said labor 

organization or workers’ representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post 

copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment or 

training. 

 

D. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract; for work in connection with 

the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient of Federal financial assistance, take 

appropriate action pursuant to the Subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of 

regulations issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Section 3.  The 

contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter has 

been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Section 3 and will not let any subcontract unless the 

subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements 

of these regulations. 

 

E. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR Section 3, and all 

applicable rules and orders of the Department issued there under prior to the execution of the contract, 

shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant 

or recipient for such assistance, its successors, and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall 

subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its successors, and assigns to those 

sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through Federal assistance is provided, 

and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Section 135.135. 

 

 

 

441

Item 16.



 
(8)      

DEDUCTIONS 

(7) (6) (5) (4) DAY AND DATE (3) (2) 

 
O 

 
O 

 

S 

 

S 

 
S 

 
S 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Wage and Hour Division 

PAYROLL 
(For Contractor’s Optional Use; See Instructions at www.dol.gov/esa//whd/forms/wh347instr.htm) 

Persons are not required to respond to the collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. Rev. Dec. 2008 

 
 

NAME OF CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR ADDRESS OMB No.: 1235-0008 

Expires: 02/28/2018 

PAYROLL NO. FOR WEEK ENDING PROJECT AND LOCATION PROJECT OR CONTRACT NO. 

 
 

(1) (9) 

 
 
 

 
NAME AND INDIVIDUAL IDENTIFYING NUMBER 

(e.g., LAST FOUR DIGITS OF SOCIAL SECURITY 

NUMBER) OF WORKER 

 

 
NET 

WAGES 

PAID FOR 

WEEK 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

While completion of Form WH-347 is optional, it is mandatory for covered contractors and subcontractors performing work on Federally financed or assisted  construction contracts to respond to the information collection contained in 29 C.F.R. §§ 3.3, 5.5(a).  The Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145) contractors and subcontractors performing work on 

Federally financed or assisted construction contracts to “furnish a weekly statement with respect to the wages paid each empl oyee during the preceding week.” U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) regulations at 29 C.F.R. § 5.5 (a)(3)(ii) require contractors to submit weekly a copy of all payrolls to the Federal agency contracting for or financing the 

construction project, accompanied by a signed “Statement of Compliance” indicat ing that the payrolls are correct and complete and that each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the proper Davis -Bacon prevailing wage rate for the work performed. DOL and federal contracting agencies receiving this information review the  information to 

determine that the employees have received legally required wages and fringe benefits.  

 
Public Burden Statement 

 
We estimate that is will take an average of 55 minutes to complete this collection, including time for reviewing instructions , searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  If you have any comments regarding these estimates or any other aspect of this collection, 

including suggestions for reducing this burden, send them to the Administrator, Wage and Hour Division, ESA, U.S. Department of Labor, Room S3502, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210 

(over) 

 

O 

 

S 

 

O 

 
O 

 
O 

 

O 

 

O 

 

S 

 
S 

 

S 

 
HOURS WORKED EACH DAY 

 
 
 

TOTAL 

DEDUCTIONS 

 
 
 

OTHER 

 
 

WITH- 

HOLDING 

TAX 

 
 
 

FICA 

GROSS 

AMOUNT 

EARNED 

RATE 

OF PAY 

TOTAL 

HOURS 

WORK 

CLASSIFICATION 

N
O

. 
O

F
 

W
IT

H
H

O
L

D
IN

G
 

E
X

E
M

P
T

IO
N

S
 

O
T

. 
O

R
 S

T
. 

442

Item 16.

http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm)


Date    

 
I,   ,   

(Name of Signatory Party)  (Title) 

 
do hereby state: 

 
(1) That I pay or supervise the payment of persons employed by 

 
    on the 

(Contractor or Subcontractor) 

 
   ; that during the period commencing on the 

(Building or Work) 

 
   day of  ,  , and ending the  day of  ,  

all persons employed on said project have been paid the full weekly wages earned, that no 

rebates have been made or will be made either directly or indirectly on behalf of said 

 
    from the full 

(Contractor or Subcontractor) 

 
weekly wages earned by any person and that no deductions have been made either directly or 

indirectly from the full wages earned by any person, other than permissible deductions as defined  

in Regulations, Part 3 (29 C.F.R. Subtitle A), issued by the Secretary of Labor  under the   

Copeland Act, as amended (48 Stat. 948 63 Start. 108, 72 Stat. 967; 76 Stat. 357; 40 U.S.C. § 

3145), and described below: 

 
 

 

 

 

(2) That any payrolls otherwise under this contract required to be submitted for the above period  

are correct and complete; that the  wage rates for laborers and mechanics contained therein   

are not less than the applicable wage rates contained in any wage determination incorporated 

into the contract; that the classifications set forth therein for each laborer or mechanic conform 

with the work performed. 

 
(3) That any apprentices employed in the above period are duly registered in a bona fide 

Apprenticeship program registered with a State apprenticeship agency recognized by the  

Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, United States Department of Labor, or if  no  such 

agency exists in a State, are registered with the Bureau of  Apprenticeship  and  Training,  

United States Department of Labor. 

 
(4) That: 

(a) WHERE FRINGE BENEFITS ARE PAID TO APPROVED PLANS, FUNDS, OR PROGRAMS 

 

_ in addition to the  basic  hourly wage  rates paid to each laborer or mechanic listed  

in the above referenced payroll, payments of fringe benefits  as  listed  in  the contract 

have been or will be made to appropriate programs for the benefit of such employees, 

except as noted in section 4(c) below. 

(b) WHERE FRINGE BENEFITS ARE PAID IN CASH 

 

_ Each laborer or mechanic listed in the above referenced payroll has been paid, 

as indicated on the payroll, an amount not less than the sum of the applicable basic 

hourly wage rate plus the amount of the required fringe benefits as listed in the 

contract, except as noted in section 4 (c) below. 

 
(c) EXCEPTIONS 

 

 
EXCEPTION (CRAFT) 

 
EXPLANATION 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

REMARKS 

 

NAME AND TITLE SIGNATURE 

 
THE WILLFUL FALSIFICATION OF ANY OF THE ABOVE STATEMENTS MAY SUBJECT THE CONTRACTOR OR 

SUBCONTRACTOR TO CIVIL OR CRIMINAL PROSECUTION. SEE SECTION 1001 OF TITLE 18 AND SECTION 231 

OF TITLE 31 OF THE UNITED STATES CODE. 

 

443

Item 16.



Name of complainant  Social Security Number  

Current address of complainant (Street/City/State/Zip Code)  Permanent address, if different from current address  

Telephone (including area code)  (Home/Cell/Other)  E-Mail address  

Project name, location and contract/project number  Prime contractor company name  

Employer (company) name  Employer:  name of owner/responsible party  

Employer address  Employer:  contact information (Telephone/Cell/Other)  

Check one:  Current 

employee  

Former 

employee  

 Other (specify)  

Period employed on the project  

From:  To:  

Occupation/job title:  

 

Duties performed (be specific)  

 

Tools used and/or equipment operated  

 

Hours usually worked on the project  

Sunday  Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday  Saturday  

       

Usual start and stop times  Start work time:   End work time:    

 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  

Office of Labor Relations  

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS COMPLAINT INTAKE FORM  

HUD FORM  

4731  
OMB Approval No. 2501-0018  

(Exp.  08/31/2010) 

Piece  Other (specify):   

444

Item 16.



W

e

r

e

 

m

e

a

l

 

b

r

e

aks taken?   Did the employer keep time  If yes, how long were the breaks?  records?  

_____________________________  

 

If fringe benefits were paid, check all that apply:  

 Cash in lieu of fringe benefits  

 Health insurance  

Identify other fringe benefits paid  

Names of others affected by the alleged violation(s)  

Names of others who can verify/attest to the complainant’s allegations  

 

Complaint taken by:  
Name (print clearly)  Phone number (including area code) and E-mail address  

Title  Agency, office  

Signature  Date  

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, 

searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. The information is 

considered sensitive and will not be released without your approval.  Provision of this information is voluntary. This agency may not collect this 

information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid Office of Management and Budget (OMB) control 

number.  HUD and local agencies administering HUD-assisted programs must enforce Federal wage and reporting requirements on covered HUD-

assisted construction and maintenance work.  Enforcement activities include collecting information from laborers and mechanics and other interested 

parties regarding information about their employment on covered projects.  

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  

Office of Labor Relations  

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS COMPLAINT INTAKE FORM  

HUD FORM  

4731  
OMB Approval No. 2501-0018  

(Exp.  08/31/2010) 

Name of complainant    Social Security Number   

 Yes  No  Yes  No  

Paid Overtime (time and ½) after 40 hours?  Did the complainant keep time  

records?   

Paid for all hours worked?  Does complainant have other  
personal records (pay stubs, log  
books, etc.) he/she can provide?   

Was/is the complainant an Apprentice?  Were fringe benefits paid?   

  Continuation sheets attached  
 Complainant’s personal interview attached 

  Life insurance     Pension   

 Dental insurance   Holiday/Sick/Vacation  

445

Item 16.



 
 PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE  form HUD-4731 (6/2004)   

446

Item 16.



 
We are conducting a review of federal labor standards compliance on the project named below.  We are asking 
for certain information regarding your employment on this project.  Sending this questionnaire to you does not 
imply that your employer has violated any law.  

Please respond to all of the questions listed below.  Your responses will be considered confidential and will not be 

released to anyone without your permission.  Your answers should refer only to the time during which you worked on this 

project.  Please return the completed form as soon as possible, using the envelope provided, which needs no postage.  

If you have any questions, please call:  

 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  

Office of Labor Relations  

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS QUESTIONNAIRE  

HUD FORM 4730  
OMB Approval Number 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018)  

447

Item 16.



17. Identify other employees (name, address, phone) who worked with you and who could confirm the type of work you 
performed 

18. Identify employees (name, address, phone) you supervised 

I affirm that the information provided herein is accurate to the best of my knowledge.  
Employee Name (Please print clearly)  Home Phone Number (including area code)  

Current address (Include apartment number, if any) (Street/City/State/Zip 
Code)   

Alternate Phone Number(s) (including area 
code)  

Permanent/Alternate Address (if current address is temporary)  Email address  

Signature  Date  

 
Disclosure Authorization  

 

I authorize the HUD representative to disclose my name and the information I have submitted to the extent necessary to 

enforce my rights under the Acts administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

Signature:  Date:  

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for 
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining data needed, and completing and reviewing the 
collection of information. The information is considered sensitive and will not be released without your approval.  Provision of this is 
voluntary. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently 
valid Office of Management and Budget (OMB) control number.  

HUD and local agencies administering HUD-assisted programs must enforce Federal wage and reporting requirements on covered 
HUD-assisted construction and maintenance work.  Enforcement activities include contacting laborers and mechanics and requesting 
information about their employment on covered projects.   

 
HUD-4730 (06/2004) PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  

Office of Labor Relations  

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS QUESTIONNAIRE  

HUD FORM 4730  
OMB Approval Number 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018)  

448

Item 16.



DEPARTAMENTO DE VIVIENDA Y DESARROLLO URBANO DE LOS EE.UU. 

Oficina de Relaciones Laborales 

CUESTIONARIO DE ESTÁNDARES FEDERALES DE TRABAJO 

FORMULARIO 
HUD 4730SP 

Número de Aprobación 
OMB 2501-0018 
Exp. 11/30/2016 

 
 

Estamos llevando a cabo una revisión del cumplimiento con los estándares federales de trabajo en el proyecto 
mencionado a continuación. Estamos solicitando cierta información concerniente a su empleo en este proyecto. 
El envío de este cuestionario no implica que su empleador haya violado alguna ley. 

 

Por favor responda a todas las preguntas mencionadas abajo. Sus respuestas se considerarán confidenciales y 
no se revelarán a nadie sin su permiso. Sus respuestas se deben referir únicamente al tiempo durante el cuál 
usted trabajó en este proyecto. Por favor devuelva el formulario debidamente llenado lo más pronto posible, 
usando el sobre proporcionado con franqueo pagado. 

 

Si tiene preguntas, por favor llame: 
 

Empleador Nombre del proyecto, número y ubicación 

1. Su nombre 2. El título de su trabajo 

3. ¿Cuándo trabajó en este proyecto? 
 
Desde: Hasta: 

4. ¿Dónde trabajó usted (lugar del trabajo, taller, etc.)? 

5. ¿Qué tareas desempeñó en este proyecto? 

6. ¿Qué herramientas usó (si usó alguna) para desempeñar sus tareas en el proyecto? 

7. ¿Cómo se le pagó? (salario por hora, sueldo, trabajo 
a destajo, etc.) 

8. Si su salario era en base a trabajo a destajo, ¿cómo se 
determinó su pago (esto es, por tabla, por unidad, etc.)? 

9. ¿Cuál era su salario por hora en 
este proyecto? 
$ 

10a. Recibió usted beneficios 
adicionales? 

 
Sí No 

10b. Si la respuesta es sí, ¿Cuáles 
beneficios adicionales recibió? 
Vacaciones 
Seguro médico 
Jubilación 
Otra Especifique 

11. En promedio, 
¿cuántas horas 
trabajó usted 
cada semana? 

12. ¿Trabajó 
usted más de 40 
horas en una sola 
semana? 

 
Sí No 

13.  Si usted trabajó más de 40 
horas por semana, ¿recibió pago por 
horas extra (por lo menos 1½ veces 
su tarifa de pago regular)? 

 
Sí No 

14. Si usted no recibió pago de sobre 
tiempo por las horas extra de trabajo, 
identifique el número de semanas que 
trabajó horas extra y/o las horas extra 

15. Adjunte copias de los talones de 
cheques o planillas de sus horas y 
del pago recibido 

 
 

MARQUE SI ESTÁN INCLUIDOS 

16. Incluya cualquier otro comentario o declaración en una hoja separada 

 
 
 

MARQUE SI ESTÁN INCLUIDOS 
HUD-4730 SPANISH (06/2004) PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 

449

Item 16.



DEPARTAMENTO DE VIVIENDA Y DESARROLLO URBANO DE LOS EE.UU. 

Oficina de Relaciones Laborales 

CUESTIONARIO DE ESTÁNDARES FEDERALES DE TRABAJO 

FORMULARIO 
HUD 4730SP 

Número de Aprobación 
OMB 2501-0018 
Exp. 11/30/2016 

17. Identifique a otros empleados (nombre, dirección, teléfono) que trabajaron con usted y que podrían confirmar el trabajo 
que usted desempeñó 

18. Identifique a los empleados (nombre, dirección, teléfono) que usted supervisó 

 
 
 

Afirmo que la información proporcionada aquí es exacta a mi mejor conocimiento. 

Nombre del empleado (Por favor escriba claramente 
en letra de molde) 

Número de teléfono de su domicilio (incluya el código de 
área) 

Dirección actual (Incluya el número de apartamento, 
si se aplica (Calle/Ciudad/Estado/Código Postal) 

Número(s) de teléfono alternativos(s) (incluya el código 
de área) 

Dirección permanente/alternativa (si la dirección 
actual es temporal) 

Dirección de correo electrónico 

Firma Fecha 

 

 

Autorización de Revelación 
 

Autorizo al representante de HUD revelar mi nombre y la información que he presentado, en la medida necesaria 
para hacer valer mis derechos bajo las Leyes administradas por el Departamento de Vivienda y Desarrollo 
Urbano de los EE.UU. 

 

 

Firma: Fecha: 

 

La responsabilidad de informar al público para esta recopilación de información se estima a un promedio de 30 minutos por respuesta, 
incluyendo el tiempo para revisar las instrucciones, buscar las fuentes de datos existentes, recopilar y mantener los datos necesarios, así 
como completar y revisar la información recopilada. La información se considera confidencial y no se revelará sin su aprobación. El 
proporcionarla es voluntario. Esta agencia no puede recopilar información y usted no está obligado a llenar este formulario, a menos que 
se muestre un número de control actual válido de la Oficina de Administración y Presupuesto (OMB). 

 
HUD y las agencias locales que administran los programas asistidos por HUD deben hacer cumplir los requisitos federales de información 
y salario en los trabajos de construcción y mantenimiento cubiertos, asistidos por HUD. Las actividades de cumplimiento incluyen contratar 
obreros y mecánicos y solicitar información sobre sus empleos en proyectos cubiertos. 

 

HUD-4730 SPANISH (06/2004) PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 

450

Item 16.



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  

Office of Labor Relations  

ON-LINE EMPLOYEE QUESTIONNAIRE  

HUD FORM 4730E  
OMB Approval No. 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018)  

 
Many construction projects assisted by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) are covered by federal 

labor standards.  These standards include the payment of prevailing wage rates as determined by the Secretary of Labor, 

otherwise known as Davis-Bacon wage rates.  In addition, many projects are covered by overtime rules that require the 

payment of one and one-half times the regular rate of pay for hours worked over 40 in a workweek.  Construction workers 

who are paid less than prevailing wages for the work they perform or who do not receive time and one-half for overtime hours 

worked may be entitled to wage restitution (back wages).  Also, maintenance workers employed at many public and Indian 

housing projects are covered by prevailing wage rates determined by HUD.  Maintenance workers that do not receive 

prevailing wages or, in some cases, overtime pay, may also be entitled to wage restitution.  

If you think that you may not have been paid correctly for construction or maintenance work that you performed on a HUD 

assisted project, you can complete this questionnaire and submit it to HUD electronically by clicking on the “Submit” button at 

the end of the form.  Or you can print your completed form and mail it to HUD at the following address:  

U.S. Department of HUD  

Office of Labor Relations  

451 7
th
 Street, SW, Room 2102 Washington, 

DC   20410  

We will review the information you provide and will let you know if you have been underpaid and, if so, we will work to ensure 

that you receive any additional wages that you may have earned.  Please note that if we believe you have been underpaid, 

we will probably need to contact you for more information.  

Please respond to all of the questions listed below.  Your responses will be considered confidential and will not be released 

to anyone without your permission.  Your answers should refer only to the time during which you worked on the HUD 

assisted project.   

If you have any questions, please contact a HUD Labor Relations Specialist.  A list of contact names, addresses, 

telephone numbers, email addresses and the geographic areas they cover can be found at:  www.hud.gov/offices/olr  

Employer  Project name, number and location  

1. Your Name 2. Your Job title 

3. When did you work on this project? 

From:                  To: 

4. Where did you work (job site, shop, etc.)? 

5. What duties did you perform on this project? 

6. What tools (if any) did you use to perform your duties on the project? 

7. How was your wage determined? (hourly wage, salary, 

piece work, etc.) 

8. If your wage was based on piece work, describe how 

pay was determined (i.e., $ per board, per unit, etc.)? 

  

451

Item 16.



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  
  

Office of Labor Relations  

ON-LINE EMPLOYEE QUESTIONNAIRE 

HUD FORM 4730E  
OMB Approval No. 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018)  

9a. What was your hourly wage rate on 
the project?  

$  

10a. Did you receive fringe 
benefits?  

Yes          No    

10b. If yes, which fringe benefits?  

Vacation  
Medical  

Pension   Specify:   

Other  

9b. If you know, what was the required 
prevailing wage for this project?  

$  

11. On average, 

how many hours 

did you work 

each week? 

12. Did you ever 

work over 40 

hours in a single 

week? 

13. If you worked over 40 hours 

per week, did you receive 

overtime pay (1½ times your 

regular rate of pay)? 

14. If you did not receive overtime pay for 

overtime hours worked, identify the 

number of weeks in which overtime was 

worked and/or total overtime hours 

Yes     No     Yes             No      

15. Identify other employees (name, address, phone) who worked with you and who could confirm the type of work you 

performed 

16. Identify employees (name, address, phone) you supervised 

How may we contact you?  

Current address (Include apartment number, if any) (Street/City/State/Zip Code)  Home Phone Number (including area 

code)  

Permanent/Alternate Address (if current address is temporary)  Alternate Phone Number(s) (including 
area code)  

Cell Phone   

Email address  Date  

 
Disclosure Authorization  

 

I authorize the HUD representative to disclose my name and the information I have submitted to the extent necessary to 

enforce my rights under the Acts administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

 
Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing 
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 
information. The information is considered sensitive and will not be released without your approval.  Provision of this information is voluntary. 
This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) control number.  
HUD and local agencies administering HUD-assisted programs must enforce Federal wage and reporting requirements on covered HUD-assisted 
construction and maintenance work.  Enforcement activities include contacting laborers and mechanics and requesting information about their 
employment on covered projects.   

 

Yes       No     

SUBMIT             PRINT    

HUD - 4730 E 
  (6/2004) 

  PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 452

Item 16.



Record of 

Employee Interview 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of Labor Relations 

OMB Approval No. 2501-0009 
(exp. 09/30/2017) 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not 
required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. The information is collected to ensure compliance with the Federal labor standards by 
recording interviews with construction workers. The information collected will assist HUD in the conduct of compliance monitoring; the information will be used to test the veracity of 
certified payroll reports submitted by the employer. Sensitive Information. The information collected on this form is considered sensitive and is protected by the Privacy Act. The 
Privacy Act requires that these records be maintained with appropriate administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to ensure their security and confidentiality. In addition, 
these records should be protected against any anticipated threats or hazards to their security or integrity that could result in substantial harm, embarrassment, inconvenience, or 
unfairness to any individual on whom the information is maintained. The information collected herein is voluntary, and any information provided shall be kept confidential. 

 

1a. Project Name 2a. Employee Name 

1b. Project Number 2b. Employee Phone Number (including area code) 

1c. Contractor or Subcontractor (Employer) 2c. Employee Home Address & Zip Code 

2d. Verification of identification? 

Yes No 

3a. How long on this 
job? 

3b. Last date on this 
job before today? 

3c. No. of hours last 
day on this job? 

4a. Hourly rate of pay? 4b. Fringe Benefits?  4c. Pay stub? 

Vacation Yes No Yes No 

Medical Yes No   

Pension Yes No   

5. Your job classification(s) (list all) --- continue on a separate sheet if necessary 

 
6. Your duties 

 
7. Tools or equipment used 

 

 
Y N Y N 

8. Are you an apprentice or trainee? 10. Are you paid at least time and ½ for all hours worked in excess of 40 in a week? 

9. Are you paid for all hours worked? 11. Have you ever been threatened or coerced into giving up any part of your pay? 
 

12a. Employee Signature 12b. Date 

13. Duties observed by the Interviewer (Please be specific.) 

 

 
14. Remarks 

 

 
15a. Interviewer name (please print) 15b. Signature of Interviewer 15c. Date of interview 

 

Payroll Examination 
16. Remarks  

17a. Signature of Payroll Examiner 17b. Date 

Previous editions are obsolete Form HUD-11 (08/2004) 

 
453

Item 16.



Historial de Entrevista del 

Empleado 

Departamento de Vivienda y 
Desarrollo Urbano de EE.UU. 
Oficina de Relaciones Laborales 

Aprobación de OMB No. 2501-0009 
(exp. 09/30/2017) 

Se estima que la tarea de recolección de esta información pública es de aproximadamente 15 minutos por respuesta, incluso el tiempo para examinar instrucciones, buscar 
fuentes de datos existentes, recopilar y mantener datos necesarios, y completar y examinar la recopilación de la información. Esta agencia no puede recopilar esta información y 
no se requiere que usted llene este formulario, a menos que éste exhiba un número de control válido de la Oficina de Administración y Presupuesto (OMB, por sus siglas en 
inglés. La información que se recopila tiene la finalidad de garantizar la conformidad a las normas laborales Federales mediante entrevistas con obreros de construcción. La 
información recopilada asistirá a HUD a conducir el monitoreo de conformidad; la información se usará para examinar la veracidad de los informes de nómina certificados 
presentados por el patrón. Información confidencial. La información recopilada en este formulario es considerada confidencial y está protegida por la Ley de Privacidad.  La 
Ley de Privacidad requiere que estos archivos se mantengan con salvaguardas administrativos, técnicos, y físicos apropiados para garantizar su seguridad y confidencialidad. 
Además, estos archivos deberán ser protegidos contra cualquier amenaza anticipada o riesgos a su seguridad o integridad, que podría causar daño sustancial, vergüenza, 
inconveniencias, o injusticias a cualquier individuo de quien se mantiene la información. La información recopilada aquí es voluntaria y cualquier información proporcionada 
será mantenida como confidencial. 

 

1a. Nombre del proyecto 2a. Nombre del empleado 

1b. Número del proyecto 2b. Número de teléfono del empleado (incluso prefijo local) 

1c. Contratista o subcontratista (Patrón) 2c. Dirección residencial del empleado y código postal 

2d. ¿Verificación de identificación? 

Sí No 

3a. ¿Cuánto tiempo 
en este trabajo? 

3b. ¿Último día en 
este trabajo antes de 
hoy? 

3c. ¿No. de horas en 
su ultimo día en este 
trabajo? 

4a. ¿Salario por hora? 4b. ¿Beneficios complementarios? 4c. ¿Talonario de 
paga? 

Vacaciones Sí No Sí No 

Médicos Sí No   

Pensión Sí No   

5. Clasificación(es) de su trabajo(s) (enumere todas) --- continúe en una página separada si es necesario 

 
6. Sus deberes 

 
7. Herramientas o equipo usado 

 

 
S N S N 

8. ¿Es aprendiz? 10. ¿Le pagan al menos tiempo y medio por todas las horas trabajadas superior a 40 
horas semanales? 

9. ¿Le pagan todas las horas 
trabajadas? 

11. ¿Alguna vez ha sido amenazado o coercionado a entregar parte de su paga? 

12a. Firma del empleado 12b. Fecha 

13. Deberes observados por el entrevistador (Por favor sea específico.) 

 

 
14. Comentarios 

 

 
15a. Nombre del entrevistador (use letra de imprenta) 15b. Firma del entrevistador 15c. Fecha de la entrevista 

 

Examinación de Nómina 
16. Comentarios  

17a. Firma del examinador de nómina 17b. Fecha 

 
454

Item 16.



INTENT TO COMPLY WITH SECTION 3 REQUIREMENTS 

(To be provided with procurement documents and returned with all submitted bids) 
 

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 [12 U.S.C. 1701u and 24 CFR Part 135] is HUD’s 
legislative directive for providing preference to low-income residents of the local community (regardless of race or 
gender), and the businesses that substantially employ these persons, for new employment, training and contracting 
opportunities resulting from HUD-funded projects. The regulations seek to ensure that low- and very low- income 
persons, and the businesses that employ these individuals, are notified about the expenditure of HUD funds in their 
community and encouraged to seek opportunities, if created. 

 
A Section 3 resident is defined as a public housing resident or someone with a household income that is less than 
80% of the area median income. 

 

A Section 3 business is defined as a business that is: 

51% owned by Section 3 residents 

Whose permanent, full-time staff is comprised of at least 30% Section 3 residents** 

Has committed 25% of the dollar amount of its subcontracts to Section 3 businesses 

Note: If your business meets the definition of a Section 3 business, you may register as a Section 3 Business through 

HUD’s website here: https://portalapps.hud.gov/Sec3BusReg/BRegistry/RegisterBusiness 

Businesses who self-certify that they meet one of the regulatory definitions of a Section 3 business will be included 

in a searchable online database. The database can be used by agencies that receive HUD funds, developers, 

contractors, and others to facilitate the award of covered construction and non-construction contracts to Section 3 

businesses. 

 
Please complete the following: 

1. If awarded a contract for this CDBG funded project, do you anticipate hiring new employees to 

complete the project? (Hiring would be specific to this project) 

 
Yes No   If yes, please estimate the number of employees to be hired:   

 

2. Is your business a Section 3 Business? Yes No 

 
3. Is the bidder willing to consider hiring Section 3 residents for future employment opportunities that are 

a direct result of this CDBG funded project? 

 
Yes No 

 
4. Is the bidder willing to consider subcontracting with Section 3 Businesses for this project? 

Yes No 

455

Item 16.

https://portalapps.hud.gov/Sec3BusReg/BRegistry/RegisterBusiness


I understand that this contracting opportunity is subject to HUD Section 3 requirements (24 CFR Part 135). I have 

read and understand the Section 3 requirements as generally described above and presented in the Section 3 

contract language included in the procurement documents for this project. If awarded a contract, the business 

commits to following Section 3 requirements, as they apply to this project. If awarded a contract for this project, 

the business agrees to provide reports to (insert City/County) on Section 3 efforts and accomplishments. 
 
 
 

Name of Contractor/Subcontractor Address 
 
 

Print Name Title 
 
 

Signature Date 

456

Item 16.



Sample Format for Section 3 Employee Interviews  

Date:  

Dear Employee:  

Please provide the information requested on this form that we can verify to the Iowa  

Economic Development Authority that your employment here is achieving the goals of 

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968.  This information will be 

placed in your confidential personnel file and will be available only to a limited number 

of authorized persons.  For assistance or further information, please see 

______________________________.  Thank you.  

(Company Official) 

 Sincerely, ________________________________  

(Company Official)  

NOTE:  Median Income Limits Table is on the reverse side of this form. (use 

limits from IEDA website)   

Step 1:  Are you a resident of public housing?   

 _________Yes  ________ No  

*If the answer to Step 1 is “Yes,” you have completed the form. No further information is 

needed. 

*If the answer to Step 1 is “No,” please refer to Steps 2 and 3. 

Step 2:  On the Median Income Limits Table, find the county in which you live and the 
size of your family (count yourself and all family members living at home).   
Use this information to arrive at the corresponding income level.    

Step 3:  Answer this question:  

Is your family’s total income above or below the amount listed for your county 

and family size?  (Check one)   

 _____ABOVE   _____BELOW  

457

Item 16.



Section 3 Business Certification  
- To be completed by the business claiming Section 3 business status. 

All contract and subcontracts awarded on Section 3 covered projects must be reported in aggregate on 

the Section 3 Summary Report.  For all businesses reported as being Section 3 businesses, 

documentation of their status must be retained in the project files.  We will consider this form adequate 

documentation of Section 3 status.  

HUD contracts awarded to the State of Iowa and/or a recipient (City/County) with more than $200,000 

in HUD funds are “Section 3 covered projects”.  Any contractors, with which they contract for more than 

$100,000 on these projects, are required to report on all contracts they make both with Section 3 

business concerns and with businesses that are not Section 3 business concerns.  

This form is a tool to determine and document the Section 3 business status.  Documentation of the 

status of Section 3 Businesses should be retained in the project files.  

Business being certified:  

Company: 

___________________________________________________________________ Address: 

____________________________________________________________________ Project 

information:  

Project Name: ________________________________________________________________  

Project Address: ______________________________________________________________  

Section 3 determination  

1. Is your business owned (51% or more) by individuals whose household incomes are NO 

GREATER THAN 80% of median family income OR by individuals that are public housing 

residents? 

*Please reference https://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/Community/downloads (under recipient income 
Requirements and Census Information) to determine if employee is less than 80% of the current area median 
income. 

     Yes  ___       No ___ 

2. Do 30% (or more) of your full time, permanent employees have household incomes that are NO 
GREATER THAN 80% of median family income, or within three years of the date of first 
employment with the business concern were Section 3 residents? 
 
       Yes ___       No ___ 
 

3. Will you subcontract more than 25% of this contract with a qualified business that is either 51% 
owned by Section 3 residents or 30% or more of its employees are Section 3 residents? 
 
       Yes  ___      No ___ 

458

Item 16.



 

If any of the questions above are marked “yes”, the business qualifies as a Section 3 business.  

I certify that the above statements are true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and 

belief.  

Signature: ___________________________________________________________________   

Print Name: _________________________________________________ Date___________  

459

Item 16.



SECTION 3 

NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

 

The US Department of Housing & Urban Development (“HUD”) requires the recipient to collect 
information on every person hired in connection with Section 3 projects to ensure compliance with 
Federal regulations. 

 
As part of (enter your community here)’s Section 3 program your firm is required to report the number of employees 
hired in connection with a Section 3 Project who are Section 3 Eligible. Complete this form by entering the names 
and addresses of all new hires and by indicating whether they are Section 3 eligible. A Section 3 resident is: 

 

1. A public housing resident; OR 
2. An individual who lives within the  and whose income falls within the guidelines for low 

or very low income. See attached table. 

 
This form must be completed by all subcontractors working on a Section 3 project, defined as a 
contract that exceeds $100,000, even if the subcontractor is not a “Section 3 Business.” 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR EMPLOYERS: 

 

1. Enter the name and address of every new employee hired in connection with the Section 3 Project on 
the following list. (Add additional sheets if necessary). 

 

2. For new employees hired, determine whether each new hire is Section 3 eligible by asking the 
employee the following questions upon hiring: 

 
a. Are you a resident of public housing? 

YES 
NO 

 

If the answer is “YES,” please skip questions “b” and “c”. 
If the answer is “NO,” please follow up by asking question “b”. 

 
b. Are you a resident of    

YES 
NO 

 

If the answer is “NO,” this person is not a Section 3-eligible resident. Therefore, there is not a need to 
ask question “c”. 

c. In the last 12 months, was your household income (meaning the total for everyone in your 
family earning income) NOT GREATER THAN the amount listed based on your household 
size? 

YES 
NO 

 

If YES, have the employee complete the certification form (Exhibit 1) and attach this to your 
submission. 

460

Item 16.



SECTION 3 

NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

 

3. Indicate whether each new hire is Section 3 eligible by checking the appropriate box next to 
their name and address on Section 3 New Hire Report. Indicate “Y” for Yes and “N” for No 

4. Indicate the Job Category using the following codes: 

 Professionals P 

 Technicians T 

 Office and Clerical OC 

 Sales S 

 Trades T 

 Labor L 

 Service Workers SW 

 Other Other 

5. An authorized representative of the firm must certify the accuracy and completeness of the 
information provided by signing this form where indicated. 

6. Subcontractors who have direct agreements with  regarding a Section 3 covered 
project are responsible for collecting the Section 3 New Hire Report from all applicable 
contractors and sub-contractors performing on a Section 3 covered project. 

7. If there were NO new hires for the report period, please document by checking the box and 
providing an authorized signature for your company. 

461

Item 16.



SECTION 3 

NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

 
 

Project Name:    
 

Project Address:   
 

Developer Name (if applicable):    
 

General Contractor Name:   
 

Name of Firm Completing This Form:    
 

This Firm is a (check one):    
 

 Subcontractor 
Contract Amount: $    

 
 

 Professional Services Consultant 
Contract Amount: $    

 
 
 
 
 

 

Contracts and subcontracts made with vendors to solely provide supplies and/or materials are not subject to 
the HUD Section 3 requirements. However, where such vendors also install such supplies and materials, 
said contracts and subcontracts above $100,000 shall be subject to the HUD Section 3 requirements. 

462

Item 16.



 

SECTION 3 

NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

  

 
NAME OF NEW 

HIRE 

 

 

ADDRESS 

(include Suite/Apt #) 

 

Section 3 
Eligible? 

 

Labor Category 

 

YES OR NO 
See 

Instructions 

1     

2     

3     

4     

5     

6     

7     

8     

9     

10     

11     

12     

13     

If there were NO new hires for the report period, please document by checking the box 
and providing an authorized signature for your company. 

 

 I certify that there were no new hires during the reporting period 
  /  /  to  /  /    
mm / dd / yyyy mm / dd / yyyy 

 
 

Name: 
 
_  _  _ Date:    

(please print) 
 

Title:   _   
(please print) 

 

Signature  ________________________________________________________    
 

 
I affirm that the above statements are true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge 
and belief. 

463

Item 16.



Contractor Clearance Form 

Instructions: The information below is required by the City of Cedar Falls’ Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement program, under which the sidewalk infill project is funded. Please fill out 

the following information and mail/fax/email the completed form to Brian Schoon at the INRCOG office 

using the contact information provided below. Thank you! 

 

Brian Schoon 

Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments 

229 East Park Avenue | Waterloo, IA 50703 

Phone: (319) 235-0311 | Fax: (319) 235-2891 

Email: bschoon@inrcog.org  

 

Business Name: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Address: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

Contractor/Officer/Owner Name: _________________________________________________________ 

Iowa Contractor Registration Number: _____________________________________________________ 

Contractor Tax ID: _____________________________________________________________________ 

Is this contractor a Minority Business Enterprise (MBE)?     Yes or No (please circle one) 

Is this contractor a Women Business Enterprise (WBE)?      Yes or No (please circle one) 

Is the owner of this business of Hispanic origin?                    Yes or No (please circle one) 

Is the owner of this business a Targeted Small Business?     Yes or No (please circle one) 

Is this business a Section 3 business? (see below)                  Yes or No (please circle one) 

 Section 3 Business: A business that meets one of these criteria: 1) 51% of the business is owned 

by section 3 residents; 2) 30% of current full-time staff are section 3 residents; or 3) business 

commits to provide 25% of total dollar amount of subcontracts to section 3 businesses (for 

prime contractors only)? 

 Section 3 Resident: A person who meets one of these criteria: 1) are public housing residents; or 

2) are low and very-low income persons who live in the metropolitan area or non-metropolitan 

area where a HUD-assisted project for housing or community development is located. 

Number of Employees Employed by the Business: ____________________________________________ 

Number of New Employees Hired to Work on this Project: ___________________________ 

 

 

__________________________________________                      _________________________________ 

Signature    Title                Date 

464

Item 16.

mailto:bschoon@inrcog.org


Project Sign Board

465

Item 16.



ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 PIPE LINING, 8 INCH L.F. $20.50 7111 $145,775.50

2 PIPE LINING, 12 INCH L.F. $28.00 1098 $30,744.00

3 BUILDING SANITARY SEWER SERVICE RECONNECTION EACH $50.00 185 $9,250.00

4 GROUTING SERVICE LATERALS EACH $310.00 185 $57,350.00

5 MOBILIZATION L.S. $5,000.00 1.0 $5,000.00

$248,119.50

2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE 

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

CITY PROJECT NO. SA - 000 - 3297

466

Item 16.



467

Item 17.



468

Item 17.



469

Item 17.



470

Item 17.



471

Item 17.



472

Item 17.



473

Item 17.



474

Item 17.



475

Item 17.



476

Item 17.



477

Item 17.



478

Item 17.



479

Item 17.



480

Item 17.



481

Item 17.



482

Item 17.



483

Item 17.



484

Item 17.



485

Item 17.



486

Item 17.



487

Item 17.



488

Item 17.



489

Item 17.



490

Item 17.



491

Item 17.



492

Item 17.



493

Item 17.



494

Item 17.



495

Item 17.



496

Item 17.



497

Item 17.



498

Item 17.



499

Item 17.



500

Item 17.



501

Item 17.



502

Item 17.



503

Item 17.



504

Item 17.



505

Item 17.



506

Item 17.



507

Item 17.



508

Item 17.



509

Item 17.



510

Item 17.



511

Item 17.



512

Item 17.



513

Item 17.



514

Item 17.



515

Item 17.



516

Item 17.



517

Item 17.



518

Item 17.



519

Item 17.



520

Item 17.



521

Item 17.



522

Item 17.



523

Item 17.



524

Item 17.



525

Item 17.



526

Item 17.



527

Item 17.



528

Item 17.



529

Item 17.



530

Item 17.



531

Item 17.



532

Item 17.



533

Item 17.



534

Item 17.



535

Item 17.



536

Item 17.



537

Item 17.



538

Item 17.



539

Item 17.



540

Item 17.



541

Item 17.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular Meeting of January 3, 2022
	220103MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-Year of College Hill
	2022_YearOfCollegeHill_R1

	Item 3.	PH-Capital Improvements Program (CIP)
	CIP council mem (2)
	Cathy's file

	Item 4.	Annual Reimbursement Resolution
	1-cip reimb res.MEM
	2-reimb res

	Item 5.	PH - Main Street Reconstruction Project
	1. PH ROW Memo - Main Street Reconstruction
	2. CF Main St Strip Map 12-7-21
	3. 12th Street Concept_120621 (2)
	4. Main St - PH
	5. Main Street Update

	Item 6.	PH - West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V
	1. PH Memo - West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V
	2. EOPC_2021-12-22_IndustrialPark

	Item 7.	Goal Setting Minutes-December 7 & 9, 2021
	Cedar Falls Goal Setting Report 2021

	Item 8.	Committee of the Whole Minutes-1/3/22
	01-03-22 Committee of the Whole Minutes

	Item 9.	Liquor Beer 1-18-22
	Liquor Beer 1-18-22

	Item 10.	FY23 City Council Goals
	FY23 City Council Goals final

	Item 11.	Depository Resolution
	Depository Resolution memo Jan2022
	Depository Resolution 011822

	Item 12.	Downtown Building Permit Moratorium
	Resolution establishing buuilding permit moratorium downtown
	Downtown Character District Regulating Plan
	Moratorium Letter to the City
	Moratorium opposed-LSB
	Wingert opposition to moratorium

	Item 13.	Contract with Rally Appraisal for services
	1_Memo Approving Appraisal Services Contract 11-7-2022
	Appraisal Contract

	Item 14.	City Hall Furniture Relocation Contract
	1 - City Hall Remodel Furniture relocation
	2 - Signed Contract Kirk Gross Co
	3 - Certificate of Insurance
	4 - CG 7103
	5 - CG 7131 02 15
	6 - Governmental Endorsement

	Item 15.	Sturgis Falls Contract
	1. Sturgis Falls Agreement
	2. SFC Agreement

	Item 16.	Set PH-2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project
	1. Memo PSE - CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehab
	2. Spec - 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehab (1)
	3. EOC - 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehab

	Item 17.	Bills & Claims-1/18/22
	1 Daily Invoices 011822
	2 Council Invoices 011822

	Bottom

